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STATE GRID EUROPE LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT

Princi'p,él activity and review of the business:
State Grid Europe Limited (“the Company”) was incarporated on 11 Novémber 2011.

The principal activities of the Company are: (1) to make Investrnent in the European power & utilitiés
sector and financial market {2) to access capital by -adequate financing instruments (3) to hold and
manage the Company’s current investments.

The profit for the year after taxatlon for the Company was EUR 157,435,398 (2018: EUR 156,357,239).

From 2012 o 2017, the Campany completed the acquisition of 25% of the share capital of REN-Redes
Energeticas Nacionais, SGPS, 5.A. (REN), 35% of the share capital of Cassa Depositie Prestiti Reti
{CDP RETI), 24% stake in Independent Power Transmission Operator (IPTO).

On 26 January 2015, the Company’s wholly owned subsidiary, State Grid Europe Development(2014)
Public Limited Company (“SGED"), completed the issuance of Euré Bend of EUR1,000,000,000. The
proceeds of this Issuance, net of fees and expenses, was used to refinance the Comipany's
indebtedness incurred due to the'acquisition of 35%-equity interest of CDP RETI.

On 17 October 2019, 775,525,500 ordinary shares of 1 GBP each for a total nominal value of
GBP775,525,500 were aliotted to the Immediate parent company at par value in exchange for an
extinguishment of debt. This impact resulted in a reduction in other payables.of EUR 885,000,000
and a corresponding increase in equity.

During the year 2019, the'Company has made an additional investment on financial assets. The non-
current.assets was therefore having an increase to EUR 2,879,436,782 (20187 EUR 2,859,976,123).

Key performance indicators
Investment performance is theé key financial-and performance indicator identified for this company.

The follewing table sets oitt a summary of selected operating information for2019 and 2018.

Period ended Period ended
31 December 2019 31 December 2019 Variance %

EUR EUR
Net Income 157,435,398 156,357,239 0.69
EBITDA 177,135,056 175,852,987 0.73

Compliance with Section 172 of the Companies-Act

The directors of the Company must act in accordance with a set of general duties in order to
promote the success of the Company for the benefit of Its members as a whole, These duties are
detailed in Section 172 of the Companies Act 2006 and are. sectionis relévant to our business are
summariséd bélow along with the actions undertaken by the Board to meet these requirements:



STATE GRID EUROPE LIMITED

Strategic Aims and likely consequences in the long term’

The strategy for achieving the Company’s objectivés is underpinned by investment performanice of
Its.underlying asscciate investments.

The directors also give consideration to the risks facing the business and regularly review these
taking the appropriate steps ta safeguard the interests of its investments and shareholders.

Employee interests.and involvement

The Company recognises that employees are fundamental and €ore to the busiriess. The success of
the business depends on attracting, retaining and motivating employees. The Company provided
employees with Information on mattefs of concerm to them,_cénsu]ti"ng them regularly; so that thelr
views &an be taken into- account when making decisions that are likely to affect theéir interests,
Employee involvement'in the Comipany is encouraged by regular employee meetings with directors.

Business relationships with customers, supplier and other stakeholders
The Comipany does not have customers or suppliers.

Regular interactions are held with management of the underlying associate Investments to gauge
investment performance and to keep up to date with latést developments in the sector. The Board
are invelved in setting the strategy and the subsequent menltoring.of performance against this:

The impact of the Company’s operations.on the community and environment.

State Grid Europe Limited i§ committed to making all reasonable efforts to minimise the impact
placéd on the environment as a result of business activities. As an organisation we seek to reduce
the burdén placed. on the environment through sustainable business practices by regularly
Teviewing the environmental aspects and impacts associated with the Company's activities.

The desirability of the company maintaining a reputation for high standards of business conduct

tt is.the Group’s policy to conduct all business in an honest and. ethical manner. We take a zero-
tolerance approach to bribery and corruption and are committed to- acting professionally, fairly and
with integrity in all our business dealings and relationships wheréever we operate, implementing and
enforcing effective systems to counter bribery and corruption. '

We also maintain an ongoing dialogue with the Company’s immediate’ owner through formal
communication of operational and financial information en a menthly basis, as. well as. through
numercus other interactions periodically through the year, We usé these interactions to ensure-that
both the strategic direction of the Company and the standards we maintain i conducting our
business is aligned with the Company’sablectives and those of our external stakeholders.

b3



STATE GRID EUROPE LIMITED

Principal risks and uncertainties

The Company aims to deliver sustainable value by identifying and responding successfully to risks.
Monitoring -and accountability for the management of these risks occur through quarterly
perforrance reviews ata group level.

The principal risks and uricertainties facing the Company-are:

Regulatoty fisks - The: Company’s electric and ‘gas netwaork assets are regulated by the

Televant government authorities; and the changes in regulatory environment and demands
may affect the Cornpany’s investment return. As the regulatory environments:continue to

evolve, new laws and regulations may be implemented and the Company’'s operations will
be subject to further reviews in aréas relating to pricing, costs, safety, compliance and, other
matters.

Credit risk - The maximum exposure te credit. risk is represented by the carrying amount of

each financlal asset in the statement of financial position after deducting any impairment

allowance. The Company does not provide any guarantees which would expose the
Company to credit risk.

Political risk: - Political risk is the risk associated with changes that occur to a country's
policies governing businesses, as well as external factors that could affect businesses, such
as the U.K.'s decision to leave the European Union (hereafter referred to “BREXIT”). Given
the company’s principal activity, BREXIT has’ limited impact on the company’s business. The
company has also considered the impact of dividend withholding tax after Brexit and the
Impact is considered to be ‘very limited. Therefore, BREXIT has limited impact on the
company. The company business operations could continue as-normal during the transition
period after UK's exit from the EU on 31st January, but new rules and changés may take
effect of the company at the end of transition period, the company and State Grid
International Development Limited {*SGID") group will.pay close attention te the progress
of BREXIT:and assess the Impact continuously.

By Order of the Board

A&

Li Haixiang

For and on behalf of
State Grid Europe Limited

29 September 2020

Registered Office:

Level 3, 40 Bank Street

London, E14 SNR
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STATE GRID EUROPE LIMITED.
DIRECTORS’ REPORY

‘Board'of Directors: L, Halxlang (From 5 December 20192
Wang, Ying
The directors present their rep,orf and the financial statements of State Grid ‘Europe Limited for the
year ended 31 December 201g.
Proposed dividends

The Company has deciared a dividerid of EUR 358,183,000 (paid EUR 156,000,000) during the year
(2018: ni}).

Customars and suppliers.

As the principal activity' of the Company is to make investments, the Company does not have
customers or suppliers, income is derived from investménts inr associates of which the key risk’is
considered to be COVID-19 which is ¢onsidered bélow.

Financial instruments

The Company haspurchased Industrial and Comtmercial Bank of China (ICBC) preference shares from
secondary.market at the fair value of EUR 19,472,315 {2018: Nil}. The fair value of the financial asset is
based ‘on market prices at the end of the shares quoted in Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
Limited (1CBC) at the end of reporting period. These financial assets are not held for shortterm
trading purposes.

Future developments

The ¢ompany will continue to purste appropriate investment opportunities in European regulated
energy networks sector. The company will also continue to provide operating, financing and
technology support to the assocciates and increase their value.

in addition, the company will. continue to-access the capital market to explore financing. alternatives
for its Investment, and to perform cash management by Trivesting and managing adequate financial
‘assets,

The directors aim to- maintain the management policies which have resulted. In the Company’s
growth since incorporation. They believe that the Company s in a good.position to-take advantage

of any opportunities.which may arise in the future.

It is the intention of the directors that the busiriess of the Company will continue for the foreseeable
future,

Directors

The present directors are listed on page 4 and all served as directors throughout the financial year,
except as disclosed helow:

Hu Yuhal (appointed on 8 fanuary 2016, resigned on 05 December 2019)
Warng Ying
Li Haixiang (appointed on 5 December 2019)

Wang Ying (s a UK resident.



STATE GRID EUROPE LIMITED
DIRECTORS’ REPQRT

Directors' indemnity

The Company indemnifies the directors in its. Articles of Association to the extent dllowed under
section 232 of the Companies Act 2006.

CovID-19

As coronavirus (COVID-1g) is having a significant impact on businesses and the economy in UK, the
company, therefore, may be impacted on liquidity risk:

Liquidity risk could be crucial when associates have no ability to pay dividends due fo the company,
‘and ‘the comipany may not be able to service the debt hald by its subsidiary company. SGED.
Hawever, the corﬁpany would have confidence this risk is suitably low, even in downside scenarios,
for the following the reasons: 1} associates’ businesses ‘are operated under well-established
regulatory frameworks that provide stable and visible ¢cash flows, and dividends from associates
have been received on time even during the COMID-19 lockdown period. 2) the Company Has
sufficient equity 3) the debt hold by its subsidiary company SGED is.guaranteed by SGID.

The directors have a reasonable expectation that the company has adequate reseurces to continue.
in apérational existence for the foreseeable future and at least 12 months from the date of signing
of these flnariclal statements; please see note 1.3 on page 16 for further details.

Political donations
The Company has rmade nil (2018: nil) political d_onation,s-.during the year.
.Auditor

Pursuant to-Section 487 of the Companies Act 2006, the auditor will be deemed to be reappointed
and KPMG LLP will therefore continue in office.



STATE GRID EUROPE LIMITED
SIRECTORS’ REPORT
Directors! statement as to the disclosure of information to the auditor

The directors who were members of the board at the time of approving the directors’ reportare
listed on page 5. Having made enquiries of fellow directors and of the'Company’s auditor, each of
these directors.cenfirms that:

s To the best of each director’s knowledge and belief, there is no Information relevant to the
preparation of thelr report of which the Company's auditor Is unaware; and

‘e Each director has taken all the steps a director might reasonably be expected to have taken to
be aware of relevant audit information and to establish that the Company’s auditor is aware of
that inforniation.

By Order of the Board

Li Haixlang

For and on behalf of
State Grid Europe Limited

29.September 3020
Registered Office:
Level 3, 40 Bank Street

London, E1z 5NR



STATE GRID EUROPE LIMITED

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS" RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE DIRECTORS’
REPORT AND THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are -respcnsible for preparing the. Strategic Report, the’ Directors’ Report and the
financial statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations.

‘Company, law requires the directors to prepare:financial statements for each financial year. Under
that law they have elected to prepare the financial.statements in accordance with Intemational
Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Urnion (IFRSs as.adopted by, the £U) and
applicablelaw.

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are
satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the profit or
loss of the company for that period. In preparing these financial statements; the directors are
required to:

e select suitable-dccounting policies and then apply them consistently;
« make judgements and estimates that are reasonable; relevant.and re liable;
¢ statewhetherthey have beén prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU;

& assess the company’s ability to. continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going.concern; and

s use the going concern basis of ,account‘inguuniess they elther intend to liguidate the company or
to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to.do so.

The directors are résponsible. for keeping adequate accaunting records.that are sufficient to show
and explain the company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
‘financial position of the company and enable them to ensure that the fihancial statements:comply
with the Companies Act 2006.. They are responsible for such internal control as they determine is
‘necessary to enable the preparation of financial staterrients that are free from materifal
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and have general responsibility for taking such steps
as are reasonably.open to them to safeguard the assets of the company and to prevent and detect
fraud and other irregularities.



STATE GRID EUROPE LIMITED
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TQ THE MEMBERS OF STATE GRID EUROPE LIMITED
Opinion
We have audited thefinancial statements of State Grid Europe Limited (“the company”) for the yearended
31 December 2019 which comprise the statement of .comprehensive income, statement of financial

position, statement of changes in equity, statemerit of cash flows and related notes, Including the.
accounting policies in note.s.

Inour opinion the financial statements:

» give a true and falr view of the state of the company's affairs as at 31 December 2019 and of its profit
for the year then ended;

¢ have been properly prepared in accordance with internatiorial Financial Reporting Standards .as
adopted by the Européan Union; and

* have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.
Basis for opinion

We conducted our-audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ISAs (UK)") and
applicable law.  Our responsibilities are described below. We have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities
under, and are independent of the company in accordance with, UK ethical requirements including the FRC
Ethical Staridard. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is a sufficient-and appropriate
basis for our opinion.

Going concerri

The directors have prepared the financial statements on the going concern basis-as they do not Intend to
liquidate the company or to cease its operations, and as they have concluded that the company’s financial
position means that this is realistic. They have also concluded that there are no material uncertainties that
could have cast significant doubt over its ability te.continue as a going concern for at least a year from the
date of approval of the financial statements (“the goirig concern period”).

We are required to report to you if we have concluded that the use of the going .concern basis of.
accounting is Inappropriate or there is.an undisclosed material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt
over the use of that basis for a period of at least a year from the date of approval of the financial
‘Staternents.  in.our evaluation of thé directors’ conclusions, we considered the inherent risks to the
company’s business model and analysed how those risks might affect the company's financial resources or
ability to continue operations over the going concem period:  We have nothing to report in these
respects.

However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent everits may resultin
outcomes that.are inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at'the time they were made, the
absence of refereiice to a material unicertainty in this auditor's report is not a guarantee that the company
‘will continue in operation.



STATE GRID EUROPE LIMITED
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS QF STATE GRID EUROPE LIMITED (continued)
Strategic report and directors’ report

The directors are responsible for the strategic report and the directors’ report. -Our opinion on. the

financial statements does not cover those reports and we do not expréss an audit opinion thereon.

Our responsibility is. to ‘read the. strategic Teport and the directors” report and, in doing so; consider

whether, based on our finantial statements audit work, the information therein Is materfally misstated or-

inconsistent with the financial statements or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work:

. we have not identified materfal misstatements in the strategic report.and the directors’ report;

. in our opinion the information given in-those reports for the. finaricial yéar is consistesit with the

financlal statements; and
. In our opinion those reports hiavé been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006,

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Under the Companies Act 2006, we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

. adequate accounting recards have not been kept; or returns adequate for our audit have not been

received from branches not visited by us; or

. the finaricial statemefts are not in agreermerit with the accounting records and returns; or
) certain disclosures-of directors’ remuneration specified by [aw are not made; or
e we have riot received all the information and explanatiens we require for our audit.

We have nothing to report in these respects.

Ditectors’ responsibilities

As .explained ‘more fully in their statement set out on page 7, the directors: are résponsfble far: the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view; such
internal control as they determine is necessary to-enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; assessing the company’s’ ability to
continue as a going concern; disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concem; and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the company or to cease

operations, or have no fealistic alternative but to do so.



STATE GRID EUROPE LIMITED
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF STATE GRID EUROPE LIMITED (continued)

Auditor’s responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a wheale are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or efror, and to issue our opinion in an auditor’s
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could

reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial

statements.

Afuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the FRC’s website at

www fre orguk/auditorsresponsibilities.
The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

This report is made salely to the company’s members, as a bady, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of
the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s
members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose.
To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the
company and the company’s members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we

have formed.

[Ylexender

Alexander Chong (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

66 Queen 5quare,

Bristol,

BS1 4BE

30 September 2020

10



STATE GRID EUROPE LIMITED
STATE GRID EUROPE LIMITED

Statemient of comprehensive in¢ome

For the year ended 31 December 2019

Notes Year Y:ear
2019 2018
EUR EUR
Dividend income 178,313,043 172,765,255
Otherincome. 7 1,494,834 182,240
Administrative and bther expenses (2,735,206) 2,903;693
OPERATING PROFIT 177,072,671 175,941,188
Financial expenses 4 (18;672,483) (18,647,835)
Exchange losses 3 62,385, (88,201)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 158,462,573 157,205,152
Income tak expense 5, (1,022,175) (847,913)
"PROFIT FOR THE YEAR. 157,435,398 156,357,239
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Items will not be reclassified to P&L:
Net change in fair value of financial assets at FVGC 73,595 .
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 157,508,993 156,357,239

All profits and losses included in the total comprehensive income for the year derive from activitles of a continuing.
nature,

The notes on pages 15 to 34 are an integral part of these financial statemeants:

11



STATE GRID EUROPE LIMITED
Statement of financial positlon

At 31 December 2019

NON-CURARENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Investment in subsidiaries
Investment in associates
‘Financlal assets

Long-terf deferted expenses
Totalnon-current assets
CURRENTASSETS

‘Cash-and cash equivalents
Other receivables

Total current assets
CURRENT LJIABILITIES
interest payable

Cther payablés and accruals
Total current liabilities

NET CURRENT LIABILITIES
TOTAL ASSETS LESS.CURRENT
LIABILITIES

NON:CURRENT LIABILITY
Loan payatle

Total non-riirrent liability

NET ASSETS

EQUITY

Share capital ‘

Other reserve

Retatned earnings
SHAREHOLDER'S FUNDS

STATE GRID EUROPE LIMITED.

Notas 31 December-2619 31 December 2018

EUR EUR

22,063 2,587

7 62,570 162,570

8 2,859,761,443 2,859,761,443

14 19,472,315 -

18,391 149,523

2,879,436,782 2,859,976,123

] 95,879,477 95,625,891

31,512 57:494

95,910,989 ‘95,683,385
" (16,578;493) (16,578,493)
10 12 {672,193,852) (1,337,501,581)
(688,772,345) {1,354,180,084)

{592,861,356) (1,258,496,699)

2,286,575,426 601,479,424

1" (996,944,919) {996;174,910)

{996,944,91g) {996,174,910)

1,289,630,507 605,304,514

13 897,768,438 12,768,438

73,595
391,785,474 59_'2;5361076
1,289,630,567 605,304,514

The hotes on pages 15 to.34 are-an integral part-of these financial statements.

The-financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and signed on their behalf on 29 September 2020

by:

Director

Li Halxtang

12



STATE GRID EUROPE LIMITED

STATE GRID EURCPE LIMITED

Statement of changes Inequity

At 31 December 2019

At 31 December 2018
Profit for the year

‘Net change in fair value of financial assets at
FvocC!

Total comprehinsive inceme for the year
‘Share capital issue
Distribution to shareholders

At 31.December 2019

At 31 December 2017

Profit for the year

Othier comprehensive for the year
Total'tomprehensive income for thel‘year

At 31 December 2018

The nates on. pages-15 to 34 are an integral part.of these financial statements

. _ Retained
Share capital Other reserve earnings Totai
EUR EUR EUR EUR
12,768,438 - 592,536,076 605,304,514
- - 157,435,398 157,435,398,
i 73,595 i 73,595
- 73,595 157,435,398 157,508,993
885,000,000 885,000,000
(358,183;,000) (358,183,000} .
897,768,438 73,595 391,788,474 = 1,289,630,507
Retained
Share-capital Other reserve ‘earnings Total
EUR EUR EUR EUR
12,768,438 436,178,837 448,947,275
- 156,357,239 156,357,239
- 156,357,239 156,357,239
12,768,438 593,536,076 605,304,514

13



STATE GRID EUROPE LIMITED
STATE GRID EUVROPE LIMITED
Statemerit of cash flows
Forthe year ended 31 December 2019

‘Year Year
Notes 201y 2018
EUR EUR
Qperating activities.
Profit before tax 158,462,573 157,205,152
Adjustments for:
Dividend income received (178,745,517) (172,947,495}
Investment jncome fromi financial assets: {1,062,360) -
[nterest expernise 18,620,009 18,605,722
Interest expense adjustment (770,009). {755,722)
Forelgn exchange (gains)flosses {62,385) 88,201
Decrease/(increase) in other receivables 25,9872 (20,440
Decrease in other payables {529,001) (10,‘171,4‘_26}
Decreasa [(increase) in long term deferréd expenses 31,131 {149,523)
Net cash outflow from operating activities (4,029,576) (8,245,531)
Investing activities
Investment in PP&E {19,476) (1,947)
Dividends received (net Of‘withholding'tax paid) 177,285,864 171,917,342
|nvestment'income' from firancial assets 1,062,360 ' -
Associated Diractors Fees 432,474 -182;240
Net cash inflowf(outflow) from investing activities 178,761,226 (172,6497,635)
Finareing, activities
Increasef(cdecrease) In otherpayables to parent 17,938,262 (55,836,411}
Dividends paid {156,000,000) -
Inérease in foan payable 770,009 755,712
Acquisition of financial assets (19,398,720) -
Interest paid (17,850,000) {12,850,000)
Net cash outflow from financing activities (174,546,549 (72,930,689}
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 191,201 91,091,415
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 95,625,891 4,652,677
Effect of forélgn exchange rate changes, net 62,385 (88,201)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 9 95,879,477 45,625,891

The notes.on pagés 15 to 34 are an integral part of thesefinancial statements.
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STATE GRID ELJROPE LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2019

1.

1.1

1.2

‘CORPORATE INFORMATION

State Grid Eurgpe Limited (the “Company™) is-a private company incorpaorated, domiciled and registered in

‘England in:the UK, incorporated as a private company on 11 November 2011. The registered number is

07844667 and the regzstered address is Level 3, 40 Bank Street, London E14 5NR. The issued share capital of
the Comipany is GBP785,525,560,

The principal activities of the'Company.are management, investment and financing,

The immeédiate parent of the-Company Is State Grid International Development Limited, whose registered
office Is:located at Siilte 1304, 13F, Great Eagle Centre, 23 Harbour Road,. “Wanchal, Hong Kong, and the
ultimate holding company is State Grid Corporation of China, whose registered office is located at 15 West
Chang An-Avenue, Xicheng District, Beljing, hina.

The flnancial statements of State Grid Europe Limited were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on
29 September 2020.

The Company Is exempt by virtue of s401 of the Companies Act:2006 from the requirement to prepare group
financial statements. These financial statefments presént informaticn about the Company as an Individual
undertaking and not about its group. Previdusly issued financial statémerits. have been group financial
statements-and this Is thé first year the Company has taken this exemption.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS)-as adopted by the European Union (EU) and in accordance with the provisions of the
Companles Act 2006. The accounting polidies set cut below have, unless ctherwise stated, been applled
consistently te all penods presented in thesefinancial statements.

ACCOUNTING CONVENTION

The financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis except that the, following assets and
liabilities are stated at their fair value: certain financial assets measured at fair value, The Company s fihancial
statémients are presented in Euro (“EUR”), which Is also the Company’s furictional currency,

15



STATE GRID EUROPE LIMITED.

STATE GRID EURCPE LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 Deceniber 2019

1.3

1.4

BASIS OF PREPARATION

As at'3i December 201y, the Company’s Statement of financial position had net current liabifities. amounitng
to EUR592,861,356(31 Becember 2018: EUR1,258,496,699). The financial statements havi been prepared on a

golng concerh basis which the directors consider to be appropriate for the following reasons.

The directors have prepared cashflow forecasts for a period of at least 12 months from the date-of approval
of these financial statements which indicate that, takmg acecount of severe but plausible downsides and.the

anticipated impact of COV(D-13 on the operations. and ics financial resources, the. Company will have sufficient

fundsto meet its liabilities as they fall due forthat:period.

Those forecasts are dependent on the company’s. immediate parent company- State Grid International
Developrent Limited (“SGID”) not seeking repayment of the amounts currently due to It by 'the Company,

‘which at 31 Décembét 2013 amounited to EURS72,193,852, and providing additional financial suppert during

that period. SGID has Indicated its intention to.continue to make -avaifable such funds as-ate needed by the
company, and that it does not intend to seek repayment of the amounts due at the ba!ance sheet date, for
the period covered by the forecasts, As with any company placing reliance on other group enfities for
financlal support, the directors acknow}edge that there tan be:no certalnty that this support will .continue
although, at the date of approval of these fmancnal statements, they have no reason to.believe that it-will not

-do so.

Consequently, the directors are confident thatthe company will have sufficient funds to continue to meet its
{iabilities as they fall due for at least 12 months from the date of approval of the financial statemerits and
therefore'have prepared the financial statements on-a going concern basis,

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

The Company has applied the following revised IFRSs for the first time for the periods-presented, which were
effective for.annual periods begirning on or after 1 January 2019. The Impact ¢f these adopted standards has
had no material‘.irhpar.t on these financial statements.

{FRS 16:Leases

Ot 13 January 2016 the [ASS published the new standard IFRS 18 wh‘ich-go.verns the accounting for I_ea_s_ing
contracts, replacing the previous IAS 17. Ameng the thanges the new standard, overcoming the distihction
between operating and financial leasing, bases the accounting preséntation on the: so:called “right of use”

approach, which for the lessee makes the accounting uniform far any type of leasing. At the mament of initial

measurement, that is at the date on which the'lessor makes the asset available to the lesseé, the latter must

recognise two. asset ftems with opposhte signs: the right to use the asset, among the assets and the payable.
for the leasing, among the labilities. IFRS 16 is applicable as from 01 January 2019, but eaﬂy application is-

pe‘rmfttedffo\r companles that adopt IFRS 15, (Revenue from contracts with custorners_).
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STATE GRID EUROPE LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2019

15 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE INFTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Company has not appiied‘the‘follow_ing new and re\.ris_ed'lFRSs,_ which have been issued but are not yet
effeitive, in thesefinancial statements.

*  Amendments to lAS 1 and IAS 8: Definition of Material (effective date 1 January 2020).

The .amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements is-tc clarify how. to classify debt and other
liabilities as current or non-current, The amendments, aim to promote censistency In applying the
requlrements by helping ‘companies determine whether; In the statement of financlal position, debt and
‘other llabllities with an uncertain settiement date should be classified as current (due or potentially-due to be
settled-within one year) or non-current.

The amendments - tc IAS B Accolnting Polities, Changes in Accounting Estimdtes und Etrors is to iritroduce a
definition of ‘accounting estimates’ and provide other clarifications to help éntities’ distinguish accounting
policies from accounting estimates.

* Amendments to IERS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7: Interest Rate Benchmark Reform (effective date to be
corfirmed):

The amendments to IFRS g Financial Instruments, |AS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.
and IFRS 7 Finahcial Instrurents: Disclosures Is to assist companies. In providing useful information. to
“investors about the effects of interest rate benchmark reform on financlal statements.

The main proposed amendments relate to:

e modifications—a company would riot derecognise or adjust the carrying amount of financial
mstmments for modifications requ1red by interest rate benchmark reform, but would nstead update-
the effective interest rate to reflect the change in the interest rate benchmark;

» hedge accaunting—a company would not discontinue its hedge accounting solely because of
replacing the interest rate benchmark if the hedgeé meéts.other hedge accounting criteria; and

‘s disclosures—a company would disclose information about new risks arising. from the: interest rate
benchmark reform and how itrmanages the transition to alternative berichmark rates.
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NGTES. TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December.2019

1.6

'SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES'

Recognition and Initlal measurement

Trade receivables and débt securities issued are inftially recognised when they are oiiginated. All cther
firiancial assets and financlal liabllitles are Inltlally recognised when the company becomes a party to the

‘contractual provisions of the instrument.

Aflnanclal asset (unless It is a trade recelvable without a significant flnancing carnpenéent} or financial fiability
& initfally measured at fair value plus, for anitem not at FYTPL, transaction casts that'are directly attributable
to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable w:thout a 5:gmflcant financing component is-initially measured at_
the transattion price.

Financial assets
Classification and subsequént medsurement
On initial récognition;, a financial asset is classified as measured at:amortised cost, FVOCI or FVTPL.

Financial assets are not reclassified subséquent to their initial recognition unless the Cornpany. changes its
business. maodel for. managing financial assets ih which case all affected financial assets are reclassified on the
first day-of the first reporting period following the change in the business.model.

Afinancjal:asset is measured at amortised cost If It meets both of the followling conditions:
» jtis held within a business model whose objective.is to hold assets to collect contractuat cash flows;
and
= itscontractual terms give rise on sp'ecl‘fied datés to cash flows that are salely'payménts of principal
and Interest ot the pringipal amount outstanding,
A debt investment Is measured at FVOC! if it meets both of the following Londitlons:
% (tisheld within a business madel whose abjective is achieved by bath collécting contractual cash
flows-and selling financlal assets; and
* jts contractualtérms give rise on-specified dates to cash flows'that aré-solely payments of principal

and Interest on the principal amount outstariding.

.On initial recognition of an equity mvestment that is-not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably elect

1o present subsequent changes in the investment’s fali value in GCL. This eléction Is made on an investment-
by-Investment basis. All fihancial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOC! as described
above are measured af FYTPL.

Investments in associates anid subsldlaries-are carried at ¢ost less impalrment.

-Cash and cash equlvalents

Cash and ¢ash equivalents cormprise cash balances and callf deposits. Bank overdrafis that are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Company’s cash management are Included as a component of cash
and cash-equivalents for the purpose only of the cash:flow statement.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-

31 December 2019,

1.6 SUMMBARY OF SICNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

Finangial instruments (continued)
Subsequent measurement and gains-and losses.

Firiancial assets at FVIPL - these assets (other than derivatives designated as hedging instrurents) are
'subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, Including any interest or-dividend income, are
recognised in profit of loss.

Financlal assets at amortised cost - These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. The afnortised cost is reduced by impairment lossés. Interest income, foraign
.exchange gains and losses’and impalrment are recogrised {h profit or loss. Any galm or loss on derecognition
is recognised in profit-or lbss:

Equity investments at FVOC! - these assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognised

as Income in proﬁt or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the
Investment. Other net galns and losses are recognised in OCI and-are never reclassified to profit or loss.

‘Financial Liabilities

Financial instruments issued by the Company are treated as equity only to the extent that they meet the
followin g two cenditions:

s they include no contractual obligations upan the Companyto deliver cash or other financial assets or
to-éxchange financlal assets or financial liabilities with another party under conditions that are
potentially unfavourable te the Company; and

e wherethe instrument will or may be settled in the Company’s own equilty instruments, it is either a
non-derivative that includes ne obligation to deliver a variable number of the Company’s own equity
instruments or Is-a derivative that will be settled by the Company’s excha nging a fixed amount of

cash or other financial assets for a fixed number of its own equity instrurments:

Ta the extent that this.definition is not met, the proceeds of issue are classified as a financial liapility. Where'
the instrument so classified takes the legal form of the Company’s own shares, the amounts presented In
these financial statementsfor called up share capital and $hare preiiium account excliude amounts.in relation
‘to those shares. |

Financial liabilities are classified as. measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as‘at.
FVTPL if It is'classified as held-for-trading, it Is a derivative or it is designated as such.on Initial recognition.
Financial liablities at FYTPL are imeasured at fair value and net. gains and losses, -including any interest
expense, are recdgnised in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities- are siibsequently measured at amortised-
cost using the- effectlve interest method. Intérest expense and foreign exchange gains -and losses are
recognlsed in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in profit.or.loss.
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b

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

impairment of Financial Assets

The comparnly recognises loss aliowances for expected credit losses (ECLs) on finandal assets measured at
amortised cost, finaricial ‘assats (preference shares) measured at FYOC! and contract assets (as defined in.
IFRS 15). )

The company measures loss aliowances at an amount equal to fifetime ECL, except for other debt secuiities
and bank balances for which credit risk (;e. the risk of default occurring over the expected Iife of the financlal
instrument) has not Increasad significantiy since initial recognition which are measured as 12-month ECL.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financlal asset has Increased significantly since nitial
recognition.and when estimating ECL, the company cansiders réasonable and supportable information that is
relevant ‘and available without undue cost or effort, This inciudes both quantitative: and qualitative
information and analysls, based on the company’s histbrical experience and informed credit assessment and
including forward-looking Information.

Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that-résult from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument.

12-month ECLs are the porfion of ECLs that result from default events that are possible within the 12 months
after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is lessthan 12 months).

The maxirhum period considered when estimating ECLs Is the maximum contractual period over which the
company s exposed to credit risk.

Megsurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-welghted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are.measured as the present value of
all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the -entity in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the company expects to receive). ECLs are discounted at the effective
inter&st rate of the financial asset.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of Impairment exists, or when annual impairment testing for-an investment accounted
for using the equity method is required, the asset’s récoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s récoverable
amount Is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and lts fajr value less costs to sell,
and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not genarate cash inflows that are largely
-independe_nt. of those .from other assets or groups of assets, in which «case the recoverable amount js
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset bejongs.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2019,

1.6

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {contih‘uedr)

Taxation

Tax'on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income
statement except to the extent that it relates to items: recognlsed directly in equity, in which case it is

recognised in equity. For income tax arjsing on dividends, the related tax is recognised in the income

statement, statement of other comprehensive income, orin equrty consistently with the transactions that

generated the distrlbutable profits.

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income-or 1055 for the year, using tax
rates-enacted or subsStantively enacted at the balance sheetdate¢, and any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of previousyears:

Deferred tax Is pravided on temporary differences between the carrying arounts of assets and liabilitles for

financial reporting purposes.and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The following temporary

differences are not provided for: ithe initial recognition of goadwill; the initial recognition-of assets or
llab{lities that, affect neither accounting nor taxable profit other thanina business.combination, and
differenices relating to.investments in subsidiaries to the extent that they will proba bly-not réverse in the
foreséeable future. The amount of deferred tax provided Is based on the expected manner-of réalisstion or
settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities; using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted

‘at the balance sheet date.

Adeferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it {5 probable that future taxable profits will be

‘available against which the temporary difference can be ustilised.

Cash arid cash equivals

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and

‘demand depbosits, and short term Highly liquid vestments that are readily convertible Into kndwn amounts

of ¢ash, are subject to aninslgnlficant risk of changes in.value, and have a-short maturity of generally within
three months when acquired, less bank éverdrafts which are repayable on demand.and form an integral part

of the Company’s cash management. For the purpose of the statement of financial position, cash and cash

equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including term- depos:ts, and assets similar In nature to cash
which are'not restricted as to use.

Dividend inec

Dividend income Is recognised when the shareholders’ right to receive payment has been established:

gt aricl
These financial statements are presented in Euros, which is the Company’s functional and presentation
eurrency.

Differences arising on'settlement or transfation of monetary items are recognised in the incomie statement.
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1.6 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Dividerid bavable:

Article 34 of the Company’s Articles of Association allows the Company to pay interim dividends If the
directors have made a recommendation as to its amourt,

Under Companies Act 2006 (the “2006 Act™), a company Is hot permitted to.make a distribution except out
of profits available for the purpose. (being its accumulated, realised profits, so faras rot previously utliised
by distribution or captta}:satlon lessits. accumulated realised losses, so far as not prevjously written off in a
reduction or reorganisation of capital duly made).

The-Company shall carefully: consider the profitability since the date of the last annual accounts, a more up
to date set of accounts drawn up to a ore recent date that Inclides those later realised profits in order to
.assess whether the Company’s profits available for distribution had béen eroded since that date ctherwisa
than by the making of distributioris. The Company shali carefully consider the effect of the' dividend would
have ©n the Company’s ability tc pay its. debts as they fall due, having regard to the entirety of the
Cofnpany’s businesses and the actual and contigent Yabllitles (present and future) inherent in that.
busingss.

When the distribution of dividend is approved by the Board of Directors, the Company- entalis the vecording
of.a payable in the financial statements for the period.

2 SIGNIEICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the finarcial statements réguires managefment to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported: amounts bf revénues, expenses, assets and liabiiities, and their
accompanylng ‘disclosures, -and the disdosure of contingent liabllities. Uncertainty .about these
assumptiohs and estimates could result in eltcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected In the future.

ju) ion all

The key assumptlons concerning the future and other key sources of éstimation uncertainty at the Statement.
of financial posit!on date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment o the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the néxt financial year, are-described below:

(a) impairiment-of investments In assaciates.

Investments In associates are tested for impalrment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value of- an investment may not be tecoverable: If any such inditation of impairment exists,
the Company makes an estimate. of its recoverable amount, Where the carrying amount of an investrient
-exceeds Its recoverable amount, the investment. Is considered impalred and is written down to its
recoverable-amount.

22



STATE GRID EUROPE LIMITED

STATE GRID EUROPE LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2019

¥ Exchange losses

Included in profitfioss are the following:

Foreign exchange (gains)/fiosses

4 NET FINANCE COSTS

Interest incomae
Interest expense

Others

5. TAX

{a) Analysis of tax charge

United Kingdom corporation tax

‘Adjustment in respect of prior periods

Greece corporation tax:
Withho!ding tax in respect of current pefiod

Total current tax {note 5(b))

Year.
2019

EUR

Year

2019

EUR

{(54)
18,620,009
52,528

18,672,483

Year
2019
EUR

1;027,175

Year
2018
EUR

(88,201)

Year

2018

EUR:

(20)

18—,60 5722
42,133
18,647,835

Year
2018

EUR

847,973
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5, TAX (continued)
(5) Factors affecting the tax charge

The tax dssessed on the profit-on ardi_nary'activifles‘- for the year differs from the standard rate of corporation
taxin the UK of 19%. The differences are recenciled belgw:

31 Decemnber 3019 31 Dacember 2018
EUR EUR
Profit.on o‘rd‘inar_y activities before tax 158,462,573 157,205,152
Tax'charge on.ordinary activities at UK tax rate (30,107,884) (29.‘,868..‘9'79)
bividend Income not-taxable 33,875,478 32,825,368
Other iricome taxable {284,018) (34,636}
Not-deductible expenses {2:806,996) {3,129,945)
{Unrecogrised tax losses)/tax losses utilised (680,575Y 208,151
withholding tax In respect of current period _(1,027,175). {847.413)
Total current-tax (note 5(a)) LO27.75 Bazsiz
(¢) Tax losses
Year Year
2019 2018
EUR EUR
Tax [dsses Brought forward, beginning of period 53,438,745 54;534,275
Tax lossés carried forward current year 3:581,972 -
Tax Losses utilised current year - (1,095,530)
‘Tax Losses carried forward, ending of period 57,020,712 53,438,745

Avreduction in the UK corporation tax rate from 19% to 17% (effective from 1 April 2020) was substantively
enacted on 6 September 2016, and the UK corporation tax as:at 31 December 2019 has been calculated
baser on this rate. In the 1 March 2020, Budget It was anmounced that the UK tax rate will remain at the,
current 19% and not reduce to*17% from 1.April 2020. This will have. a conseqiiential effect on the company’s

future tax charge.
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31 De¢ember-2019.

5. TAX (continued)

‘After fully considered the company's current business and operation, the company is of view that it is not
prudent to recognize deferred tax asset at this point in time. The Company considers the operating
strategy of the preference shares (see. note 14) is not for short-term trading purpeses, thus deferred tax
liabilities are not récognised.

& DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The tdta’l_ direct'ors" fee for the company and its wholly owned subsidiary State Grid Europe Development
{2014) Publlc Limited Company during the financial year is GBP 15,000 and-are borne by the company..

7 INVESTMENT [N SUBSIDIARIES

Summary of results and financial position

On 20 November 2014, thé Company registered a subsidiary in-England and Wales, namely State Grid Europe
Development (2014) Public Limited Companiy, with a.registeéred capital of GBP50,000 (56,000 ordinary shares
of 1'GBP- each for a total nominal ‘valye of GBP50,000) which was subsequently paid in' 2015. The entity was
set up for band issuance purpose.

Registered address

Level 3 g0 Bank Street, London, United Kingdom, E14 5NR

Company 31 Bacember 2613 31 December 2018
EUR EUR
Investment in subsidiary
50,000 GBP translated at 20 Navember.2014, rate of

exchange of Euro 1.2514/GBP 62,570. 62,570
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8

INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES.

2019 2018
Cost EUR EUR
At1 January -2,859,761,443, 2,859,761,443
At 31 December 2,859,761,443 2,859,761,443

On 31 May 2012, ‘the Company completed the acquisition of 25% of the share capital of Redes Energeticas
Nacionals, SGPS, 5.A. engaged inoperating electric and natural gas transmissmn grid-and listed on the Portugal
Stock Exchange.

Qn 27 Novemiber 2014, the Company completed the acquiéit_:’on_ of 35% of the share capital of Cassa Depositie
Prestitl Retl, an. italian electric 'and gas network holding company. In ltaly, CDP RETI holds a 29.85% equlty
Interest in Terna , a 30.10% equity interest in SNAM and a 26.04% equity interestin ITALGAS. Terna s a hatfonal
electricity transmission company In italy, the largest independent network opérator in Europe and one of the
leading operators in thé warld by km of managed line. SNAM is a naticnal fatural _Bas company -in [taly,
engaging in regulated businesseés such as gas transmissicn, gas storage and regasification. ITALGAS, previously
part. of SNAM Group, is the |eading Italian natural gas: transportation and dispatching operator, and owns
almost alt the transportation infrastructures in italy and the third in Europa. In the opinien of the Directors; the
value of ihe Investments N associates are not less than the amount at which they are carried in the financial
statements.

On 26 Juné 2017, the Company coimipletéd the acquisition -of a 24% stake in Indépendent Power Transmission
Operator. IPTO:is-thé only transmission operator which owns and ‘operdtes the national power transmission
networkin Greece.

On 7 December 2017, the Company engaged the subscription of share capital incredse of REN-Hedes
Energeticas Nacionals, SGPS, 5.A.. After the subscription , the Company’s share holding at REN remains at 25%.

The associated undertakings of the Campany at 31 December 2019 and ﬁwe.pgrcenfage_‘.of equity .capital held
are set out below. The principal country of operation is generally Indicated by the Company's country of
incorporatioh or by its name.

. . , Class of . Country of :

S50Ci | ' ) Prin v
Associated undertaking shares held incorporation rincipal activity

REN-Redes Enérgeticas . . s . S

- il ! 25% | . : d
Nacionals, SGPS, 5. Ordihary 5 Portuga Electric and gas neétwork gri
‘Cassa Depositi e Prestiti ) o :
Ordinary 35% Italy Electsic and gas network grid

Retl S:p.a.

(ndependent Pawar ‘Ordinary 24% Greece Electric transmission hetwirk

Transmission Operator
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31 Decemiber 2019

8 INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES {¢ontinued)

The following table illustrates the summarised financial information of the Company’s assoclates, extracted
from their audited financial statements. The below figures-of CDP RET! are inclusive of the non:controlling

‘interests.
Year 2019
EUR
REN S5.p.A. CDP RETI S.p.A. IPTO
Assets 5,305,305,000 57,500;604,000. 2,932,201,000
Liabilities 3,859,160,000 -42,088,898,000 1,602,295,000
Revénues 786,763,000 6,900,526;,000 244,778,000
Profit, 118,859,000 1,911,691,600 "105,593,000.
Year 2018
EUR
REN 5.p.A. CDP RETI S.p.A. IPTO
Asse'ts_ 5,191,574,000 54,013,006,000 3,112,596,000
Liabilities- 3,727,737,000 39,187,573,000 2,084,589,000.
Revenues 727,207,000 6,524,477,000 249,236,000
Profit 115,215,000 1,732,892,000 85,868,000
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g9 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
31 December 2019 31-Deécember 2018
EUR EUR
Cash and gash equivalents .95.879.477 95.625.801

Short term time deposits are made for varying perlods of between one day and three months depending on
the immediate cash requirerents of the Company. The bank balances are ‘deposited with creditworthy banks
with notecent history of default. The carrying amounts of the cash and cash equivalents approximate to their
fair vafues.

10 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

31 December 2019 31 Décembar2018

EUR EUR

Dividend payabie 202,183,000 -
Other payablesto the immediate parent 479,010,852 1,337,072,590
Other . 525,001
672,193,855 1.337,601,591

The amount in 2019 has changed significantly in comparisen with the figure In 2618 due 1o the:
Company has allotted 775,525,500 ordinary shares of 1 GBP each for a total nominal value of
GBP775,525,500 to.the immaediate parent cornpany at parvalue

‘Other payables to the ilmmediate parentare nori-nterést-bearing with no fixed terms of repayment.
The Comipany believes that the carrying amounts are a reasonable appreximation to the fair valie.

For further information on'dividend payable, please refer to Notg 12.
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11

BONDS, LOAN AND INTEREST PAYABLE

Loan payable’
- Loan value
-+ Ipitigl issue costs

- Accumulated accretion

“Total

Interest payable:

31.Decembyer 2019

EUR

1,000,000,000

3 December 2018

EUR

1,000,000,000

{6,715,000) (6,715;000)
3,659,919 2,889,910
996,944,519 996,174,910
16,578,493 16,578,393

On 26 January 2015, The Compafiy entered Inter-company loan -agreement with State Grid Europe
Developimient (2014) Publi¢ Limitéd Company which is an indirect, wholly owned subs:dlary of the Company.
SGED completed a publlc issuance of long term guaranteed bonds with a face value:of EUR7o00 miliion and
EUR3do million. All éxpenses incurred by SGED are borné by the Company. The details of the guaranteed

bonds are listed as bélow:.

a EUR7oc million guaranteed bond will be due in 2033, carrles coupon interest at a rate of 1.50% per year,
and bears éffective Interest at a rate of 1.5781% per ‘year; Coupon interests are paid annually on 26

Januaty;

b  EUR300 million guarantéed bond will be due in 2027, carries coupon interest at a rate ‘of 2.45% pét year,
.and bears effectlve Interest at a raté of 2.5516% per year. Coupon. interests-aré paid annually on 26

Janyary.
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12

13

DIVIDEND PAYABLE

Article 34 of the Company’s Articles of Association allows the Company to pay interim dividends if the
directors have made a recommendation as ta its amount. '

Under Cornpanies Act 2006 (the #2006 Act™), a company Is not permiitted to make a distribution excépt out
of profits avallable for the purpose (being its accumuiated, realised profits; so far as not previously utilised
by distribution or capitalisation, fess.its accumulated realised losses,:so faras not previously written off In a
reduction or rearganisatien of capital duly made).

The-Coinpariy has carefully considered the profitability since 31 January 2019 in -order to assess-whether the
Company’s profits avallable for distribution had beeri eroded since that date otherwise than by thé making

.of distributions. It was rioted that, since it was proposed that-the dividend may fnot be paid immediately,
‘tha Company would be required to undeitake a further assessment of profitability to the extent they-are or

will'at such relevant-time be aware of anly matters that might resultin the Company making a loss.

The Company has considered carefully the effect of the dividend would have on the Company’s ability to
pay its debts as they fall dye, having ragard to the entirety of the Company's businesses and the actual and
contingent liabilities (present and future) inherent in that business.

Pursuant to the authorit‘y ‘given by Article 34 of the-Company’s Articles of Assoclation and section 291 of the
Companies Act 2006, the Company’s Board ‘of Directors approved -the distdbution of a dividend of
CNY2,728,308,274.40 (equivalent to EUR3_58,183,000_.00)-to.be paid to the sole member of the Company.

The Company paid the partlal-dividend (EUR156,000,000,00) in respect of cash balances in-2019.

31December 2019 31 Decernber 2018
EUR EUR
Dividend payable 202,183,000 -
SHARE CAPITAL
Zompany 31 Decernber 2019 31 December 2018
EUR EUR
Allotted, called up and fully paid
50,000 ordinary shares of GBP1.00 each atn
November 201, rate of exchange of Euro 1.165/GBP _ 58,438 58,438
9,950,000 ordinary shares of GBP1.oo.each at18
Novermnber 2034, rate of exchidnge of Euro1.277/GBP 12,710,000 1710,000
775,525,500 ardinary shares of GBP1,0g each at 47
October 2019, rate of exchange of Euro-1.141/GBP 885,000,000 -
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31 December 2019

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

On 11 Névember 2011, 50,000 ordinary shares of 1 GBP each for a total naminal value of GBP50,000 were
aliotted t'd,thé'immediate parent company at par value.

On 18 November 2014, 9,950,000 ordinary shares of 1 GBP each for a total nominal value of GBPg,550,000
were allotted to the immediate parent company at par value.

On 17 Octaber.2019, 775,525,500 ordinary:shares.of 1 GBP each for a-total nominal value of GBP775,525;500
were allotted to the immediate pafent company at par vaiue, in &xchange for extinguishment of debt owed
to the immediate parént company of the same value.

Capital management

The Company monltprs capital uslng a gearing.ratio, which [s net debt divided by equity-plus net
debt. Net debt s calculated as the total of amount due to the immedlate parent, less cash and’
cash eqyi\iaients Capita! includes equity att_r:buta_ble to owners of the Company.

31 Decemnber 2019 31 Decembeér 2018

EUR EUR
Dividend payable 262,183,000 -
Other payablés and accruals 470,010,852 1,337,601,591
Bonds payable 996,944,919 996,174,910
Less: Cash and cash:equivalents (95,879,477} {95,625,801)
Net debt 1,573,259,294 2,238,150,610
Equity 1,289,630,507 605,304,514
Net debt and equity 2,862,889,801 2,843,455,124
Gearingratio '55% 79%

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company’s ability to continue as a
golng concern in order to provide refurns for-shareholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of cdpital.

The Corhpany manage: their capital structure and make adjustments to therh in light of chariges in economic
conditians. To maintain or adjust the.capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to
shareho!ders, return capital to shareholders;. issue new shares or sell ‘asséts to'reduce debt. No- changes in
the abjectives, pollcles or processes for.managing capital were made during the year ended 31 December
2018,
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Finaricial assets

‘31 December 2019 31 Dacember 2018
Financial assets measursd at fair value through-ether
compreliensive [ncome -EUR EUR
List of-financial assets, at fair value
Preferenceshares of ICBC 19,472,315 -
19,472,315

The abova financial asset is measured at fair value through otheér comprehénsive income as thé Company
considers the operating strategy of this asset Is not for short-termtrading purpose.

During the year, the fair value gain in respect of the Company’s #isted financial asset was récognized inother
comprehensive Income amounted to EUR73,595(2018: Nil).

The fair values of listed financial asset Is based on market prices at the end of the shares quoted in Industrial
and Commercial Bark of China Limited (ICBC) ‘at the end of reporting period.. The i1SIN number is:

X511423808’20
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLIGIES

The Company’s exposure to credit risk, and liguidity risk arises in the normial course of thejr business. Thése
risks are managed by the parent company financial management policles and practices described below:

Credit risk

The carrying amounts-of cath and cash eguivalents and ‘other ',c;urren"c assets except. for prepayments,
represent thé. Company’s. maximum exposure to credit risk in-relation to financial assets. All the Company’s
cash and cash equivalents are hield at major finandial institution,-which- managemerit believes are. of high
credit quality.

Liquidity risk

The Company alms to maintain sufficierit cash and credit lines. to meet their liquidity requirements. The
Company findnces its working capital requiremerits through a combination of funds genérated from
operation and amounts doe to a fellow subsidiary.

32



STATE GRID EUROPE LIMITED

STATE GRID EUROPE LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2019

15 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
The maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities as at'the end of the reporting period, based on the:
contractual undiscounted payments, Is as-follows:
31 December 2019

Less than'1 year 2-5vyears Mare than 5 year

EUR: EUR EUR
Dividend payable -202,183,000 - -
Interest payable 16,578,493 - -
ther'payables due toimmediate parent-
company 470,040,852 - -
Loan payable. - 698,894,279 298,050,640
31 December 2018:
Lessthan s year 2-5 years. More than 5 year
EUR EUR EUR
Interest payable 16,578,493 - -
Other payables due to immediate parent
company 1,337,072,590° - -
Other payables due to others 529,001
Loan payable - 698,373,001 397,801,909
The carfying amounts and fair values of the financlal Instruments are as foliows:
Company: Carrying amounts Fairvalues Carrying amounts Fair values
2019 2018 2018 2018
EUR EUR' EUR EUR
Financial assets: 19,368,720 19,472,315, - -
Cash and ¢ash
equivalents 95,879,477 95,879,477 95,625,891 95,625,891
Other receivables 31,512 31,512 57,494 ‘57,494
Financial liabilities:
Dividend payable 202,183,000 202,183,000 - ;
Other payables and 470,010,852 470,010,852 1337,601,501  1,337,601,591
accruals
interest payable 16,578,493 16,578,493 16,578,493 16,578,493
Loan payable. 996,944,919  1,051,693,000 996,174,910 996,174,910
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

The fair_»:val_ues of the financial assefs and liabllities are iricluded at the amount at which the instrument could,
be éxchanged in ‘a-normal transaction between willing parties, other than in.a-forced 6r liquidation sale. The
fair values of bonds and loans payable are based on the discounted value of future cash. flows using
applicable rates for similar type of 1oans and these approximatés the carrying amounts. The fair valye ‘of
other financial assets and liabilities approximate their carrying amounts due-to the short term nature and
collectability,

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company entered inter-company loan ‘agreement with State Grid Eufope Development {2m4) Public
Limited Company, which is-an indifect, wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. SGED completed a pubiic
issuance of long term guaranteed. bonds with a face value of EUR700 million and EUR306 tnillion . Afl
expenses incurred hy SGED are borne by the Company, including the interest payment of EUR 17,850,000
(2018: EUR 17,850,000) which shauld be directly paid to the bondholders.

The amount of liability payable owed to SGIiD has been reduced to EUR 470,010,852 (2018: EUR 1,337,072,590)
during the currant financial year.

AUDIT FEE

The audit fee for the Company Is EUR 35,426 (2018: EUR 33,373) exchuding taxes and paid by State Grid Europe
Limited.
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Independent auditor's report
To the members of State Grid International Development Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of State Grid international Development Limited (the
“Company’) and its subsidiaries (the “Group™) set out on pages 8 to 126, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2019, and cof its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA™).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“"HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA,
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit
of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the "Code™), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit
addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’'s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit
included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the
procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.



Independent auditor’s report (Continued)
To the members of State Grid international Development Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Key audit matters (Continued)

Key audit matter

| How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Impairment of goodwill

Included in the consolidated statement of financiai
position is a goodwill balance of HKS 13,517 millien
as of 31 December 2019,

The Group is required to, at least annually, perform
impairment assessments of goodwill. For the
purpose of performing impairment assessments,
goodwill has been allocated to cash generating unit
(“"CGU™). The impairment testing was performed by
comparing the recoverable amount of the CGU and
the carrying amount of the CGU. The determination
of the recoverable amount of the underlying CGUs
involved estimates and judgments, including future
revenue, production costs, operating expenses, and
the growth rate used to estimate future cash flows
and discount rate applied to these forecasted future
cash flows of the underlying CGUs. These estimates
and judgments may be affected by unexpected
changes in future market or economic conditions or
discount rates applied.

The Group's accounting poilcies and estimation of
goodwill impairment are disclosed in Notes 2.5 and
3, and details of the Group’s impairment testing of
goodwill are disclosed in Note 15 to the consolidated
financiai statements.

We obtained an understanding, evaluated the
design, and tested the operating effectiveness of
management's key controls aover the impairment
assessment process.

We also assessed the reasonableness of key
assumptions used in the calculations, comprising
future revenue, production costs, operating
expenses and growth rate. When assessing these
key assumptions, we discussed them with
management te  understand and evaluate
management’'s basis for determining the
assumptions. We also involved our valuation
experts to assist us in assessing the
reasgnableness of the discount rate used by
management.

We evaluated management's sensitivity analysis
around the key assumptions, tc ascertain that
selected adverse changes to key assumptions, both
individually and in aggregate, would not cause the
carrying amount of the CGU to exceed the
recoverable amount of CGU.

We also assessed the adequacy of the Group's
disclosures included in Note 2.5, Note 3 and Note
15 {0 the consolidated financial statements.




Independent auditor's report (Continued)

To the members of State Grid International Development Limited

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Key audit matters (Continued)

Key audit matter

| How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Revenue recognition in the requlatory environment

The Group mainly operates in the regulatory
industry of Brazil and Australia related to
electricity distribution and transmission.

9] In the electricity distribution industry of
Brazil, unbilled revenue recognized by the
Group corresponds to the electricity
distributed, but not billed to the consumers, and
its hilling is measured based on the reading
cycles that, in some cases, exceed the period of
accounting closing. The recognition of the
unbilled revenue takes into consideration all of
the historical data, the systems configuration,
as well as Group’s judgments in order to
estimate the consumption by consumers.

2) In the electricity transmission industry
of Brazil, the recognition of construction
revenue requires the exercise of significant
judgment about when the customer obtains
control over the asset. In addition, measuring
the Group's progress In satisfying the
performance obligation over time also requires
the use of significant estimates and judgments
by management to estimate the efforts or
inputs required to meet the performance
obligation, such as materials and labour,
expected profit margins, or lack of expected
profit margins, on each performance obligation
identified, and expected revenue projections.
The identification of the discount rate that
represents the financial component embedded
in future cash inflows also reguires the use of
judgment by management.

(1) We evaluated the design, implementation, and
effectiveness of key internal controls related to the
determination of the amount of the revenue recognised
from energy distributed, but unbilled. We involved
component auditor's technelogy specialists to evaluate
the systems and the technology envircnment used in
the determination of the balances recorded. We
analysed the key assumptions used by the Group in the
development of such estimates, such as the technical
and commercial losses index. in addition, we tested the
integrity and accuracy of the data used in the
calculation and performed a valuation test, by
comparing the amounts recognized by the Group with
assumptions resulting from component auditor’'s
independent auditing tests.

(2) We assessed the design of key internal controls
related to the costs incurred to perform the contract.
We analysed whether or nof there is contractual margin.
We analysed the service concession arrangement and
its amendments to identify contractual performance
obligations, as well as aspects related to the variable
components applicable to the contract price. We also
reviewed the ‘projected cash flows, significant
assumptions used in costs projections and in defining
the discount rate used in the model with the support of
subject matter experts in company valuation.




Independent auditor’s report (Continued)

To the members of State Grid International Development Limited

{incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Key audit matters (Continued)

Key audit matter

] How our audit addressed the key audit matter

(€)) In the electricity distribution industry of
Australia, estimates are reguired for the
consumptions and the tariffs used for revenue
accrual model; these estimates include tariff
determined by the government with rcutine
revision, weather conditions and consumption
patterns. In the infrastructure industry of
Australia, estimate are required for the forecast
revenue and costs to complete, stage ¢f project
completion, and recoverability of unapproved
variatiocns and claims.

The Group's accounting policies and estimation
of revenue recognition are disclosed in Notes
2.5 and 3, and details of the Group's revenue are
disclosed in Note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Revenue recognition in the regulatory environment (Continued)

3 We assessed the controls relating fo
infrastructure service revenue and compared the
forecast revenue and cost assumptions against source
documents including approved project budgets and bid
documents. We reviewed the assessment of the
relevant requlatory determinations by the Group, in
conjunction with the Component auditor’'s regulatory
specialists. We compared the system tariffs charged to
customers to regulator approved tariffs. We analyse the
revenue against historical performance, regulatory
determinations, and energy consumption data. We
involved component auditor's information technology
specialists to test the key controls in the revenue
process and assessed the reasonableness of the
unbilled revenue methodology and assumptions applied
against industry standards and practice. We compared
a sample of accrued revenue balances te subsequent
customer billings.

We also assessed the adequacy of the Group's
disclosures included in Notes 2.5 and 3 and Note 5 to
the consolidated financial statements.




Independent auditor’s report (Continued)

To the members of State Grid International Development Limited

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Key audit matters (Continued)

Key audit matter

[ How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Recoverability of deferred tax assets

As at 31 December 2019, the Group recognised
deferred tax assets of HKS 3,174 million. The Group
recognised these deferred tax assets to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available to utilise the deferred tax assets. The
recognition of the deferred tax assets was significant
to our audit because the amounts are material, and
the estimation of future taxable profits is complex
and judgmental and is based on assumptions that are
affected by unexpected changes in future market or
economic conditions.

The Group's accounting policies and estimations on
deferred tax assets are disclosed in Notes 2.5 and 3,
and details of deferred tax assets are disclosed in
Note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

We obtained an understanding, evaluated the
design and the operating effectiveness of
management’'s key controls over the recognition
and recoverability assessment of deferred tax
assets.

We compared the key assumptions used in the
forecast with the legal framework (in particular tax
rates and the possible utilisation of loss carry
forwards), We involved component auditor's
corporate finance specialists to help us in analysing
the reasonableness and consistency of the data and
assumptions and of the methodologies used by the
Group for the projection of future taxable income,
particularly those related to the projected
economic growth, volume, and price of sales of
energy, and the discount rates, and we compared
with the data obtained from external sources. We
also involved component auditor's tax specialists to
evaluate the calculation in which the current tax
rates are applied.

We also assessed the adequacy of the Group's
disclosures included in Notes 2.5 and 3 and Note 22
to the consclidated financial statements.




Independent auditor's report (Continued)
To the members of State Grid International Development Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internai control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the Company are responsible for assessing
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directers of the Company either intend to liquidate
the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the management in discharging their responsibilities for
overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.

Auditor’'s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Cur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liahility to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:
+« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consclidated financial statements,

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resuiting from error,
as fraud may invelve collusion, forgery, intentional ocmissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

+ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group's internal cantrot.

s« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reascnableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

= Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. if we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinien. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underiying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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Independent auditor's report (Continued)
To the members of State Grid International Development Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited lability)

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financlal statements (Continued)
As part of an audit In accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also (continued):

s Obtain sufficlent appropriate audit evidence regarding the financlal information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financlal statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion,

We communicate with the management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the management with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding Independence and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our Independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the management, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public
disciosure about the matter or when, In extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonabiy be expected
to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting In this independent auditer's report Is Tong Ka Yan, Augustine.

Emat & Ve
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

12 June 2020

A member firm of Ernst & Young Globat Limited



STATE GRID INTERNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
Year ended 31 December 2019

REVENUE
Cost of sales
Gross profit

Other income and gains

Selling expenses

Administrative expenses

Impairment losses on financial and contract assets
Finance costs

Foreign exchange differences, net

Share of profif of associates

Share of profit of joint ventures

Other expenses

Profit before tax
Income tax expenses
Profit for the year
Attributable to:

Owners of the parent
Non-controlling interests

Notes

10

2019
HK$'000

77,720,061

(568,203,270)

19,516,791

3,206,005
( 981,446)
( 2,641,401)
( 461,407)
( 5,926,554)
( 482,52%9)
4,418,199
1,300,372
( 3.054,981)

14,893,049

((3,784,766)

11,108,283

10,157,780
__ 950,503

11,108,283

2018
HK$'000
Restated

87,989,304

(69,542,632

18,446,672

3,038,700
( 976,760)
( 2,544,211)
( 366,425)
( 6,046,355)
( 723,752)
4,479,534
1,701,221
(1,177,447

15,831,177

(_3.251.782)

W
i3]

12,579,39

11,759,294
_ 820,101

Details of dividends payable and proposed for the year are disciosed in Note 11 to the consolidated financial

statements.



STATE GRID INTERNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Year ended 31 December 2019

2019
HK$000
Profit for the year 11,108,283
Other comprehensive income
Other comprehensive income that may be reclassified to
profit or loss in subseguent periods:
Net gain on hedge of a net investment, net of tax 408,376
Net loss on cashflow hedge, net of tax ( 857,811}
Exchange differences on translation of foreign
operations, net of tax (5,028,814)
Other comprehensive income from associates 37,937
Other comprehensive income from joint ventures ( 98,646)
Credit risk in mark to market of financial liabilities 2,180
(5,541,138)
Other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss in subsequent periods:
Change in fair value of equity investments designated at fair
value through other comprehensive income 239,309
Other comprehensive income from associates 16,939
Other comprehensive income from joint ventures 76,837
Actuarial reserve on defined benefit plans (1,743,869
( 1,410,784)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax ( 6,951,922)
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 4,156,361
Attributable to:
Owners of the parent 4,414,754
Non-controlling interests (258,393
4,156,361

2018
HKS$'000
Restated

864,176

( 189,925}

(19,035,514}

( 245,815)
( 1,956)
38,680

(18,570,354)

( 1,441,668)

17,982

106,596

(_ 509,665)

(1,826,755)

(20,397,109)

_1,817.7]

||-
P

)

( 6,311,262}
( 1,506,452)

(7,817,714



STATE GRID INTERNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

31 December 2019

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Investment properties

Right-of-use assets

Goodwill

Other intangible assets

Investment in associates

Investment in joint ventures

Equity investments designated at fair value
through other ccmprehensive income

Other equity instrument investments

Financial assets - concessjon rights

Derivative financial assets

Deferred tax assets

Sector financial assets

Contract assets

Other non-current assets

Total non-current assets

Current assets

Inventories

Trade receivables

Contract assets

Sector financial assets

Prepayments, other receivables and other assets
Derivative financial assets

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Cash and cash equivalents

Totai current assets

Current liabilities

Trade payables

Cther payables and accruals
Derivative financial liabilities
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
Lease liabilities

Contract lizbilities

Sector financial liabilities
Private pension plan

Tax payable

Provision

Total current liabitities
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES

Notes

12
13
14
15
16
17
18

1%
i9
20
21
22
23
24
25

26
27
24
23
28
21
29
30

31
32
21
34
14
35
23
36

37

10

31 December

31 December

2019 2018
HKS$'000 HK5'000
Restated
67,195,958 68,802,706
164,183 175,798
588,691 -
13,516,609 13,980,150
43,288,824 47,130,797
48,277,900 48,321,508
20,622,048 20,941,018
10,171,299 9,762,744
244,031 249,592
16,983,494 15,070,775
3,719,590 3,193,760
3,173,866 3,289,486
5,311 452,573
38,979,486 37,280,871
8,088,918 7,637,128
275,020,208 276,288,906
326,991 336,520
10,692,714 9,977,067
5,851,833 4,582,525
2,113,249 2,690,578
3,003,400 3,315,457
556,662 628,113
1,644,481 -
16,613,927 _8,503,198
40,803,257 30,033,458
6,874,728 6,353,441
7.538,634 5,942,380
85,912 57,348
32,034,531 30,042,479
153,135 6,656
689,115 673,184
434,501 175,108
705,297 430,684
1,018,511 1,047,413
49,534,364 _44,728,693
( 8,731,107 (14,655,235)

266,289,101

1 January
2018
HK5'000
Restated

76,763,417
210,613

15,984,804
57,264,536
49,938,655
23,186,621

11,204,413
284,059
14,987,164
2,363,778
4,077,924
837,736
27,071,697
_ 7,881,792

321,317
10,822,200
3,223,692
497,526
3,916,790
1,297,335

9,311,165
6,769,520
190,387
36,892,384
6,073
996,059
94,654
143,478
421,859
1,027,579
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STATE GRID INTERNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CONSOQLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)

31 Pecember 2019

Notes
Non-current liabilities
Derivative financlal liabilities 21
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 34
Lease liabilities 14
Contract liabilities 35
Sector financial liabllities 23
Private pension plan 36
Deferred tax liabilities 22
Provision 37
Other non-current liabilities
Total non-current liabllities
Net assets
EQUITY
Equity attributable to owners of the parent
Share capital 38
Reserves 39

Non-controlling interests

Total equity

A e Te—

Li Haixlang
Director

1]

1

i

31 December 31 December 1 January
2019 2018 2018
HK$"000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Restated Restated

1,431,482 604,304 1,083,879
86,879,810 90,296,959 75,167,798
620,678 261,694 303,271
83,602 98,496 52,517
198,190 94,410 19,787
4,161,089 2,338,146 2,077,474
24,887,233 25,605,131 28,017,152
6,637,268 6,678,108 8,300,898
2,264,176 1,804,141 1,581,756

127,163.528

139,125,573

130,516,988
( 7,122,905

123,394,083

15,731,490

127,781,389

116,604,532

133,812,282 154,166,092
130,516,988 129,597,769
(_.7.861.353) 6,295,396
122,655,635 135,893,165

11,156,647 18,272,927
i33.8)2.282 154,166,002




€/5GeI6el  J6PTELGT Te0vorcal

TSt
(G2r'61E'9 )
686'ivb L
T9E'98T'y
(60872 )
9.8'vS
(0g1'z )]
(698°tpLT )
(119°258 )

9.£'80r
(ri8'820°'s 7

60€'6E2

£8Z'801'11
2LV'GEB'EET

6Tz
28z'Z18'eeT

000.$MH
kynba |30}

(9€0'G96'T )
(I$5'099

6E6'LIP’L

(g6£'852 )

Svi
(588'282 )

Werere )

(2e0'845 )

£0S'0S4
£28'49T'TT

980T
L9'9ST'TY

000.$¥H
SLEYERTT
buyiesjugs
-UON

15T
BEQ'596'T
(6LT'659'G )

raLl'yiv'y
(60812
9.8'p5
(gze'z )

(PB6'SSP'T )

(L89'v¥a )

9LE'SOY
(2gL'osr'y )

60E'6E2

08L'L8T'0T
6r6'149'Z21

PIE'ST

$£9'959'221

000.$MH
|ejor

(6FISED)

(TeToeL )

(FPR6'65P'T)

(919891} {iti'viZ )

(918'891)

000,$M4H
53419594

2430

(LET'VLE )

O00.SHH
sueld Jy8uaq
paviyap

U0 SAJISE)
[elien}oy

19071

(sge's )

566'211

966'2TT

000.$9H
199JRUW 0]
$42ul Uy
Y1 P8l

21

(O T86'9E) BEELETT F2LTIP Ot
S T3 S
- - 8£0'596'T
- - (611'659'S )
(zgL'oap'v ) (TIL'9I1)  0BL'LSTOT
- (189'v16) -

- SIE'RCY -
(28L'05¢ ) - -

- - 08L'LGT'0T
(869'0ES'2E)  6¥E'L6Z'T  WI6'SVE'ER
- - T T wTEeT T
(869'0£G'2E)  6¥2'L62'T 059'626'E2
Q00.5%H 000.54H 000.84H
ELVELLT] aAlasal siyead
unijenjaniy buibpay paulrlay
abueyax3g

*SIPAA £ J9A0 SPUIDIAIP PIWIRIIUN JO |BSIIASL OF SI3J31 S 4
*T 310N VI P3SO|ISIP UDIIBWIOJUL DIJ(RIAR A10W, (NI BFP' L $HH Aidewix0idde o3 Juajeainba) uoliw 6£9°€148
Araewixordde jo spaanold 13U PanIRZal DUR SIS LOWWOD JRUOINPPE BOS 225 LT PICS T4dD 'HNsal e sy "buuayo ua-mojjo4 pa1sidwod '(,74dD,) "¥'S eifuaug 14d D "Auedwao) ayj fo AJeip|sqns ay} ‘6 TQZ aUNT Z D «

(Ze5Li5 ) FEZ6ES
60€'6£2 -
60E8'6EC -

(1£8'94L ) pEZ'625

(1€8'95L ) rE2'62S
000.5%H 000.$MH
YOI anlasal

aAlsuayaLduiod
19430 ybnouyy
anjea Jigj 12
514550 (R{3URULL
10 BAIPSSL
an|eA JIB 4

jejded

§B6ITTOET 6T0Z 1AqUWIIRGIE IV

- Sa0uRYs IO
- «AJNb3 UIY}IM SUB|JOBSURIL

- (1T 310N)
5Japjoyaleys o3 uoiInNglisig

- wejded
buyjjcIjuoI-ucu Ui 3seaIY|

- 183A 343 Joy
WO AAISUIYILduied Bjo Y

z 53JN3UaA utel wouy
JWIOUI AAISUIYIdWOD J3YI0

- S3JRID0SSE WOY
303U AAISUIYRIDWOD Jayl0

. sa|31j1qe;]| 1eour Ul
G 193JBU 0F WABUL UL WSL: Y

- sue(d jyauaq
pauljap U0 SA19531 |BlIBNJIY
. sabpay mojysed
. SIULIISAAUL 15U JO Sabpay

- sioljesado

ub18104 Jo UoIIB|SURL)
uo 53Judlaplp abueyaxy

- 4:31

10 13U *3W0ol) 3aisuayaidwod

13y1o UBnoiyg aniea ey

1e paieubisap sjualulsanu|
ANnba jo anjea 1@y u| safiueyd

taeah ayy Jop
AW O] SA|ISUYSIdWOod JaW30
- 1834 8] 104 J404d
gR6'GTS'0LT (pajelsas) 102 Aenuer T 3v

T (€£'2 310N) 91
SY4¥H Jo uciydope Jo 5303443

886'375'0¢T (pa3e)sal)
8102 13qUa23q 1€ ¥

000.54H

[eydes

IBYG

JU3Jed ayy 0 SI9UMO 07 3|0eINqIIY

6T02Z 190Wa2ag TC PIpUa dea i

ALINO3 NI SIONVYHI O LNIFWILVLS d3LVQITOSNOD
G3LINIT AINTFNdOTTAIA TYNOILVYNYILNI Qi 3LV1S



R TITEET
COFFT
(94£'120'S )
(66E'8PY'S )
612’676
(PTL'LT8'L )
OF9'v01
(ggg'222 )
089'8¢
(599605 )
(626'68T )
947'p98

(P19'5£0'6T)

(899'THFF'T )

56E'645'2T
260'991'#5T
682'6LT'Z

£08'066'TGT

000.51H
A}lnba |ejo)

[F99ST'IT  SE9'SS9'zer (91@591)
ost'rT . -
(980’685 ) (062'ZEP'P ) -
(Z0T'SEQ'S) (LeT'ETv'E ) -

- 612'6T6 -
(25¥'905'T ) (292'171€'9 ) (feT'€Zm)
- O¥9'F0T 0r9' 0T
- (£€§'222 ) (EE9'L2d)
1€0'2 6¥9'9€ -
(F61'52 ) (TL¥'v8F ) -
(0L6'ss ) (SSE'ETT ) -

- 9.T'v98 -
(Qz¥'L22'2 ) (p60'808'9TY -

- (899'Tp¥'T ) -
T0T'028 v62'65.'TT -
126'202'8T  GOT'CEY'SET  (E29°'GH)
- 682'5L1'2 -
L26'202'8T  9LBLTLEET  (£29'6H)
000.4%H DO0.5HH 00Q.$HH
515243341 1ejol sanlasal
buyjoajuoa 13430
-UON

et

(LET'PLZY SEECIT (8697086 ¢ §vz 621 (049626 EC
- - - - (06Z'2EF'Y )
- - - - {(LBT'ETP'E)

(TLb'¥8Y) 6¥9'9¢ (r60'g0g'9T} 122'0SL P62'65L'TT
- 6¥9'9¢ - - -

(TLP'v8E) - - - -

- - - (SSB'ETT) -
- - - 2L1'v98 -

- - (r80'208'9T) - -

- - - - P62'65L'TT
wmm_o..ﬂm LyE'9L (P09'22L'STr  820'ZvS £r8'a10'0Z
- - - - BBLSLTC
rEE'oT2 LYE'SL (F09'2eL'ST)  820'ivS ¥GS'0¥8'LT
000.54H 000.54H 000.$4H 000.$1H C00.$¥H
suejd 3p0udy  JayIEW 03 ELYELLY] AAIB5d s3p01d
psulap WJew uy uoleniangy BulbpaH pauie}ay
UQ 9AJa53 ysiL3ped])  abueyox3
|eLen}oy

(Teg9al )

(899'T9¥'T)

(899'Te¥'T)

1£8'789

LEB'YE9

000.84H
awoIuy
gAlsUaYalduwigo
13yjo ybnouyy
anjea ley je
SJOSSE [RIOURUL
10 9AL953l
anjen Jie4

FLe 625

gE6 TG OET (paje3ssl)

8T0Z Jaquadaqg TE 1V

v€2'625

vE2'625

000.$¥H
EYNELEY

fended

- sabueys Jsylo

- (TT 3joN)
slapjoyaleys 03 uoizngiisia
- 15243jul
Buyjjoi3uca-uou jo ueljisinbay
(8€ 310N)
§3JeYS 3dUaJIa4a.d Jo panss|
- :(p93R)SaL) JedA 3y} 4o}
WOV dA|SUBYIdWoD 2301
- SIINJUBA JUiOf WOl
JWOIU JAISUSYAITWOD 1BUI0
- S31B|J055E WOl 3WOoIU]
aAlsuayaldwod 1aylo
qej| jejoueuy o
J9YJReW 0F YJew U] YSI HpaLD
- sueld j48u=q
PaulaP U JAIASAI |BIBN)DY
- sabpay mopyse]
. SJUBWISAAUL Jau JO sabpay
- (pajelssl) suonesado
ubla104 JO uollRISURLY
uo $32uaiayip bueyaxg
- XE} jo
18U ‘swosu] aslsuaysidwos
19430 ubnouay) anjea Jiey
18 pajeubisap sjuawllsaaul
A3inba jo anjea Jiey ul sabueyd
1(p3je)sal) JedA ayy Jo}
AWOIU| IAJSUIYId 0D J3YLO
- (pajeIsal) J1eah ay) 10 J130id
69.'L65'62T (PR3€}S3I) GTOZ Adenuer T 3y
- {2'Z 210N}
$}USUIa}R]S |BIJUBULY
aAljeedwon JO JUaWaleysay
8ToZ Alenuer T 3y

612'616

69L'26G'62T

000.$4H
leyidea

aleys

juaied 3yJ jo S13UMO 0} 3|qBINGUIRY

6T02Z 43qWa2a¢ TE PIPUa JB3A

(Q3NNILNOD) ALINOI NI SFONVHI 40 INFWILYLS A31VAITOSNOD
Q3LINIT ANIWDOTIATA TYNCILYNYILNI dIYD 31V1S



STATE GRID INTERNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Year ended 31 December 2019

CASH FLOWS FROM OFPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax
Adjustrments for:
Finance costs
Interest income
Fareign exchange differences, net
Dividend income and gain on equity investments designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income
Share of profit of associates and joint ventures
Provision of impairment of trade receivables and contract assets
Provision of impairment of prepayments, other receivables and other assets
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Depreciation of investment properties
Amortisation of intangible assets
Dacrease f(increase) in inventaries
(Increase) /decrease in trade receivables
Decrease /(increase) in contract assets
Decrease in prepayments, other receivables and other assets
Increase in other non-current assets
Increase /(decrease) in trade payables
increase/(decrease) in other payables and accruals
Private pension plan
Decrease f(increase) in sector financial assets/liabilities
Fair value change recognised in profit and loss
Others operating items

Cash generated fram operations
Incame taxes paid

Net ¢ash flow trom operating activities

CASHFLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property, plant and equipment and addition of concession assets

Purchases of equity investments designated at fair vatue through
other comprehensive income

Purchases of equity investments at fair value through profit or loss

Net cash received from disposal of property, plant and equipment, intangible
assets and other non-current assets

Acquisition of subsidiaries

interest received

Dividend received from equity investments designated at fair value through
other camprehensive income

Dividend received from associates and joint ventures

Capital reduce/(increase) in subsidiaries and joint ventures

Other investing activities

Net cash flows used in investing activities

14

Notes

12
14
i3
16

2019
HK$'000

14,893,049

5,900,595
( 2,321,431)
482,529

( 504,464}
( 5,718,571)
460,919
488
3,129,277
136,844
3,978
3,419,124
9,529

¢ 715,647)
1,116,037
68,630

¢ 333,309)
521,287
1,169,722
( 38,018)
1,197,692
25,234
266,145

23,169,639
(_2,850,524)

20,315,115

(11,248,708)

( 169,248)

(1,691,796)
61,197

¢ 272,327
2,411,942
504,464
4,595,356
454,406

(__28,021)

¢5,382,735)

2018
HKS'000
Restated

15,831,177
6,007,979

1,625,888)
723,752

~

~

503,225)
6,180,755)
362,427
3,998
3,198,132
4,922
3,893,460
15,203)
845,133
( 7,757,585)
496,237

( 583,915)
( 2,957,724)
( 1,075,357)
(
(

—~

~

8,983)

1,960,746)
38,376

(1.317,524)

7,418,688
(_2675.634)

4,743,054

(17,296,727)

23,971
1,542,312

503,225
5,136,132
( 57,269)

_ 475,449

(05,672,900




STATE GRID INTERNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

Year ended 31 December 2019

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase in capital from shareholders
Increase in capital from non-controiling shareholder
Acquisition of non-controlling interests
Proceeds from bank loans
Proceeds from issue of bonds
Cash repayments of borrowings and derivatives
Cash repayments of bonds
Dividends paid
Interest paid
Payment of lease liabilities

Net cash flows {used in) /irom financing activities

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR

15

Notes

30

2019 2018
HKS$'000 HK$"000
Restated

- 919,219

7,447,939 14,460

- { 8,448,399)
12,614,312 48,584,271
7,550,354 10,161,235
(14,833,250) (27,255,139)
{ 6,756,513) (12,892,368)
¢ 5,893,188) { 4,751,878)
( 4,282,880) ¢ 5,597,953)
(  202,190) ¢ _42,006)
(. 4,355416) . 691,442
10,580,964 ( 4,238,404)
8,503,198 14,487,713
(2,470,235) (.. 1,746.111)
16,613,927 8,503,198



STATE GRID INTERNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2019

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

State Grid International Development Limited (“the Company"”) is a limited liability company
incorporated in Hong Kong. In August 2012, the shareholder of the Company changed from State
Grid Corporation of China to State Grid International Development Cao,, Ltd. The registered office is
located at Suite 1304, 13F, Great Eagle Centre, 23 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The Company commenced its operations as an investment holding company in June 2008, The
principal activities include providing resources and logistics services; acting as agent for tenders
and purchase; manufacturing electricity devices; research and development of electricity
technology products; investment, exploitation and management of electricity; operation and
maintenance of electricity networks; other business include the provision of work design,
construction, management, consultancy and technical services.

In the opinion of directors, the ultimate holding company is State Grid Corporation of China. its
registered office is located at 86 West Chang An Avenue, Xicheng District, Beijing, China,

16



STATE GRID INTERNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

31 Pecember 2019

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at the end of the year are as follows:

Percentage of equity

Place of Principal Nominal value of issued Interest attributable
incorporation activities and fully paid-up capital to the Company
Expansion Transmissora Rio de Janeiro, Grid operating BRL 100%
Itumbiara Marimbondo Brazil 88,108,634
S.A.
Expansion Transmissora de Ric de Janeiro, Grid operating BRL 100%
Energia Eletrica S.A. Brazil 101,747,039
Itumbiara Transmissora de Rio de Janeiro, Grid operating BRL 100%
Energia S.A. Brazil 373,710,000
Pocos de Caldas Rio de Janeiro, Grid operating BRL 100%
Transmissarade Energia Brazil 208,350,900
Eletrica S.A.
Ribeirao Preto Rio de Janeiro, Grid operating BRL 100%
Transmissora de Energia Brazil 203,800,617
Eletrica S.A.
Serra Paracatu Rio de Janeiro, Grid operating BRL 100%
Transmissora de Energia Brazil 175,300,000
S.A.
Serra da Mesa Rio de Janeiro, Grid operating BRL 100%
Transmissora de Energia Brazil 274,500,000
Eletrica S5.A.
Araraquara Transmissora Rio de Janeiro, Grid operating BRL 100%
De Energia S.A. Brazil 167,151,128
Catxere Transmissora De Rio de Janeiro, Grid operating BRL 100%
Energia S.A. Brazil 316,948,233
Iracema Transmissora De Rio de Janeiro, Grid operating BRL 100%
Energia 5.A. Brazil 237,062,000
Linhas De Transmissao Do Ria de Janeiro, Grid operating BRL 100%
Itatim 5.A. Brazil 261,360,000
Linhas de Transmissdo De Rio de Janeiro, Grid operating BRL 100%
Montes Claros S.A Brazil 211,025,069
(LTMC)
Atlantico Concessiondria Rio de Janeiro, Grid operating BRL 100%
de Transmissdo de Brazil 74,643,446
Energia do Brasil S.A.
(ACTE)
Xingu Rio Transmissora de Rio de Janeiro, Grid operating BRL 100%
Energia S.A. (XRTE) Brazil 1,971,001, 000
Porto Primavera Brazil Rio de Grid cperating BRL 100%
Transmissora De Energia Janeiro 194,035,000
S.A.(PPTE)
Marechal Randon Rio de Janeiro, Electricity BRL 100%
Transmissora de Energia Brazii production 78,618,000
S.ALMRTE) and supply
Paranaita Ribeirozinho Brazil Grid operating BRL 100%
Transmissora de Energla 537,001,000
S.A(PRTE)
Canarana Transmissora de Brazil Grid operating BRL 100%
Energia S.A.(CNTE) 144,001,000
International Grid Holdings Virgin Islands, Project ussi1 100%
Limited British investment and
flnancing
Top View Grid Investment Virgin Islands, Project uss i 100%
Limited British investment and
financing
State Grid Brazil Holding Rio de Janeirg, Project BRL 100%
S.A. (SGBH) Brazil Investment and 5,803,484,360
financing

17



STATE GRID INTERNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

31 December 2019

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at the end of the year are as follows (Continued):

Place of
incorporation

State Grid Europe Limited* Britain

State Grid Europe Britain
Development(2014) Public
Limited Company

State Grid International Hong Kong
development Asia and
Australia Holdings Company
Limited
State Grid International Hong Kong
Australia Investment
Limited
State Grid International Hong Kong
Australia Development
Limited
SGSP (Australia) Assets Pty Melbourne,
Ltd. (SGSPAA) ** Australia
Jemena Gas Trust Australia
Jemena Group Holdings Pty Australia
Ltd.
Jemena Holdings Pty Ltd. Australia
Jemena Limited Australia
Jemena Gas Pipeline Holdings Australia
Pty Ltd.
Zinfra Pty Ltd. Austraiia
Jemena Management Holding Australia
Pty Ltd.
Jemena Roma North Pipeline Australia
Pty Ltd.***
State Grid Brazil Power Brazil -
Participagdes Ltda. (SGBP)
CPFL Energia S.A, (CPFL) ¥¥*~ Brazil
CPFL Energias Renovaveis S.A. Brazil

(CPFL. Renovaveis) **¥*#*

Principal activities

Project investment
and firancing

Project investment
and financing

Project investment
and financing

Project investment
and financing

Project investment
and financing

Grid operating

Project investment
and financing
Project investment
and financing
Project investment

and financing
Project investment

dud lindnclng
Project Investment
and financing
Project investment
and financing
Project investment
and financing
Project investment
and financing
Project investment
and financing

Grid operating

Grid operating

Nominal value of issued

and fully paid-up
capital

GBP
10,000,000
EUR
885,000,000
GBP

50,000

HKS
5,338,010,416

HKS
10,000

HKS
10,000

AUS
3,200,000,100
AUS
357,929,002
AUS
969,372,110
AUS 4

AUS
5,617,459,334
AUS
2,666,800
AUS 2

AUS 2
AUS 2

BRL
1,149,557.020
BRL
5,388,081,342
BRL
3,698,060,000

Percentage of
equity interest
attributable to

the Company

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

60%
60%
60%
60%
60%
6C%
60%
60%
60%

100%

83.71%

B83.66%

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion of the directors,
principaily affected the results for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in

particulars of excessive length.

* 0On 17 October 2019, with the approval of the Company's board of directors, its long-term
receivables from State Grid Europe Limited were converted into capital injections in the

amount of EUR 885,000,000.

** 0On 30 September 2019, the Company's subsidiary SGSPAA disposed of its subsidiaries
AgquaNet Sydney Pty Ltd. and Rosehill Network Pty Ltd. for a consideration of AUS12 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$66 million) and AUS 58 million (equivalent to approximately

HK$317 million).
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STATE GRID INTERNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
31 December 2019

1.

2.1

CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at the end of the year are as follows (Continued):

***  0On 12 September 2019, SGSPAA acquired 100% equity interest in Jemena Roma North
Pipeline Pty Ltd. at an estimated value of AUD 50 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$272 million) in cash.

****  On 30 May 2019, CPFL announced the launch of the Follow-on Offering, which closed on 14
June 2019. Pursuant to the Follow-on Offering, CPFL offered 116,817,126 of its common
shares in a global offering consisting of (i) a public offering of common shares with restricted
selling efforts in Brazil, and (ii) a concurrent international offering of common shares,
including in the form of ADSs, in the United States and elsewhere outside of Brazil, Also
pursuant to the Foliow-on Offering, CPFL soid 17,522,568 additional common shares under
an over-allotment option that closed on 28 June 2019. As a result of the Follow-on Offering,
CPFL received net proceeds of approximately BRL3,164.3 million before expenses, after
deducting underwriting commissions. CPFL received net proceeds of approximately BRL
474.7 million before expenses, after deducting underwriting commissions, as a result of the
over-allotment option. Following the closing of the Follow-on Offering, The Company's direct
and indirect equity interest in CPFL's capital stock decreased to 83.71%.

**xx* On 4 June 2019, with the approval of the board of directors of CPFL Renovaveis, CPFL
Renovaveis issued 17,503,602 shares. Together with a subsidiary of CPFL, Parcela
Geracdo's prepaid capital of BRL300 millien in CPFL Renovdvels approved by the board of
directors in 2016, CPFL's interest in CPFL Renovaveis increased by 17,502,918 shares, and
its minority shareholders increased by 684 shares. At the end of September 2019, SGBP
transferred its directly held CPFL Renovaveis shares to CPFL at a consideration of
approximately BRL 4.108 billion, accounting for 46.76% of CPFL Renovaveis's total shares.
In summary, the Group's shareholding in CPFL Renovaveis decreased from 99.94% in 2018
to 83.66% in 2019.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRSs™) (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards ("HKASs™ and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA™), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.
They have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for derivative financial
instruments and equity investments which have been measured at fair value. These financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consglidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the "“Group') for the year ended 31 December 2019, A
subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities
of the investee).
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2.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of
an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has
power over an investee, including:

@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee;

) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

) the Group’'s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the
Company, using consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from
the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of
the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in
full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate
that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control described in the accounting
policy for subsidiaries below. A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of
control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the
consideration received, (ii} the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus
or deficit in profit or loss. The Group's share of components previously recognised in other
comprehensive inceme is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the
same basis as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

Going concern
As of 31 December 2019, the Group had net current liabilities of HK$8,731 million (31 December

2018: at net current (iabilities of HKS$14,695 million). The directors of the Company have
considered the Group's available sources of funds as follow: based on a review of the forecasted
cash flows, the Group's expected net cash inflows from operating activities in 2020 and the Group
has access to unused committed facilities of HK$13,877,357,000 (31 December 2018:
HKS$24,346,156,000), all of which are available for more than 12 months from the end of the
reporting period. Therefore, the financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.
The going concern basis assumes that the Group will continue in operation for the foreseeable
future and will be able to realise its assets and discharge its liabilities and commitments in the
normal course of business.

20



STATE GRID INTERNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
31 December 2019

2.2

CORRECTION OF PRIOR PERIOD ERRORS

Upon initial application of HKFRS15 on 1 January 2018, an inappropriate discount rate was used
to measure the contract assets in the preparation of the financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2018, which were issued on 13 June 2019. According to HKFRS15, the management
corrected the inappropriate discount rate in the preparation of the financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2019 to the rate that reflects characteristics in the financing transaction
between the Company and its customer at contract inception. Based on the requirement of HKAS
8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, the management
retrospectively restated the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Set out below are the amounts by which each financial statement line item was affected as at 31
December 2018 and for the year ended 31 December 2018 as a result of the restatement of
adopting HKFRS 15.

Consolidated statement of profit or loss and comprehensive income for the year ended 31
December 2018:

As reported Adjustments As adjusted

HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000

Revenue 87,876,660 112,644 87,989,304

Profit before tax 15,718,533 112,644 15,831,177
income tax expense ( 3,942.,909) 691,127 ( 3,251,782)

Profit for the year 11,775,624 803,771 12,579,395

Attributable to:

Owners of the parent 10,955,523 803,771 11,759,294

Non-controlling interests 820,101 - _ 820,101

11,775,624 803,771 12,579,395

Other comprehensive income

Other comprehensive income that may be reclassified fo
profift or loss in subsequent periods:

Exchange differences on
translation of foreign
operations, net of tax (18,674,469) (361,045) (19,035,51

Other comprehensive
income for the year, net
of tax (20,036,064) (361,045) (20,397,109)

Total comprehensive
income for the year, net

of tax (_8.260,440) 442,726 (7,817,714)

Atfributable to:
Owners of the parent ( 6,753,988) 442,726 ( 6,311,262)
Non-controlling interests (1,506,452) - ( 1,506,452)
(_8,260,440) 442,726 (7,817,714)
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2.2 CORRECTICN OF PRIOR PERICD ERRORS (CONTINUED)

Consolidated statement of financial position as of 31 December 2018:

Contract assets

Prepayments, other receivables
and other assets

Deferred tax assets

Total assets

Tax payable
Deferred tax liabilities

Total liabilities
Reserves
Retained earnings

Exchange fluctuation reserve

Total equity

Asreported
HK$'000

38,010,068

3,307,595
3,224,532

L
18
I~
W
i
o
(A%
N
o)

358,244
24,369,442

171,201,953
20,950,590
(32,169,653)

131,194, 2¢

(e)]
I~

Adjustments
HKS$'000

3,853,328

7,862
64,954

3,926,144

72,440
1,235,689

1,308,129

2,979,060

(__361,045)

2,618,015

As adjusted
HKS$'000

41,863,396

3,315,457
_ 3,289,486

306,322,364

430,684
25,605,131

172,510,082
23,929,650
(32,530,698)

133,812,282

Set out below are the amounts by which each financial statement line item was affected as at 1
January 2018 as a result of the restatement of adopting HKFRS 15.

Consclidated statement of financial position as of 1 January 2018:

Contract assets
Deferred tax assets

Total assets
Deferred tax liabilities
Total liabilities

Reserves
Retained earnings

Total equity

As reported
HK$'000

25,922,872
.4.018,273

322,191,614

25,760,273

170,200,811
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Adjustments
HK$'000

4,372,517
59,651

4,432,168

2,256,879

2,256,879

2,175,289

2,175,289

As adjusted
HK3'000

30,295,389
4,077,924

326,623,782

28,017,152

172,457,690

~20,015,843

{1

54,166,09.
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2.3

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs for the first time for the current
year's financial statements, which are applicable to the Group.

HKFRS 16 Leases

Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures

HK({FRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs Amendments to HKFRS 3, HKFRS 11, HKAS 12 and
2015-2017 Cycle HKAS 23

Except for the Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle, which are not relevant to the
preparation of the Group’s financial statements, the nature and the impact of the new and revised
HKFRSs are described below:

(a) The adoption of HKFRS 16

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HKUFRIC)-Int 4 Determining whether an Arrangement
contains a Lease, HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating Leases - Incentives and HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating
the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets out the
principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and reguires
lessees to account for all leases under a single on-balance sheet model to recognise and
measure right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, except for certain recognition exemptions.
l.essor accounting under HKFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from HKAS 17. Lessors
continue to classify leases as either operating or finance leases using similar principles as in
HKAS 17.

HKFRS 16 did not have any significant impact on leases where the Group is the lessor.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 16 using the modified retrospective method with the date of
initial application of 1 January 2019. Under this method, the standard has been applied
retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initial adoption recognised as an adjustment to
the opening balance of retained profits at 1 January 2019, and the comparative information
for 2018 was not restated and continued to be reported under HKAS 17 and related
interpretations.

New definition of a lease

Under HKFRS 16, a contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys a right tc control
the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. Control is
conveyed where the customer has both the right to obtain substantially all of the economic
benefits from use of the identified asset and the right to direct the use of the identified asset.
The Group elected to use the transition practical expedient allowing the standard to be applied
only to contracts that were previously identified as leases applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int
4 at the date of initial application. Contracts that were not identified as leases under HKAS 17
and HK(FRIC)-Int 4 were not reassessed. Therefore, the definition of a lease under HKFRS 16
has been applied only to contracts entered into or changed on or after 1 January 2019,
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2.3

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

(a) The adoption of HKFRS 16 (Continued)

As a lessee - Leases previously classifled as operating leases

Nature of the effect of adoption of HKFRS 16

The Group has lease contracts for various items of land and buildings, plant and equipment and
transport equipment. As a lessee, the Group previously classified leases as either finance
leases or operating leases based on the assessment of whether the lease transferred
substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of assets to the Greup. Under HKFRS 16,
the Group applies a single approach to recognise and measure right-of-use assets and lease
llabilities for all leases, except for two elective exemptions for leases of low-value assets
(elected on a lease-by-lease basis) and leases with a lease term of 12 months or less (“short-
term leases”) (elected by class of underlying asset). Instead of recognising rental expenses
under operating leases on a straight-iine basis over the lease term commencing from 1 January
2019, the Group recognises depreciation (and impairment, if any) of the right-of-use assets
and interest accrued on the outstanding lease ljabilities (as finance costs).

Impact on transition

Lease liabilities at 1 January 2019 were recognised based on the present value of the
remaining iease payments, discounted using the incremental borrowing rate at 1 January 2019.
The right-of-use assets were measured at the amount of the lease [iability, adjusted by the
amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to the lease recognised in the
statement of financial position immediately before 1 January 2019.

All these assets were assessed for any impairment based on HKAS 36 on that date. The Group
elected to present the right-of-use assets separately in the statement of financial positicn.

The Group has used the following elective practical expedients whep applying HKFRS 16 at 1
January 2019:

s+ Applying the short-term lease exempiions to leases with a lease term that ends within 12
months from the date of initial application

+ Using hindsight in determining the lease term where the contract contains options to
extend/terminate the lease

As a lessee - Leases previously classified as finance leases

The Group did not change the initial carrying amounts of recognised assets and liabilities at the
date of initial application for leases previously classified as finance ieases. Accordingly, the
carrying amounts of the right-of-use assets and the lease liabilities at 1 January 2019 were
the carrying amounts of the recognised assets and liabilities measured under HKAS 17,
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2.3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)
(a) The adoption of HKFRS 16 (Continued)

Financial impact at 1 January 2019

The impact arising from the adoption of HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 was as follows:

Increase/(decrease)
HKS$'000

Assets
Increase in right-of-use assets 725,123
Increase in total assets 725,123
Liabilities
Increase in lease liabilities 894,068
Decrease in other payables and accruals ( 17,891)
Decrease in other non-current liabilities (185,897)
Increase in deferred tax liabilities 11,653
Increase in total liabilities £97,933
Increase in retained profits 16,314
Increase in non-controlling interests 10,876

The lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 reconciled to the operating lease commitments as at
31 December 2018 are as follows:

HK$'000
Operating lease commitments as at 31 December 2018 1,200,136
Less: Commitments relating to short-term leases and those leases with a remaining

lease term ended on or before 31 December 2019 ( 9,291)
Commitments relating to leases of low-value assets ( 92,358)
Other adjustments ( 19,525)

Add: Payments for optional extension periods not recognised as at 31 December 2018 -

1,078,962

Weighted average incremental borrowing rate as at 1 January 2019 o _4.2%

Discounted operating lease commitments as at 1 January 2019 894,068

Add: Finance lease liabilities recognised as at 31 December 2018 268,350

Lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 1,162,418
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2.3

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

(b) Amendments to HKAS 28 clarify that the scope exclusion of HKFRS 9 only includes interests

©

in an associate or joint venture to which the equity method is applied and does not include long-
term interests that in substance form part of the net investment in the associate or joint
venture, to which the equity method has not been applied. Therefore, an entity applies HKFRS
S, rather than HKAS 28, including the impairment requirements under HKFRS 9, in accounting
for such long-term interests. HKAS 28 is then applied to the net investment, which includes
the long-term interests, only in the context of recognising losses of an associate or joint
venture and impairment of the net investment in the associate or joint venture. The Group
assessed its business model for its long-term interests in associates and joint ventures upon
adoption of the amendments on 1 January 2019 and concluded that the long-term interests in
associates and joint ventures continued to be measured at amortised cost in accordance with
HKFRS 9. Accordingly, the amendments did not have any impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group.

HKAFRIC)-Int 23 addresses the accounting for income taxes (current and deferred) when tax
treatments involve uncertainty that affects the application of HKAS 12 (often referred to as
“uncertain tax positions™). The interpretation does not apply to taxes or levies outside the
scope of HKAS 12, nor does it specifically include requirements relating to interest and
penalties associated with uncertain tax treatments. The interpretation specifically addresses
(i) whether an entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately; (ii) the assumptions an
entity makes about the examination of tax treatments by taxation authorities; (iii) how an
entity determines taxable profits or taxlosses, tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits
and tax rates; and (iv) how an entity considers changes in facts and circumstances. Upon
adoption of the interpretation, the Group considered whether it has any uncertain tax positions
arising from the transfer pricing on its intergroup sales. Based on the Group's tax compliance
and transfer pricing study, the Group determined that it is probable that its transfer pricing
policy will be accepted by the tax authorities. Accordingly, the interpretation did not have any
impact on the financial position or perfermance of the Group.
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2.4

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but are
not yet effective, in these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business?

Amendments to HKFRS 9, interest Rate Benchmark Reform?
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Conftribution of Assets between an Investor and its
and HKAS 28 (2011) Associate or Joint Venture®

Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Materiaf?
and HKAS 8

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020
2 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be applicable to the Group is
described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide additional guidance on the definition of a business.
The amendments clarify that for an integrated set of activities and assets to be considered a
business, it must inciude, at a minimum, an input and a substantive process that together
significantly contribute to the ability to create output. A business can exist without including all of
the inputs and processes needed to create cutputs. The amendments remove the assessment of
whether market participants are capable of acquiring the business and continue to produce outputs.
Instead, the focus is on whether acquired inputs and acquired substantive processes together
significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. The amendments have alsc narrowed the
definition of outputs to focus on goods or services provided to customers, investment income or
other income from ordinary activities. Furthermore, the amendments provide guidance to assess
whether an acquired process is substantive and introduce an optional fair value concentration test
to permit a simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of activities and assets is not a
business. The Group expects to adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 January 2020.

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 address the effects of interbank offered rate
reform on financial reporting. The amendments provide temporary reliefs which enable hedge
accounting to continue during the period of uncertainty before the replacement of an existing
interest rate benchmark. In addition, the amendments require companies to provide additional
information to investors about their hedging relationships which are directly affected by these
uncertainties. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2020. Early application is permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group's financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a new definition of material. The new definition states
that information is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected to
influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial statements make on the
basis of those financial statements. The amendments clarify that materiality will depend on the
nature aor magnitude of information. A misstatement of information is material if it could reasonably
be expected to influence decisions made by the primary users. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments prospectively from 1 January 2020. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group's financial statements.
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2.5

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PGLICIES

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term interest of generalily not less than 20%
of the equity voting rights and over which it is in a position to exercise significant influence.
Significant inftuence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the
investee, but is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have jeint control of the
arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group's investments in associates and joint ventures are stated in the consolidated statement
of financiai position at the Group's share of net assets under the equity method of accounting, less
any impairment losses. The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and other comprehensive
income of associates and joint ventures is included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and consolidated other comprehensive income, respectively. In addition, when there has been a
change recognised directly in the equity of the associate or joint venture, the Group recognises its
share of any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.
Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and its associates or
joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group's investments in the associates or joint
ventures, except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the assets
transferred, Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associates or joint ventures is included as part
of the Group's investments in associates or joint ventures.

If aninvestment in an associate becomes aninvestment in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained
interest is not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be accounted for under the equity
method. In all other cases, upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint control over
the joint venture, the Group measures and recognises any retained investment at its fair vaiue.
Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of
significant influence or joint control and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from
disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

When an investment in an associate or a joint venture is classified as held for sale, it is accounted
for in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations,
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2.5

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCCUNTING PCLICIES (CONTINUED)

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred is measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date
fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the former owners
of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
For each business combination, the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests
in the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree's identifiable net assets. All other components of non-controlling interests are measured
at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for
appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date, This includes the separation of
embedded derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combinaticn is achieved in stages, the previously held equity interest is remeasured
at its acquisition date fair value and any resutting gain or loss is recognised in profit or 1oss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair value
with changes in fair vafue recognised in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) and
part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the cperation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss
on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of inthese circumstances is measured based on the relative value
of the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.
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2.5

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its derivative financial instruments and equity investments at fair value at the
end of each reporting pericd. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset
or transfer the liability takes piace either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the
absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The
principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an
asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or {iability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

The Group uses valuation technigues that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which

sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs

and minimising the use of uncbservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are

categorised within the fair vaiuve hierarchy, described as follows, based on the Jowest level input

that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for Identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant te the
fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and fiabilitfes that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the

Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing

categorisation (based on the lowest [evel input that is significant to the fair value measurement as

a whole) at the end of each reporting pericd.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(3) the partyis a person or a close member of that person’s family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(in has significant infiuence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or of a parent of the Group;
or
(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies:

() the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary
or feliow subsidiary of the other entity);

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the cther entity is an associate of the
third entity;
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2.5

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Related parties (Continued)
(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies: (Continued)

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viilthe entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the parent of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress, are stated at cost (Or
valuation) less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. When an item of property,
plant and eqguipment is classified as held for sale or when it is part of a disposal group classified as
held for sale, it is not depreciated and is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5, as further
explained in the accounting policy for “Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale". The
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.

Cost may also include transfers from equity of any gains or losses on qualifying cash flow hedges
of foreign currency purchases of property, plant and equipment.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and eguipment have been put into operation,
such as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period
in which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for
a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Group recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.

Valuations are performed frequently enough to ensure that the fair value of a revalued asset does
not differ materially from its carrying amount. Changes in the values of property, plant and
equipment are dealt with as movements in the asset revaluation reserve. If the total of thisreserve
is insufficient to cover a deficit, on an individual asset basis, the excess of the deficit is charged to
the statement of profit or loss. Any subsequent revaluation surplus is credited to the statement of
profit or loss to the extent of the deficit previously charged. An annual transfer from the asset
revaluation reserve to retained profits is made for the difference between the depreciation based
on the revalued carrying amount of an asset and the depreciation based on the asset's original cost.
On disposal of a revalued asset, the relevant portion of the asset revaluation reserve realised in
respect of previous valuations is transferred to retained profits as a movement in reserves.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost of each item of property,
plant and equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates
used for this purpose are as follows:

Land and buildings 1.90% - 9.50%
Plant and equipment *
Office equipment 13.57%-19.00%
Transport equipment 4.75%-33.33%

*The useful life of plant and equipment in the foreign operations depends on local regulations and practices.
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Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (Continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, the cost of that
item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated separately.
Residual values, useful Iives and the depreciaticn method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate,
at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment inciuding any significant part initially recognised is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the statement of prefit or loss in
the year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents plants and equipment under construction, which is stated at
cost less any impairment losses, and is not depreciated, Cost comprises the direct costs of
construction and capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds during the period of
construction. Constructionin progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant
and equipment when completed and ready for use,

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including the leasehold property heid as
a right-of-use asset (2018: leasehold property under an operating lease) which would otherwise
meet the definition of an investment property) held to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, rather than for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such properties are
measured initially at cost, inciuding transaction costs. After initial recognition, the Group uses the
cost model to measure all of its investment properties.

Depreciation is caiculated on the straight-iine basis to write off the cost to investment property's
residual value aver its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose is 2%.

The carrying amounts of investment properties measured using the cost method are reviewed for
impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts may not
he recoverable.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment property are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangibie assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets
with finite lives are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The
amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are
reviewed at least at each financial year end.

intangible assets with indefinite usefu! lives are tested for impairment annually either individually
or at the cash-generating unit level. Such intangible assets are not amortised. The useful life of an
intangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life
assessment continues to be supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment from
indefinite to finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.
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Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (Continued)

Software

Computer software includes the cost of software licences purchased by the Group and other
additional software development costs.

Contract intangibles

Contract intangibles represent the value attributed to the material customer contracts that the
Group acquired in business combinations. The value of these contracts are based on independent
valuations, predicated on estimates and judgements. The value of these contracts is determined
with reference to the separately identifiable net cash flows generated under each contract,
discounted back to present value. Their useful lives reflect both the contract terms and, where
applicable, assumed renewal periods.

Distribution ficences

Distribution licences represents the concessionaires' right to charge the consumers for electric
energy distribution services. Since the exploration term is defined in the agreement, intangible
assets with defined useful lives are amortized over the concession period in proportion to a curve
that reflects the consumption pattern in relation to the expected economic benefits.

Amortisation is charged to the income statement on a straight line basis over the estimated useful
life of each intangible asset with a finite life, which depends on local regulations and practices.

Goodwill

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration
transferred, the amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the Group's
previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired and
liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of
the net assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain
on bargain purchase,

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill is tested for impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test
of goodwill as at 31 December.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated to
each of the cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the
Group are assigned to those units or groups of units. Each unit or group of units to which the
goodwill is allocated represents the lowest level within the entity at which the goodwill is monitored
for internal management purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate a potential impairment. Impairment is determined by assessing the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the goodwill relates. Where the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount, an impairment
loss is recognised. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent
period. Any impairment is recognised immediately as an expense and is not subsequently reversed.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units)
and part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss
on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured based on the relative
value of the operaticn disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.
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Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, er when annual impairment testing for an asset is required
(other than inventories, contract assets, deferred tax assets, financial assets, investment
properties and non-current assets/a disposal group classified as held for sale), the asset's
recoverable amount js estimated. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of the asset's or
cash-generating unit's vaiue in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of
those from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined
for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recegnised cnly if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable
amount. In assessing valve in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit
or loss in the period in which it arises in those expense categories consistent with the function of
the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting perjod as to whether there is an indication that
previously recegnised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased, if such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previousiy recegnised impairment loss of
an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not o an amount higher than the carrying
amount that wouid have been determined {net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited
to the statement of profit or loss in the peried in which it arises, (only if there are revalued assets
in the financial statements) unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
reversal of the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy
for that revalued asset.

investments and other financial assets

initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost,
fair value through other comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset's
cantractual cash flow characteristics and the Group’s business model for managing them. With the
exception of trade receivables that do net contain a significant financing component or for which
the Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair value, pius in the case of a
financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do
not contain a significant financing component or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient are measured at the transaction price determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with
the policies set out for "Revenue recogniticn below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cest or fair value through
other comprehensive income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest (“SPPI"™) on the principai amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash
flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective
of the business model.
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Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial
assets in order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will
result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial assets
classified and measured at amortised cost are held within a business model with the objective to
hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified and
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income are held within a business model with
the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which
are not held within the aforementioned business models are classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date, that is,
the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Reqular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales cf financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subseguent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest method
and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (debt instruments)

For debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive income, interest income, foreign
exchange revaluation and impairment losses or reversals are recognised in the statement of profit
or loss and computed in the same manner as for financial assets measured at amortised cost. The
remaining fair value changes are recognised in other comprehensive income. Upon derecognition,
the cumulative fair value change recognised in other comprehensive income is recycled to the
statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other comprehensive income (equity investments)
Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify irrevocably its equity investments as equity
investments designated at fair value through other comprehensive income when they meet the
definition of equity under HKAS 32 Financial instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading.
The classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to the statement of profit or loss.
Dividends are recognised as other income in the statement of profit or loss when the right of
payment has been established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably, except
when the Group benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset,
in which case, such gains are recorded in other comprehensive income.

Equity investments designated at fair value through other comprehensive income are not subject
to impairment assessment.
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Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair vaiue through profit or loss are carried in the statement of financial position
at fair value with net changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instrurnents and equity investments which the Group had not
irrevocably elected to classify at fair value through other comprehensive income. Dividends on
equity investments classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are alsc
recognised as other income in the statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has been
established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial liability or non-financial host, is
separated from the host and accounted for as a separate derivative if the economic characteristics
and risks are not closely related to the host; a separate instrument with the same terms as the
embedded derivative would meet the definition of a derivative; and the hybrid contract is not
measured at fair value through profit or loss. Embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Reassessment only occurs if
there is either a change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that
would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value through
profit or loss category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing a financial asset host is not accounted
for separately. The financial asset host together with the embedded derivative is required to be
classified in its entirety as a financial asset at fair value through profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar

financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group's consolidated statement

of financial position) when:

s the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

« the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through' arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights fo receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into
a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards
of ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of the Group's continuing invelvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liabiflity are measured
on a basis that reftects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured

at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration
that the Group could be required to repay.
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Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses ("ECLs™) for all debt instruments not
held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual
cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash
flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are
integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit
exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a
loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure,
irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has
increased significantly since initial recognition. When making the assessment, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort, including
historical and forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset to be in default when internal or external information
indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before
taking into account any credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written off
when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive income and financial assets at
amortised cost are subject to impairment under the general approach and they are classified within
the following stages for measurement of ECLs except for trade receivables and contract assets
which apply the simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has not increased significantly since initial
recognition and for which the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to 12-
maonth ECLs

Stage 2 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition but that are not credit-impaired financial assets and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount egual to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting date (but that are not
purchased or originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss allowance is measured
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade receivables and contract assets that do not contain a significant financing component or
when the Group applies the practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified
approach, the Group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a 1oss allowance
based on [ifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has established a provision matrix that is
based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.
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Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Simplified appreoach (continued)

For trade receivables and contract assets that contain a significant financing component and lease
receivables, the Group chooses as its accounting policy to adopt the simplified approach in
calculating ECLs with policies as described above.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments

in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabitities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings
and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, an amount due to the uitimate
holding company, derivative financial instruments and interest-bearing bank and other borrowings.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities af fair value through profit or foss
Financial iiabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair vaiue through profit or loss.

Financiai liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered
into by the Group that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined
by HKFRS 9. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities heid for trading are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The net fair value gain or loss recognised in the
statement of profit or loss does not include any interest charged on these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss are
designated at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in HKFRS 9 are satisfied. Gains
or losses on liabilities designated at fair vatue through profit or ioss are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss, except for the gains or losses arising from the Group's own credit risk which are
presented in other comprehensive income with no subsequent reclassification to the statement of
profit or loss. The net fair value gain or loss recognised in the statement of profit or loss does not
fnciude any interest charged on these financial iiabilities.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (foans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process,

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and

fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.
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Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled,
or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a new liability,
and the difference between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement
of financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneousty.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts and interest
rate swaps, to hedge its foreign currency risk and interest rate risk, respectively. Such derivative
financial instruments are initiaily recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract
is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value, Derivatives are carried as assets
when the fair value is positive and as liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of derivatives are taken directly to the
statement of profit or loss, except for the effective portion of cash flow hedges or hedges of a net
investment in a foreign operation, which is recognised in other comprehensive income and {ater
reclassified to profit or loss when the hedged item affects profit or loss.

For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as:

« fair value hedges when hedging the exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognised asset
or liability or an unrecognised firm commitment; or

« cash flow hedges when hedging the exposure to variability in cash flows that is either
attributable to a particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability or a highly
probable forecast transaction, or a foreign currency risk in an unrecegnised firm commitment;
or

s hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation.

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Group formally designates and documents the hedge
relationship to which the Group wishes to apply hedge accounting, the risk management objective
and its strateqy for undertaking the hedge.

The documentation includes identification of the hedging instrument, the hedged item, the nature

of the risk being hedged and how the Group will assess whether the hedging relationship meets the

hedge effectiveness requirements (including the analysis of sources of hedge ineffectiveness and

how the hedge ratio is determined). A hedging relationship qualifies for hedge accounting if it meets

all of the following effectiveness requirements:

e Thereis “an economic relationship” between the hedged item and the hedging instrument.

= The effect of credit risk does not “dominate the value changes” that resuit from that economic
relationship.

= The hedge ratio of the hedging relationship is the same as that resulting from the quantity of the
hedged item that the Group actuzally hedges and the quantity of the hedging instrument that the
Group actually uses to hedge that quantity of hedged item.
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Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (Continued)
Hedges which meet all the qualifying criteria for hedge accounting are accounted for as follows:

Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognised directly in other
comprehensive income in the cash flow hedge reserve, while any ineffective portion is recognised
immediately in the statement of profit or loss. The cash flow hedge reserve is adjusted to the iower
of the cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument and the cumulative change in fair value of
the hedged item.

The amounts accumulated in other comprehensive income are accounted for, depending on the
nature of the underiying hedged transaction. If the hedged transaction subsequently results in the
recognition of a non-financial item, the amount accumulated in equity is removed from the separate
component of equity and included in the initial cost or other carrying amount of the hedged asset
or liability. This is not a reclassification adjustment and will not be recognised in other
comprehensive income for the period. This also applies where the hedged forecast transaction of a
non-financial asset or non-financial liability subsequentiy becomes a firm commitment to which fair
value hedge accounting is applied.

For any other casn flow hedges, the amount accumuiated in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to the statement of profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment in the same period or
periods during which the hedged cash flows affect the statement of profit or loss.

If cash flow hedge accounting is discontinued, the amount that has been accumulated in other
comprehensive income must remain in accumulated other comprehensive income if the hedged
future cash flows are still expected to occur. Otherwise, the amcunt will be immediately reclassified
to the statement of profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment. After the discontinuation, once
the hedged cash flow occurs, any amount remaining in accumulated other comprehensive income
is accounted for depending on the nature of the underlying transaction as described above.

Fair value hedges

The change in the fair value of a hedging instrument is recegnised in the statement of profit or loss
as other expenses. The change in the fair value of the hedged item attributable to the risk hedged
is recorded as a part of the carrying amount of the hedged item and is also recognised in the
statement of profit or loss as other expenses.

For fair value hedges relating to items carried at amortised cost, the adjustment to carrying value
is amortised through the statement of profit or ioss over the remaining term of the hedge using the
effective interest rate methed. Effective interest rate amortisation may begin as soon as an
adjustment exists and shalil begin no later thar when the hedged item ceases to be adjusted for
changes in its fair value attributable to the risk being hedged. If the hedged item is derecognised,
the unamortised fair value is recognised immediately in the statement of profit or ioss.

When an unrecognised firm commitment is designated as a hedged item, the subsequent cumulative
change in the fair value of the firm commitment attributable te the hedged risk is recognised as an
asset or liability with a corresponding gain or loss recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The
changes in the fair value of the hedging instrument are also recognised in the statement of profit
or loss.

Hedges of a net investment

Hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation, including @ hedge of a8 monetary item that is
accounted for as part of the net investment, are accounted for in a similar way to cash flow hedges.
Gains or losses on the hedging instrument relating to the effective portion of the hedge are
recognised in other comprehensive income while any gains or losses relating to the ineffective
portion are recognised in the statement of profit or loss, On disposal of the foreign operation, the
cumulative vaiue of any such gains or losses recorded in equity is transferred to the statement of
profit or loss.
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Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting {(Continued)

Current versus non-current classification

Derivative instruments that are not designated as effective hedging instruments are classified as
current or non-current or separated into current and non-current portions based on an assessment
of the facts and circumstances (i.e., the underlying contracted cash flows).

Where the Group expects to hold a derivative as an economic hedge (and does not apply hedge
accounting) for a period beyond 12 months after the end of the reporting period, the derivative
is classified as non-current (or separated into current and non-current portions) consistently
with the classification of the underlying item.

Embedded derivatives that are not closely related to the host contract are classified consistently
with the cash flows of the host contract.

Derivative instruments that are designated as, and are effective hedging instruments, are
classified consistently with the classification of the underlying hedged item, The derivative
instruments are separated into current portions and non-current portions only if a reliable
allocation can be made.

Leases (applicable from 1 January 2019)

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is,
or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease
payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(a) Right-of-use agssets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement date of the lease (that is the date
the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of fease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date iess any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated
on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated usefu! lives of the
assets as follows:

Land and buildings 5to 15 years
Plant and equipment 3to 5 years
Transpori equipment 2 to 5 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by the end of the lease term or the cost
reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful
life of the asset.
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Leases (applicable from 1 January 2019) (Continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(b) Lease liabilities

©

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date of the lease at the present value of
lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments
(including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual
value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of penalties for termination of
a lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate. The variable
lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as an expense in the
period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its incremental borrowing
rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not
readily determinable, After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased
to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the
carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the
lease term, a change in lease payments (e.g., a change to future lease payments resulting from
a change in an index or rate) or a change in assessment of an option to purchase the underlying
asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of
machinery and equipment (that is those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less
from the cemmencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the
recognition exemption for leases of low-value assets to leases of office equipment and laptop
computers that are considered to be of low value. When the Group enters intg a lease in respact
of a low-value asset, the Group decides whether to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease basis,
Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a fessor
When the Group acts as alessor, it classifies at lease inception (or when there is a iease modification)
each of its leases as either an operating lease or a finance lease,

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantiaily all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases, When a contract contains lease and non-
lease components, the Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each component on a
relative stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over
the {ease terms and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or ioss due to its operating
nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as
rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantiaily all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an underiying
asset to the lessee, are accounted for as finance leases.
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Leases (applicable from 1 _January 2019) (Continued)

Group as a fessor (continued)

At the commencement date, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present value of the
lease payments and related payments (including the initial direct costs), and presented as a
receivable at an amount equal to the net investment in the lease, The finance costs of such leases
are charged to the statement of profit or loss so as to provide a constant periodic rate of charge
over the lease terms.

Leases (applicable before 1 January 2019)

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of assets to the Group,
other than legal title, are accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance lease, the
cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present value of the minimum lease payments and
recorded together with the obligation, excluding the interest element, to reflect the purchase and
financing. Assets held under capitalised finance leases, including prepaid land lease payments
under finance leases, are included in property, plant and equipment, and depreciated over the
shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of such
leases are charged to the statement of profit or loss so as to provide a constant periodic rate of
charge over the lease terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a financing nature are accounted for as finance
leases, but are depreciated over their estimated useful lives.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of assets remain with the lessor
are accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group
under operating leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals receivable under the
operating leases are credited to the statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases net of any
incentives received from the lessor are charged to the statement of profit or loss on the straight-
line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially stated at cost and subsequently
recognised on the straight-line basis over the [ease terms.

When the fease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land and buildings elements, the

entire lease payments are included in the cost of the land and buildings as a finance lease in
property, plant and equipment.
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Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value, Cost is determined on the first-
in, first-out basis and, in the ¢case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises direct materials,
direct {abour and an appropriate proportion of gverheads, Net realisable value is based on
estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Cost of inventeries includes the transfer from equity of gains and losses on qualifying cash flow
hedges in respect of the purchase of raw materials.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or constructive) has arisen as a resuit of
a past event and it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a provision is the present
value at the end of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle
the obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount arising from the passage of
time is included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

The Group provides for warranties in relation to the sale of certain industrial products and the
provision of construction services for general repairs of defects occurring during the warranty
period. Provisions for these assurance-type warranties granted by the Group are recognised based
on sales volume and past experience of the level of repairs and returns, discounted to their present
values as appropriate.

A contingent liability recognised in a business combination is initially measured at its fair value.
Subseguently, it is measured at the higher of (i) the amount that would be recognised in accordance
with the general policy for provisions above; and (i) the amount inilidlly 1ecognised less, when
appropriate, the amount of income recognised in accordance with the policy for revenue
recognition.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to items recognised outside
profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking into
consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary differences at the end of the

reporting period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for
financial reporting purposes.
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income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

+ whenthe deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

¢ in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments n subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can
be controlled and it is probabie that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of

unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that

it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary

differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

« when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary differences arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

 in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, deferred tax assets are only reccgnised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has become
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset
to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax faws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same
taxable entity and the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable
entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise
the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.
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Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the censolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and
have a short maturity of generally within three months when acguired, 'ess bank overdrafts which
are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position, cash and cash equivalents
comprise cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash,
which are not restricted as to use.

Barrowing costs
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying

assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitatisation of such borrowing
costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment
income earned on the temporary Investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
quaiifying assets Is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other
costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to
an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis aver the periods that the costs,
which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Transmission and distribution concessions

The Group's subsidiaries in Brazli entered into electricity transmission concession and distribution
concession agreements with the local government. These concession contracts regulate the
activities of electricity distribution by the these subsidiaries, where:

a) The contract establishes which services the operator shall render;

b) The contract establishes performance standards related to maintaining and improving service
quality to the consumers:

c) Assets are revertible at the end of the concession and are entitied to indemnification (cash)
from the Federal Government cn investments not yet amortised, determined by the new
replacement value;

d) The price (tariff) is regulated and denominated Annual Allowed Revenue ("RAP'").

Distribution companies

The HK(FRIC)-Int 12 Service Concession Arrangements establish general guidelines for the
recognition and measurement of obligations and rights related to concession agreements and apply
to situations in which the granting authority controls or reqgulates which services the concessionaire
should provide with the infrastructure, to whom the services should be provided and at what price,
and controfs any significant residual interest in the infrastructure at the end of the concession
period.
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Transmission and distribution concessions (Continued)

Distribution companies (continued)

When these criteria are met, the infrastructure of distribution concessionaires is segregated as
contract assets at the time of construction, up to the completion of construction, in accordance
with the HKFRS requirements, so that, when operational, the following are reclassified in the
financial statements from contract assets to (i) intangible asset corresponding to the right to
operate the concession and collect from the users of public utilities, and (ii) financial asset
corresponding to the unconditional contractual right to receive cash (indemnity) by transferring
control of the assets at the end of the concession.

The concession financial asset of distribution companies is measured based on its fair value,
determined in accordance with the remuneration base for the concession assets, pursuant to the
legislationin force established by the Brazilian Electricity Regulatory Agency (“ANEEL™), and takes
into consideration changes In the fair value, mainly based on factors such as new replacement value,
and adjustment for Extended Comprehensive Consumer Price Index (“IPCA") for the distribution
subsidiaries. The financial asset of distribution companies is classified as fair value through profit
or loss, with the corresponding fair value changes entry in the revenue in the statement of profit or
loss for the year.

The remaining amount is recognized as intangible asset and relates to the right to charge
consumers for electric energy distribution services, and is amortized in accordance with the
consumption pattern that reflects the estimated economic benefit to the end of the concession.

Considering that (i) the tariff model that does not provide for a profit margin for the infrastructure
construction services from distribution, (ii) the way in which the subsidiaries manage the
constructions by using a high level of cutsourcing, and (iii) the fact that there is no provision for
profit margin on construction in the Group's business plans, Management is of the opinion that the
margins on this operation are irrelevant, and therefore no mark-up to the cost is considered in
revenue. The construction revenue and costs are therefore presented in the statement of profit or
loss for the year in the same amounts.

Transmission companies

The Group's transmission companies are responsible for constructing and operating the
transmission infrastructure in order to carry the energy from the generation centres to the
distribution points, according to their concession arrangements.

The energy transmission company has the obligation to maintain its transmission infrastructure
available to its users to guarantee the receipt of the RAP during the concession agreement term.
Potential unamortized investments generate the right to indemnity at the end of the concession
arrangement.

The transmission infrastructure is classified as a contract asset. The right to consideration for

goods and services is subject to the satisfaction of performance obligations and not only to the
passage of time.
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Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of goods or services is
transferred to the customers at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the amount of consideration is
estimated to which the Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to
the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract inception and constrained until it
is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not accur when the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which provides the customer with a significant
benefit of financing the transfer of goods or services to the customer for more than one vyear,
revenue is measured at the present value of the amount receivable, discounted using the discount
rate that would be refiected in a separate financing transaction between the Group and the
customer at contract inception. When the contract contains a financing component which provides
the Group a significant financial benefit for more than one year, revenue recognised under the
contract includes the interest expense accreted on the contract liability under the effective interest
method. For a contract where the period between the payment by the customer and the transfer of
the promised goods or services is one year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the
effects of a significant financing component, using the practical expedient in HKFRS 15.

(a8) Rendering of services

Revenue from services is recognised over time, using an input method to measure progress
towards complete satisfaction of the serviece, hecause the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits provided by the Group. Revenue is recoghized on a straight-line
basis because the entity’s inputs are expended evenly throughout the performance period.

Distribution revenue is earned from the distribution of gas and electricity and related services.
Revenue s recognised as the services are rendered i.e. on delivery, and incorporate usage
estimation where necessary.

(b} Revenue from the sales (including sales of scrap and other materials)

Revenue from the sale of industrial products or scrap and other materials is recognised at the
point in time when control of the asset is transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of
the industrial products.

The revenue from energy generation sales is recognized based on the assured energy and at

tariffs specified in the terms of the supply contracts or the current market price, as
appropriate.
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Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(c) Concession revenues

Concession revenue is mainly derived from provision of infrastructure construction services,
which is recognised over time, using an input method to measure progress towards complete
satisfaction of the service, because the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced. The input method recognises
revenue based on the proportion of the actual costs incurred relative to the estimated total
costs for satisfaction of the construction services.

To estimate Construction Revenue, the Company used a model that calculates the cost to
finance the customer (i.e., the Granting Authority). The rate defined for the net present value
of the constructicn (and operation) margin is defined in the beginning of the project and is not
subject to subsequent changes, and is calculated according to the customer’s credit risk and
the financing term. As a remuneration of the concession related contract assets, Interest is
recognized using the straight-line method based on the rate that best represents the
remuneration of the transmission infrastructure investments, considering the specific
business-related risks and rewards.

Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the lease terms. Variable lease
payments that do not depend cn an index or a rate are recognised as income in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective interest method by applying
the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the
financial instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to receive payment has been
established, 1t is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the
customer. If the Group performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the
customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the
earned consideration that is conditional. Contract assets are subject to impairment assessment,
details of which are included in the accounting policies for impairment of financial assets.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a payment is due (whichever is
earlier) from a customer before the Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract
liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the contract (i.e., transfers
control of the related goods or services to the customer).

49



STATE GRID INTERNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
31 December 2019

2.5

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Contract costs

Other than the costs which are capitalised as inventories, property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets, costs incurred to fulfil a contract with a customer are capitalised as an asset if
all of the following criteria are met:

(@) The costs relate directly to a contract or to an anticipated contract that the entity can

specifically identify.

(b) The costs generate or enhance resources of the entity that will be used in satisfying (or in
continuing to satisfy)y perfermance obligations in the future.

() The costs are expected to be recovered,

The capitalised contract costs are amortised and charged to the statement of profit or loss on a
systematic basis that is consistent with the pattern of the revenue to which the asset related is
recognised. Other contract costs are expensed as incurred.

Righi-of-return assets

A right-of-return asset is recognised for the right to recover the goods expected to be returned by
customers. The asset is measured at the former carrying amount of the goods to be returned, less
any expected costs to recover the goods and any potential decreases in the value of the returned
goods. The Group updates the measurement of the asset for any revisions to the expected level of
returns and any additional decreases in the value of the returned goods.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the Company's functional
and presentation currency. Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and
items inciuded in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that functionaf
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially recorded
using their respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Mcnetary assets and iiabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional
currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences arising on
settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.

Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss
with the exception of monetary items that are designated as part of the hedge of the Group's net
investment of a foreign operation. These are recognised in other comprehensive income until the
net investment is disposed of, at which time the cumulative amount is reclassified to profit or loss.
Tax charges and credits attributable to exchange differences on those monetary items are also
recorded in other comprehensive income,

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured aft fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value was determined. The gain or loss arising on transiation of a non-monetary item
measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair
value of the item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised
in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recegnised in other comprehensive income
or profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income on
the derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to an advance
consideration, the date of initial transacticn is the date on which the Group initially recegnises the
non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the advance consideration. If there are
muitiple payments cor receipts in advance, the Group determines the transaction date for each
payment or receipt of the advance consideration.
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Foreign currencies (Continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are
currencies other than the Hong Kong dollars. As at the end of the reporting period, the assets and
liabilities of these entities are translated into the presentation currency of the Company at the
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting pericd and their profit or loss are translated
into Hong Kang dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign cperation, the component
of other comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in profit
or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and any fair value adjustments to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities
of the foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows.
Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

Dividends

Interim dividends and final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a separate
allocation of retained profits within the equity section of the statement of financial position.
Dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved by the shareholders. Proposed final
dividends are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Employee benefits

(a) Wages and salaries, annualf feave and sick leave

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits and annual leave expected
to be settled within 12 months of the reporting date are recognised in provisions in respect of
employees’ services up to the reporting date and are measured at the undiscounted amounts
expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. Non-vesting sick leave is recognised in profit
or loss when the leave is taken and measured at the rates paid or payable.

Annual leave that is not expected to be settled within 12 months after the end of the reporting
period is recognised and measured at the present value of amounts expected to be pajid when
the liabilities are settled using the remuneration rate expected to apply at the time of
settlement.

When assessing expected future payments consideration is given to employee wage increases
as well as the experience of employee departures and periods of services. The expected future
payments are discounted using market yields at the end of the reporting period on national
government bonds with terms to maturity that match the expected timing of cash outflows.

The provision for annual leave is classified as a current liability as the Group does not have an

unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting
period.
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Employee benefits (Continued)

)

(c)

{(d)

Long service leave

The liability for long service leave expected to be settled within 12 months of the reporting date
is recognised in the provision for employee benefits and is measured in accordance with (a)
above. The liability for long service leave expected to be settied more than 12 months from the
reporting dateis recognised in the provision for employee benefits and measured as the present
value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employee up
to the reporting date. Consideration is given to the expected future wage and salary levels,
experience of employee departures and periods of service. Expected future payments are
discounted using market yield at the reporting date ¢n national government bonds with terms
to maturity and currency that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows.

Retirement benefit surplus/obligations

Defined benefit superannuation plans:

The Group's net surplus/obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately
for each plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the
current and prior years, discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets.

The calculation of defined benefit obligaticns is performed annually by a qualified actuary using
the projected unit credit method. When the calculation results in a potential asset for the Group,
the recognised asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits available in the form
of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan. To
calculate the present value of economic benefits, consideration is given to any applicable
minimum funding requirements.

Re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses,
the return on plan asseis (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling Gf any,
excluding interest), are recognised immediately in other comprehensive income. The Group
determines the net interest expense/(income) on the net defined benefit (liability)/asset for the
year by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligaticn at the
beginning of the year to the then-net defined benefit (liability)/asset, taking into account any
changes in the net defined benefit (liability)/asset during the year as a result of contributions
and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans
are recognised in profit or loss. When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is
curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to past service or the gain or loss on
curtailment is recognised immediately in profit or loss. The Group recognises gains and losses
on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs.

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution superannuation plans are recognised as an
expense in profit or loss in the periods during which the services are rendered by the employees.
Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction
in future payments is available.

Profit sharing and bonus plans

A liability for employee benefits in the form of bonus plans is recognised in provisions when

there is no realistic alternative but to settle the liability and at least one of the following

conditions is met:

- There are formal terms in the plan for determining the amount of the benefit;

- The amounts to be paid are determined before the time of complietion of the financial
report; or

- Past practice gives clear evidence of the amount of the obligation.
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2.5

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Employee benefits (Continued)
(e) Termination benefits

Liabilities for termination benefits, not in connection with the acquisition of an entity or
operation, are recognised when a detailed plan for the terminations has been developed and a
valid expectation has been raised in those employees affected that the terminations will be
carried out. The liabilities for termination benefits are recognised in other creditors or
provisions as applicable.

(f) Employee benefit on-costs

Employee benefit on-costs, including payroll tax, workers’ compensation and superannuation
guarantee contribution, are recognised and included in employee benefit liabilities and costs
when the employee benefits to which they relate are recognised as liabilities or costs.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assefs and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could require a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following
judgements apart from those involving estimations which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements.

Revenue from contracts with customers
The Group applied the following judgements that significantly affect the determination of the
amount and timing of revenue from contracts with customers:

Determining the timing of satisfaction of installation services

The Group concluded that revenue for installation services is to be recognised over time because
the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Group. The fact
that another entity would not need to re-perform the installation that the Group has provided to
date demonstrates that the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits of the
Group's perfarmance as it performs.

The Group determined that the input method is the best method in measuring the progress of the
instaliation services because there is a direct relationship between the Group's effort (i.e., labour
hours incurred) and the transfer of services to the customer. The Group recognises revenue on the
basis of the labour hours expended relative to the total expected labour hours to complete the
services.

Property lease classification - Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its investment property portfolio. The
Group has determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements,
such as the lease term not constituting a major part of the economic life of the commercial property
and the present value of the minimum fease payments not amounting to substantially all the fair
value of the commercial property, that it retains substantially all the significant risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of these properties which are leased out and accounts for the contracts as
operating leases.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Judgements (Continued}

Significant judgement in determining the lease term of contracts with renewal options

The Group has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Group
applies judgement in evaluating whether or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate the
lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise
either the renewal or termination. After the commencement date, the Graup reassesses the lease
term if there is a significant event or change in circumstances that is within its control and affects
its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or to terminate.

income taxes

Significant management judgements on the future tax treatment of certain transactions are
required in determining income tax provisions. The Group carefully evaluates tax implications of
transactions and tax provisions are recorded accordingly. The tax treatment of such transactions
is reconsidered annually to take into account all changes in tax legisiation.

Classification between investment properties and owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an investment property, and has developed
criteria in making that judgement. Investment property is a property held to earn rentals or for
capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group considers whether a property generates cash
flows largely independently of the other assets held by the Group. Some properties comprise a
portion that is held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion that is held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes, Iif these portions
could be sold separately or leased out separately under a finance lease, the Group accounts for the
portions separately. If the portions could not be sold separately, the property is an investment
property only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the preduction or supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes. Judgement is made on an individual property basis to
determine whether ancillary services are so significant that a property does not gqualify as an
investment property.

Going Concern

The ability of the Group to continue operations is dependent upon obtaining the necessary
borrowings and generating cash inflows from operating activities in order to generate sufficient
cash flows to meet its liabilities as they fall due. In the event that the Group are unable to obtain
adequate funding, there is uncertainty as to whether the Group will be able to continue as a going
concern. These financial statements do not include any adjustments related to the carrying values
and classifications of assets and liabilities that would be necessary should the Group be unable to
continue as a going concern.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
end of reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below:

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwili is impaired at |east on an annual basis. This requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is aliocated.
Estimating the value in use require the Group make an estimate of the expected future cash flows
from the cash-generating units and alse to choose a suitabie discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows. Future details on goodwill are given in Note 15.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment for ali non-financial assets
{including the right-of-use assets) at the end of each reporting period. Indefinite life intangible
assets are tested for impairment annually and at other times when such an indicator exists. Other
non-financial assets are tested for impairment when there are indicators that the carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-
generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of
disposal and its value in use. The calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is based on
available data from binding sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar assets or
observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When value in use
calculations are undertaken, management must estimate the expected future cash flows from the
asset or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows.

Provision for expected credift losses on trade receivables and contract assets

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables and contract assets.
The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments that
have similar loss patterns (i.e., by geography, product type, customer type and rating, and
coverage by letters of credit and other forms of credit insurance).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group's historical observed default rates. The Group
will calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking
information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic products) are
expected to deteriorate over the next year which can lead to an increased number of defaults in the
manufacturing sector, the historical default rates are adjusted. At each reporting date, the
historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are
analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed default rates, forecast economic
conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in
circumstances and forecast economic conditions. The Group's historical credit loss experience and
forecast of economic conditions may also not be representative of customer's actual default in the
future. The information about the ECLs on the Group's trade receivables and contract assets is
disclosed in Note 27 and Note 24 to the financial statements, respectively.

Leases - Estimating the incrementai borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in a lease, and therefore, it uses an
incremental borrowing rate ("IBR") to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that
the Group would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment., The IBR therefore reflects what the Group “would have to pay", which requires
estimation when no observable rates are available (such as for subsidiaries that do not enter into
financing transactions) or when it needs to be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the
lease (for example, when leases are not in the subsidiary's functional currency). The Group
estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such as market interest rates) when available and is
required to make certain entity-specific estimates (such as the subsidiary's stand-alone credit
rating).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Estimation in the revenue recognition

(1) Energy distribution in Brazil and Australia
In Brazil, the difference in the timing for reading and invoice of energy consumption resulted
that part of the energy distributed during the yearis not billed at the end of year; consequently,
an estimate is developed by Management and recorded as “Unbilled”. This unbilled revenue
estimate is calculated using as a base the total voelume of energy of each distributor made
available during the year and the annualized rate of technical and commercial losses.

In Australia, estimates are made where required to account for the period between the meter
reading date and the end of the accounting period. The estimates are made based on factors
including historical consumption patterns, tbase usage and weather conditions.

(2) Construction for Energy transmission in Brazil

Estimate and judgment is required about the time that the customer obtains control over the
asset; the progress in satisfying the performance obligation over time or inputs required to
meet the performance obligation, such as materials and labour, expected profit margins, or
lack of expected profit margins, on each performance obligation identified, and expected
revenue projections. Due to the term of the energy transmission contract is long, the
identification of the discount rate that represents the financial component embedded in future
cash inflows alsc requires the use of judgment by management.

(3> Infrastructure construction in Australia
Reliably measuring the outcome and the stage of completion of contracts involves a level of
estimation of a range of factors that are subject to risk and uncertainty. The estimates and
judgements relate to forecast revenue and costs to complete, stage of project completion, and
the recoverability of unapproved variations, claims and disputes.

Environmental provisions

These provisions have been reviewed through the year to assess the Group's obligations,
probability and estimate of outflow of resources. For impacted sites, assumptions have been made
on the most probable course of action in remediating, to arrive at a best estimate of the outfiow of
resources. It is also assumed that such course of action will requirements, within the expected
timeframe.

It is difficult to estimate the future costs of environmental remediation because of many
uncertainties, particularly with regard to the availability of particular remediation methods and
technologies, the extent to which contaminated material may be treated on site or alternatively
treated off site and then disposed to langfiil, the possibility that applicable laws and standards may
change with time, as well as the information available about conditions at the individual sites.

Significant factors relevant to the estimation of these costs include previous experiences in similar
cases, expert opinions regarding environmental programs, current costs and market conditions and
new developments affecting costs, management's interpretation of current environmental laws and
regulations, and management's assessment of site conditions and the remediation methods which
are likely to be deployed as a result of those conditions.

Envirenment costs are generally estimated based on the advice from external consultants and/or

internal experts. Changes in the assumptions underlying these estimated costs may impact future
reported results.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Environmental provisions (continued)

Subject to these factors, but taking into consideration experience gained to date regarding
environmental matters of a similar nature, the Group believes the provisions to be appropriate
based upon currently available information. However, given the inherent difficulties in estimating
liabilities in this area, it cannot be guaranteed that additional costs will not be incurred beyond the
amounts provided. It is possible that final resolution of these matters may require expenditures to
be made in excess of established provisions over an extended pericd of time that may result in
changes in timing of anticipated cash flows from those assumed and in a range of amounts that
cannot be reasonably estimated.

This environmental provision will periodically be re-assessed by management, having regard to
matters including future regulatory assessments, internal risk assessments and advancements in
appropriate technolegies. The discount rate used for determining the present value of the provision
is the appropriate government bond rate and this may vary from year to year. The methodology to
determine the discount rate is consistent with last year. The carrying amount of such provisions
are set out in Note 37.

Decommissioning provisions
The Group estimated the amount of decommissioning provision at each balance date. The exercise
involves considerable judgement regarding the likely future costs of decommissioning.

Expected decommissioning costs are based on the estimated current cost of detailed pfans
prepared. Where there is a change in the expected decommissioning costs, an adjustment is
recorded against the carrying value of the provision and any plant and equipment. The carrying
amount of such provisions are set out in Note 37.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group's business mainly consists of investment holding, operation and maintenance of
electricity networks. For management purposes, the Group's business are mainly monitored in 3
segments as follows:

the Brazil segment comprises the Group’s subsidiaries and joint ventures engaged in the operation
and maintenance of electricity networks in Brazil;

the Australia segment comprises the Group's subsidiaries engaged in electricity and gas
transmission and distribution in Australia and the joint ventures and associates held by these
subsidiaries;

the “Corporate” segment comprises, principally, the Group's investments in other associates and
joint-ventures.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating segments separately for the purpose of
making decisions about resources allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance
is evaluated based on reportable segment profit/{lass), which is a measure of profit/(loss) before
tax from continuing operations.

Segment assets and liabilities are also reviewed by the management for decision making.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Year ended 31 December 2019

Segment revenue:
Operating revenue

Revenue from continuing operations

Segment resuits
Reconciliation

Elimination of other income
Elimination of finance costs

Exchange losses
Profit before tax

Segment assets

Reconciliation

Elimination of other receivables
Elimination of long-term receivables

Total assets

Segment liabilities
Reconciliation

Elimination of short-term loans
Elirmination of tong-term loans
Efimination of long-term payables

Total Iiabilities

Other segment information;
Share of profits and losses of:
Associates
Joint ventures

Impairment losses recognised in the
statement ot protit or loss
Impairment losses reversed in the
statement of profit or loss
ather non-cash expenses
Depreciation and amortisation

Investments in associates
investments in joint ventures

Capital expenditure*

Brazil
HK$'000

67,994,174

8,327,090

190,035,779

102,972,415

933,648

(  461,527)

(  461,661)
( 4,911,298)

11,823,897

656,133

Australia
HK$'000

_9.725.887

1,787,209

63,686,968

54,691,438

173,402
321,293

120
22,785

(1,777,242)

1,576,854
5,236,862

2,842,965

Corporate
HKS$'000

4,531,885

186,780,437

143,713,758

4,244,797
45,431

¢ 26,485}
( 683)

46,701,046
3,561,289

1,878

Consolidated
HK$'000

_77.720,061

:
:

2

14,646,184

(  552,584)
552,584
246,865

14,893,049

440,503,184

16,403)

301,377,611
( 434,771)
( 7,592,795
(116,652,153)

176,697.892

4,418,199
1,300,372

4 461,527)
120

( 465,361)

( 6,689,223)

48,277,900
20,622,048

3,500,976

* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and equipment, investment preperties and intangibie assets.
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4, OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Brazil Australia

Year ended 31 December 2018 HKS'000 HKS'000

Segment revenue (restated):

Operating revenue (restated) 77,871,218 10,118,086

Revenue from continuing operations
(restated)

Segment resuits (restated) 7,750,162

Reconcliiation

Elimination of other income

Elimination of finance costs

Exchange losses

2,089,745

Profit before tax (restated)

Segment assets (restated) 182,220,982 62,469,776
Reconcifiation
Elimination of other receivables

Elimination of leng-term receivables
Total assets (restated)

Segment liabllities (restated)
Reconciliation

Elimination of short-term loans
Elimination of long-term loans
Elimination of long-term payables

102,098,099 52,260,866

Total liabilities (restated)

Other segment information:

Share of profits and losses of:
Associates - 160,926
Joint ventures 1,348,466 322,877

Impairment losses recognised in the

statement of profit or loss (  364,465) ( 1,960)
Other non-cash expenses ( 641,573) 1,760
Depreciation and amortisation ( 5,431,317) (1,664,803)

Investments in associates -
Investments in joint ventures 12,220,155

1,762,024
5,148,123
4,309,330

Capital expenditure* 3,794,012

Corporate
HK3'000

4,707,004

195,927,698

152,447,209

4,318,608
29,878

( 76,284)
( 394)

46,555,484
3,572,740

3,083

Consolidated
HK$'000

87,989,30.

87.985,304
14,546,911
« 482,166)
482,166

_. 1,284,266
15,831,177
440,618,456

{ 18,7207
(134.277,372)

306,322,364

306,806,174

( 445,378)
( 7,629,632
(126,221,082)

172,510,082

4,479,534
1,701,221

(  366,425)
(  716,097)
( 7,096,514)

48,321,508
20,941,018

8,106,425

* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and equipment, investment properties and intangible assets.

The Group's operation revenue from external customers is derived from its Brazil subsidiaries,
which are engaged in the exploitation of public service concessions for transmission and
distribution of electricity, the generation of electricity of conventional and renewable sources, and
Australian subsidiaries, which are engaged in gas transmission and distribution, electricity

distribution and water distribution.
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S.

REVENUE

Revenue from contracts with customers
Service revenues
Concession revenues
Revenue from network usage charge
Revenue from electricity generation
Others

Revenue from other sources
Rental income

2019
HK$ 000

77,131,537
13,564,425
26,679,017
32,327,939
4,249,107
311,049

588,524
_ 588,524
77,720,061

2018
HKS" 000
Restated

87,445,981
14,922,906
37,357,966
29,808,227
4,586,710
770,172

543,323
__ 543,323
87,989,304

Service revenue includes revenue earned from the distribution and transmission of gas, distribution
of electricity and water and rendering of asset management services,

Disaggregated revenue information

For the year ended 31 December 2019

Type of goods ar services

Service revenues

Concession revenues

Revenue from network usage charge
Revenue from electricity generation
Others

Total revenue from contracts with customers
Timing of revenue recognition
Goods/services transferred at a point in time

Goods/services transferred over time

Total revenue from contracts with customers

60

Brazil
HK$'000

6,359,710
24,395,000
32,327,939

4,249,107

_ 73,894

2

405,65

['e)

10,608,817
56,796,833

2n
b
b
i3

Avystralia
HK$'000

7,204,715
2,284,017

9,725,887

Total
HKS$'000

13,564,425
26,679,017
32,327,939

4,249,107
. 311,049

77,131,537

g e

17,451,327
59,680,210

77,131,537
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5.

REVENUE (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

Disaggregated revenue information (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Restated):

Type of goods or services

Service revenues

Concession revenues

Revenue from network usage charge
Revenue from electricity generation
Others

Total revenue from contracts with customers
Timing of revenue recogniticn
Goods/services transferred at a point in time

Goods/services transferred over time

Total revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue recognised that was included in contract liabilities at

the beginning of the reporting period:
Types of goods and service*

61

Brazil
HKS$'000
Restated

5,039,841
37,357,966
29,808,227

4,586,710

535,151

77,327,895

12,104,526
65,223,369

Australia Total
HKS$'000 HKS'000
Restated

9,883,065 14,922,906

- 37,357,966

- 29,808,227

- 4,586,710

235,021 770,172
10,118,086 87,445,981
7,114,523 19,219,049
3,003,563 68,226,932
10,118,086 87,445,981
2019 2018
HKS$'000 HKS$000
772,717 771,680
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6.

OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
Bank interest income 2,321,431 1,625,888

Dividend income from equity investments designated at
fair value through other comprehensive income 504,464 503,225
Ineffectiveness of hedges 17,167 7,654
Others 362,943 901,933
3,206,005 3,038,700

FINANCE COSTS

2019 2018
HKS$'000 HK&'000
Interest on bank loans and other borrowings 5,935,227 6,205,120
Changes in fair value recognized in profit or loss 25,234 38,376
interest on lease liabilities 56,261 21,508
Others _ 725 __ 1,897
Less: Interest capitalised (a) B 0,893 220,546
5,926,554 6,046,355

(a) Interest capitalised

The CPFL's interests were capitalized at an average rate of 8.09% p.a. in 2019 (8.27% p.a. in 2018)
on qualifying assets, in accordance with HKAS 23.

The SGSPAA 's capitalisation rate used to determine the amount of borrowing costs to be included

in the cost of qualifying assets is the weighted average interest rate of 4.28% for the year applicable
to the Group's outstanding borrowings (year ended 31 December 2018: 4.22%).
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8.

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging:

2019 2018
Notes HKS$'000 HKS'000
Cost of electricity sales and supplies 39,724,698 41,887,994
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment and investment
properties 12&13 3,133,255 3,203,054
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 14 136,844 -
Amortisation of other intangible assets* 16 3,419,124 3,893,460
Research and development costs 7.277,065 8,669,692
Third party services 2,023,394 2,197,032
Minimum lease payments under operating leases 150,554 297,244
Staff casts (excluding directors’ remuneration (Note 9))
Wages and salaries 3,575,439 3,924,443
Pension scheme contributions 179,275 217,059
3,754,714 4,141,502
Fair value losses/(gains), net:
Derivative financial instruments at fair value through profit or
loss 42,400 46,031
Accrue impairment of contract assets, net 24 3,655 -
Accrue impairment of trade receivables, net 27 457,264 362,427
Accrue impairment of financial assets included in prepayments,
other receivables and other assets, net 488 3,998
Foreign exchange loss, net 482,529 723,752

*The amortisation of intangible assets and non- current assets costs is included in “Cost of sales™
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

No director received any fees or emoluments in respect of their services rendered to the
Group during the year (2018: Nil).
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10.

INCOME TAX

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2018: 16.5%) on the estimated
assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the year. Brazi! profits tax has been provided at the
rate of 34% (2018: 34%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Brazil during the year,
Australia profits tax has been provided at the rate of 30% (2018: 30%) on the estimated assessabie
profits arising in Australia during the year. The Philippines profits tax has been provided at the rate
of 15% (2018: 15%) on the expected dividend distribution arising in the Philippines during the year.

2019 2018

HK$’000 HKS$'000

Restated

Provision for the year 3,125,137 2,612,019
Deferred tax (Note 22) _ 659,629 _ 639,763
Tax charge for the year 3,784,766 3,251,782

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax at the statutory rates for the
countries in which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the {ax expense
at the effective tax rates, and a reconciliation of the applicable rates (i.e., the statutory tax rates)

to the effective tax rates, are as follows:

11. DIVIDENDS

2019 2018

HKS$'000 HKS$'000

Restated

Profit before tax 14,893,049 15,831,177
Tax at the Hong Kong statutory tax rate of 16.5% 2,4b5¢,353 2,612,144
Income or expense taxed at a different rates in other countries 1,087,466 1,475,540
Non-deductible expenses 1,813,531 695,617
Income not subject to tax ( 2,067,090 (1,956,869)
Effect of withholding tax on the dividend income 157,891 153,335
Effect of withholding tax profifs attributable to the Group 332,653 268,855
Tax losses not recognized 2,962 3,160
Tax charge at the Group's effective rate of 25.4% (2018: 20.5%) 03,784,766 3,251,782
2019 2018

HKS$'000 HK$'000

Dividends - ordinary share 519,101 482,518
Dividends - preference share 5,140,078 3,949,772
5,659,179 4,432,290

The dividends for the year were approved in March 2019, Novemher 2019, and December 2019,
and paid partially during the year. At year end, total outstanding amount to be paid is

HKS 1,324,675,000.
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STATE GRID INTERNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
31 December 2019

13.

14,

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

2019 2018

HK$'000 HKS$'000

Carrying amount at 1 January 175,798 210,613
Depreciation ( 3,978) ( 4,922)
Exchange realignment 17,631 ( 29,893
Carrying amount at 31 December 164,183 175,798

The Group's investment properties are measured at cost and consist of several floors of an office
building in Downtown of Rio de Janeiro, given that approximately 36% of the property is for rent,
and 64% is for the Group use.

The amounts of investment properties are maintained at historical cost, less depreciation and
impairment, where applicable. The property has been depreciated at the annual rate of 2%, based
on the useful life assessment.

As of 31 December 2019, through internal analysis, the Company identified a new average
amount of square meter for the central region of the city of Rio de Janeiro of BRL12,252/square
meters. Considering the lease percentage of 36%, the property fair value at 31 December 2019
was HK$170,711,000.

LEASES

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various items of plant and machinery, motor vehicles and other
equipment used in its operations. Leases of plant and equipment generally have lease terms
between 3 and 5 years, while transport equipment generally have lease terms between 2 and 5
years. Other equipment generally has lease terms of 12 months or less and/or is individually of low
value. Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning and subleasing the leased assets outside
the Group. There are several lease contracts that include extensicn and termination options and
variable [ease payments, which are further discussed below.
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STATE GRID INTERNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
31 December 2019

14. LEASES (CONTINUED)

(@

by

©)

Right-of-use assets

The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use assets and the movements during the year

are as follows:

Lanhd and
buildings
HKS$'000
As at 1 January 2019 577,223
Additions 741
Depreciation charge (79.,208)
Disposal of subsidiaries ( 8,704)
Exchange realignment ( 5,769)
484,283

Lease liabilities

Plant and
eguipment
HKS$'000

21,008
147
¢ 4,350)

(_211)

Transport
equipment
HK$'000

126,892
15,968

Total
HKS$'000

725,123
16,856

(53,719) (137,317

( 8,704

(_1,287) C_7.267)

. 87,854

588,691

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements during the year are as follows:

Carrying amount at 1 January

New leases

Accretion of interest recoagnised
during the year

Dispesal of subsidiaries

Payments

Exchange realignment

Carrying amount at 31 December
Analysed into:

Current portion

Non-current portion

2019

Lease liabilities

HK$'000

1,162,418
16,853

57,902
(249,328)
(202,190)
(11,842)

773,813

153,135
620,678

2018
Lease liabilities
HKS$'000

309,344
6,936

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in Note 41 to the financial statements.

The amounts recognised in profit ar loss in relation to leases are as follows:

Interest on lease liabilities
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets

Expense relating to short-term leases and low-value leases

Total amount recognised in profit or loss
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56,261
136,844
150,554
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STATE GRID INTERNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
31 December 2019

14.

15.

LEASES (CONTINUED)

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (Note 13 ) under operating iease arrangements.

GOODWILL

The goodwill breakdown and additions and write-offs in the year ended 31 December 2019 and 31

December 2018 are as follows:

At 1 January
Cost
Accumulated Impairment*

Net carrying amount

Cost at 1 January, net of accumulated impairment
Utilize for deferred tax assets*

Disposal of a subsidiary

Exchange realignment

Cost and net carrying amount at 31 December

At 31 December
Cost
Accumulated impairment*

Net carrying amount

2019
HKS$'000

14,094,872
(._114,722)

13,980,150

13,980,150
( 26,098)
( 26,597)
(_ 410,846)

13,626,275
(_ 109,666)

13,516,609

2018
HKS$"000

16,118,725
( _133,921)

15,984,804

15,984,804
( 27,816)

(1,976,838)

14,094,872
(114,722)

On 1 January 2018, SGBH identified the need to record goodwill impairment amounting to

HKS$ 133,921,000 arising from the transition to HKFRS 15 on retained earnings. in addition,
using deferred tax assets for the year ended 31 December 2018 in subsidiaries ETEE and ETIM,

goodwill decrease in amounts of HK$21,989,000 and HKS$5,827,000 respectively.
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STATE GRID INTERNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
31 December 2019

15, GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

Impairment testing of goodwill
Goodwill acquired through business combinations has been allocated to the foltowing cash-

generating units for impairment testing:

Brazilian Australian
Concession and infrastructure Concession and infrastructure Total
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Carrying amount
of goodwill 7.609,439 7.986.836 507,170 5993.314 13516609 13,980,150

1) Brazilian concession cash-generating unit

Recoverable amounts were determined by discounting future cash flows of the CGU and were
based on following assumptions:

€))

(b)

The nominal cash flows are discounted to the present value using post-tax discount rates
around 7.39% fo 11.19%.

Cash flow time horizons used in the valuing the CGU were 5 to 39 years due to the long term
nature of the CGU’s activities for SGBP.

2) Australian infrastructure cash-generating unit

Recoverable amounts were determined by discounting future cash flows of the CGU and were
based on following assumptions:

(@

(G

«©)

(D

All nominal cash flows are discounted to the present value using post-tax discount rates
ranging from 3.72% to 8.89%.

Cash flow time harizons used in the valuing the CGU were 5 to 20 vears due to the {ong term
nature of the CGU's activities.

The growth rate assumptions is primarily driven by the assumptions in the regulatory building
block model with growth being a function of the regulated asset base and the aliowable return
from the requlator. For non-requlated assets, Australian Consumer Price Index was applied.

The perpetual growth assumption used to calculate the terminal value in non-regulated assets
range from 0% to 1.0% (2018: 1,5% to 3.0%). For regulated assets, the terminal values are
calculated by applying a multiple to the regulated assets base in the terminal year.

CGU impairment testing was carried out at 31 December 2019 resulting in no impairments
being recognised (2018: nil),
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STATE GRID INTERNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
NOTES TC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
31 December 2019

i7. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES

Listed shares
Redes Energeticas Nacionais, SGPS, S.A. (REN)}
AusNet Services (Ausnet)
HK Electric Investments (HKE!}

Unlisted shares
United Energy Distribution Holdings Pty Ltd.(UEDH)
Cassa Depositi e Prestiti Reti S.p.a. (CDP Reti)
National Grid Corporation of the Philippines (NGCP)
Independent Power Transmission Operator S.A. (IPTO)

73

31 December 31 December 1 January
2019 2018 2018
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
4,138,030 4,288,020 4,465,111
4,609,131 4,961,896 5,627,475
10,307,915 10,365,315 10,570,488
19,055,076 19,615,231 20,663,074
1,576,853 1,762,024 2,046,973
19,664,143 19,799,927 20,298,693
4,298,826 4,006,863 3,818,394
3,683,002 ..3,137.463 3,111,521
29,222,824 28,706,277 29,275,581
48,277,900 48,321,508 49,938,655




STATE GRID INTERNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
31 December 2019

17. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

Particulars of the associates as at the end of the year are as follows:

Particulars of

registered capital/paid

Place of
registration

Percentage of
ownership interest
attributable to the

Name in capital and business company
National Grid Corporation Manila,

of the Philippines The

(NGCP) PHP2,000,000,000 Philippines 40%
Redes Energeticas

Nacionais, SGPS, S.A. Lishon,

(REN) EUR667,191,000 Portugal 25%
AusNet Services Victoria,

(Ausnet) AU$5,162,500,000 Australia 19.9%
HK Electric Investments Hong Kong,

(HKED HKS$8,000,000 China 21%
United Energy

Distribution Holdings Victoria,

Pty Ltd. (UEDH) AUS$306,112,000 Australia 34%
Cassa Depositi e Prestiti

Reti S.p.a.

(CDP RETDH EUR161,514 italy 35%
Independent Power

Transmission Operator Athens

S.AL(IPTO) EUR38,444,000 Greece 24%

74

Principal activities

Operate electric
transmission grid

QOperate
electric/gas
transmission grid

Operate electric
transmission/
distribution grid
Generate
electric/Operate
electric/gas
transmission/
distribution grid

Operate electric
distribution grid

Holding company

Transmission of
electricity



STATE GRID INTERNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
31 December 2019

17.

INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

NGCP and HK Electric Investments are directly held by the Company. REN, CDP RETI and IPTQ are
held by State Grid Europe Limited. AusNet Services is held by State Grid International Australia

Development Limited. UEDH is an associate of SGSPAA.

All above associates are considered individually material associates of the Group, and are

accounted for using the equity method.

The following table illustrates the summarised financial information of NGCP and HK Electric
Investments, adjusted for any differences in accounting policies, and reconciled to the carrying
amount in the consolidated financial statements:

Current assets

Non-current assets, excluding goodwill
Goodwill on acquisition of the associate
Current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Net assets
Net assets, excluding goodwill

Reconciliation to the Group's interest in
the associates:

Proportion of the Group’s ownership

Group's share of net assets of the
associates, excluding goodwill

Goodwill on acquisition

Carrying amount of the investment

Revenue

Profit far the year

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the year
Dividend received by the Group

NGCP HK Electric Investments
2019 2018 2019 2018
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
8,794,098 7,320,783 2,178,000 2,051,000
36,736,132 32,043,208 107,539,000 105,843,000
- - 613,310 615,645
7,959,534 6,561,022 10,247,000 3,879,000
26,823,632 22,785,812 50,998,000 55,272,000
10,747,064 10,017,157 49,085,310 49,358,645
10,747,064 10,017,157 48,472,000 48,743,000
40% 40% 21% 21%
4,298,826 4,006,863 10,179,120 10,236,030
- - 128,795 129,285
4,298,826 4,006,863 10,307,915 10,365,315
6,873,036 6,755,818 10,739,000 11,612,000
3,032,596 3,121,862 2,327,000 3,051,000
(29,960 32,111 586,000 (__ 490,000
3.002,636 3,153,973 2,913,000 —2.561,000
_ 772,616 1,073,120 _ 669,130 742,983
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STATE GRID INTERNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
31 December 2019

17. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)
The following table illustrates the summarised financial information of REN and IPTO, adjusted for

any differences in accounting policies, and reconciled to the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements:

REN IPTO
2019 2018 2019 2018

HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
Current assets 3,449,271 4,480,979 7,011,075 12,863,745
Non-current assets, excluding goodwill 42,838,454 42,015,277 18,571,793 15,012,976
Goodwill on acquisition of the associate 3,934,793 4,041,809 3,742,677 3,865,828
Current liabilities 9,840,623 7,624,498 4,502,468 8,548,875
Non-current liabilities 23,829,776 25,761,487 9,477,235 10,120,912
Net assets 16,552,119 17,152,080 15,345,842 13,072,762
Net assets, excluding goodwill 12,617,326 13,110,271 11,603,165 9,206,934
Reconciliation to the Group's interest in
the associates:
Proportion of the Group's ownership 25% 25% 24% 24%
Group’s share of net assets of the
associates, excluding goodwilt 3,154,332 3,277,568 2,784,760 2,209,664
Goodwill on acquisition 983,698 21,010,452 898,242 927,799
Carrying amount of the investment _ 4,138,030 4,288,020 3,683,002 3,137,463
Revenue 6,576,182 6,373,753 2,190,903 2,304,735
Profit for the year 1,042,911 1,070,040 926,198 794,039
Other comprehensive income (200,014 o - 2,073,848 77,177
Total comprehensive income for the year __ 842,897 1,070,040 3,000,046 _871,216
Dividend received by the Group 250,182 __ 263,753 290,098 52,272
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STATE GRID INTERNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

31 December 2019

17.

INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

The following table illustrates the summarised financial information of CDP RETI, adjusted for any
differences in accounting policies, and reconciled to the carrying amount in the consolidated

financial statements:

Current assets

Non-current assets

Goodwill on acquisiticn of the associate
Current liabilities

Non-current {iabilities

Net assets
Net assets, excluding goodwill

Net asset attributable to the parent company,
excluding goodwill

Reconciliation to the Group’s interest in the
associates:

Proportion of the Group's ownership

Group's share of net assets of the associates,
excluding goodwiil

Goodwill on acquisition

Carrying amount of the investment

Attributable to the parent company
Revenue

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the year
Dividend received by the Group

7

CDP RETI
2019 2018
HK$000 HK$'000
73,536,340 64,805,148
428,144,930 418,836,996
18,995,070 19,549,363
95,767,950 93,235,589
271,449,267 257,732,233

153,459,123

134,464,053

37,188,195

35%

13,015,868
6,648,275

_. 19,664,143

(

17,996,635
4,985,708
410,423)
4,575,285
1,223,776

152,223,685

132,674,322

37.021,857

35%

12,957,650
6,842,277
18,799,927

18,575,941
4,778,407
( 164,378)
4,614,029




STATE GRID INTERNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
31 December 2019

17.

18.

INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

The following table illustrates the summarised financial information of Ausnet and UEDH, adjusted
for any differences in accounting policies, and reconciled to the carrying amount in the consclidated

financial statements:

Current assets

Non-current assets, excluding goodwil
Goodwill on acquisition of the associate
Current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Net assets
Net assets, excluding goodwill

Reconciliation to the Group’s interest in
the associates:

Proportion of the Group's ownership

Group's share of net assets of the
associates, excluding goodwill

Goodwill on acquisition

Carrying amount of the investment

Revenue

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the year
Dividend received by the Group

INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURES

ElectraNet Pty Ltd. (ElectraNet)

ActewAGL Distribution Partnership (ActewAGL)

Energética Barra Grande S.A. (BAESA)
Campos Novos Energia S.A. (ENERCAN)

Foz do Chapecd Energia S.A. (chapecoense)
Centrais Elétricas da Paraiba S.A. (EPASA)

Other joint ventures in Brazil (defined below)

Ausnet UEDH

2019 2018 2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$"000 HK$'000 HK$"000
4,872,443 5,072,772 1,206,769 466,021
73,016,857 63,104,007 17,913,547 17,314,711
6,773,130 6,104,564 3,874,319 3,965,993
7,469,519 5,068,917 778,310 2,646,041
54,031,449 44,278,273 17,578,517 13,918,261
23,161,462 24,934,153 4,637,808 5,182,423
16,388,332 18,829,589 763,489 1,216,430
19.9% 19.9% 34% 34%
3,261,278 3,747,088 259,586 413,586
1,347,853 1,214,808 1,317,267 1,348,438
4,609,131 4,961,826 1,576,853 _1,762,024
10,770,998 10,732,865 3,724,791 3,800,779
1,583,298 1,500,658 530,146 458,485
(1,810,417 o - {_ 276,858 (100,604
( 227,119 1,500,658 253,288 _ 357,881
396,365 399,075 _ 246,941 . 220,391

31 December 31 December 1 January

2019 2018 2018

HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000

3,561,288 3,572,740 3,905,965

5,236,862 5,148,123 5,551,039

40,302 78,401 108,773

2,086,416 2,126,071 2,632,010

2,075,513 2,373,336 2,975,406

787,787 822,946 942,377

65,833,880 6,819,401 7,071,051

20,622,048 20,941,018 23,186,621
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18.

INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

Particulars of the joint ventures as at the end of the year are as follows:

Name

ElectraNet Pty Ltd.
(ElectraNet)

ActewAGL Distribution
Partnership(ActewAGL)

Matrincha Transmissora
de Energia (TP North)
S.A*

Guaraciaba Transmissora
de Energia (TP Sul)
S.AL*Y

Luziania-Niquelandia
Transmissora S.A*

Paranaiba Transmissora
de Energia S.A*

Belo Monte Transmissora
De Energia S.A. *

Energética Barra Grande
S.A. (BAESA)

Campos Novos Energia
S.A. (ENERCAN)

Foz do Chapecé Energia
S.A.(chapecoense)

Centrais Elétricas da
Paraiba S.A(EPASA)

Particulars of
registered
capital/paid in
capital

AU$10,000

AUS$1,187,968,000

BRL1,508,073

BRL803,832

BRL33,305

BRL534,761

BRL3,011,000,000

BRL398,381,000

BRL200,787,000

BRL714,509,000

BRL221,413,000

Place of
incorporation
and business

Canberra
Australia

Canberra
Australia

Ric de Janeiro
Brazil

Ric de Janeiro
Brazil

Ric de Janeiro
Brazil

Ric de Janeiro
Brazil

Rio de Janeiro
Brazil

Santa Catarina
and Rio Grande
do Sul Brazil

Santa Catarina
Brazil

Santa Catarina
and Rio Grande
do Sul Brazil

Paraiba Brazil

* Collectively referred as “Joint ventures in Brazil".
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Percentage of
ownership interest
attributable to the

company

46.56%

50%

51%

51%

51%

51%

51%

25.01%

48.72%

51.00%

53.34%

Principal activities
QOperate electric
fransmission grid

Operate electric
transmission grid
gas transmission

and distribution

Operate electric

transmission grid

Operate electric
transmission grid

Operate electric
transmission grid

Operate electric
transmission grid

Operate electric
transmission grid

Energy generation

Energy generation

Energy generation

Energy generation
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18,

INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

ActewAGL and ElectraNet are considered as material joint ventures of the Group, and are
accounted for using the equity method. ActewAGL is a joint venture of SGSPAA.,

The following table illustrates the summarised financial information of ActewAGL and ElectraNet,
adjusted for any differences in accounting policies, and reconciled to the carrying amount in the

consclidated financial statements:

Current assets

Non-current assets

Goodwill on acquisition of the joint venture
Current liabilities

Mon-current tiabilities

Net assets
Net assets, excluding goodwill

Reconciliation to the Group’'s interest in the
joint ventures:

Proportion of the Group's interest

Group's share of net assets of the joint
ventures, excluding goodwill

Goodwill on acquisition

Carrying amount of the investment

Revenue

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the year
Dividend received by the Group

ActewAGL ElectraNet
2019 2018 2019 2018
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000
845,726 757,452 252,455 252,206
7,739,720 7,409,623 18,571,010 17,244,231
2,704,604 2,719,263 3,820,545 3,742,178
618,532 485,818 2,240,473 419,611
197,793 104,275 12,754,722 13,145,594
10,473,725 10,296,245 7.648,815 7,673,410
7,769,121 7,576,982 3,828,270 3,931,232
50% 50% 46.56% 46.56%
3,884,560 3,788,491 1,782,443 1,830,382
1,352,302 1,359,632 1,778,845 1,742,358
5,236,862 5,148,123 3.561.288 3,072,740
2,215,658 1,829,907 2,205,255 2,160,848
642,586 627,660 97,574 64,170
- - 4 46,840 ) 224,742
642,586 627,660 50,734 _ 288,912
182,132 183,834 - 89,518
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18.

INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

BAESA and ENERCAN are considered as material joint ventures of the Group, and are accounted

for using the equity method.

The following table illustrates the summarised financial information for Joint ventures of BAESA
and ENERCA, adjusted for any differences in accounting policies, and reconciled to the carrying
amount in the consolidated financial statements:

Current assets
Non-current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

Net assets
Consolidation adjustments
Net assets, including adjustment

Reconciliation to the Group’s interest in
the joint ventures:

Propertion of the Group's interest

Group's share of net assets of the joint
ventures, excluding adjustment

Consclidation adjustments

Carrying amount of the investment

Revenue

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the year
Dividend received by the Group

BAESA ENERCAN
2019 2018 2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
129,206 139,395 423,422 421,131
1,768,878 1,954,111 1,897,679 2,088,856
139,873 102,367 755,215 778,826
551,254 _ 574,897 _ 741,460 1,004,590
1,206,957 1,416,242 824,426 726,571
(1,045,814) (1,102,763) 3,458,036 3,637,286
161,143 313,479 4,282,462 4,363,857
25.01% 25.01% 48.72% 48.72%
301,860 354,202 401,660 353,985
(_261,558) (_275,801) 1,684,756 1,772,086
—..40.302 78,401 2,086,416 2,126,071
569,319 691,515 1,293,989 1,274,484
14,519 51,194 483,395 175,221
14,519 51,194 483,395 175,221
32,311 28,545 255,878 _222.368
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18.

INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

Chapecoense and EPASA are considered as material joint ventures of the Group, and are accounted

for using the equity method.

The following table illustrates the summarised financial information for Joint ventures of
Chapecoense and EPASA, adjusted for any differences in accounting poiicies, and reconciled to the

carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements:

Current assets
Non-current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

Net assets
Consolidation adjustments
Net assets, including adjustment

Reconciliation to the Group’s interest in
the joint ventures:

Proportion cof the Group's interest

Group's share of net assets of the joint
ventures, excluding adjustment

Consolidation adjustments

Carrying amount of the investment

Revenue

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Tatal comprehensive income for the year
Dividend received by the Group

Chapecoense EPASA
2019 2018 2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
733,073 698,908 569,820 661,201
4,777,057 5,264,313 909,858 1,016,042
873,064 858,400 180,703 307,608
3,192,619 3,604,321 417,849 454,702
1,444,447 1,500,500 881,166 914,933
2,625,185 3,153,099 595,750 627,898
4,069,632 4,653,599 1476916 1,542.831
51.00% 51.00% 53.34% 53.34%
736,668 765,255 470,014 488,025
1,338,845 1,608,081 317,773 334,921
2,075,513 2,373,336 __ 787,787 822,946
1,752,339 1,860,152 1,113,684 1,808,783
149,297 303,455 315,740 354,899
149,297 303,455 315,740 . 354,899
268,242 _ 289,752 164,843 __ 224,585
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18.

19.

INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial information of the Group's joint ventures
that are not individually material:

2019 2018

HK$'000 HK$'000

Share of the joint-ventures’ profit for the year 452,377 906,229
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's investments in

joint-ventures* 6,833,880 6,819,401

Dividends received 42,842 57,444

* During the year, SGBH together with the other shareholder disinvested in joint-venture of SGBH,
Guaraciaba, based on their previous shareholding ratio (51%:49%), receiving BRL 35.7million
(equivalent to approximately HKS 71 million) in cash. After the completion of the capital
decrease, the Company's shareholding ratio in Guaraciaba remains 51%.

EQUITY INVESTMENTS DESIGNATED AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME/ OTHER EQUITY INSTRUMENT INVESTMENTS

31 December 31 December 1 January
2019 2018 2018
HKS$'C00 HKS$'000 HK$'000
Equity investments designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income
Listed equity investments, at fair value:
China Construction Bank 8,851,853 8,496,726 9,470,035
China Datang Corporation Renewable Power
Co.,Ltd. 131,791 156,815 155,146
Guodian Technology & Environment Group
Corporation Ltd. 18,384 21,741 40,431
China Energy Engineering Corporation Ltd. 916,398 265,143 1,364,849
China Datang Envirenment Industry Group
Co,, Ltd. 82,980 122,319 173,952
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China _ 169,893 - -
10,171,299 8.762,744 11,204,413

The above equity investments were irrevocably designated at fair value through other
cemprehensive income as the Group considers these investments to be strategic in nature.

During the vyear, the fair value gain in respect of the Group's listed equity investments was
recognised in other comprehensive income amounted to HK$239,309,000 (2018: loss
HKS$1,441,668,000).

The fair values of listed equity investments are based on market prices at the end of the shares
quoted in Hong Kong Stock Exchange at the end of reporting period and fall into the Level 1 fair
value hierarchy in HKFRS 13.

31 December 31 December 1 January

2019 2018 2018

Other equity instrument investments HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000
Unfisted equity investments, at fair value:

Investco S.A. 147,104 153,887 179,640

Luneng Brasi! Sports Center Ltda. 96,927 95,705 104,419

244,031 249,592 284,059
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19.

20.

EQUITY INVESTMENTS DESIGNATED AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH CTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME/ OTHER EQUITY INSTRUMENT INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2019, certain unlisted equity investments with a carrying amount of
HKS244,031,000 were stated at fair value. Because the range of reasonable fair value estimates
is so significant that the directors are of the opinion that the cost is the best estimate of it since
there are no observable reliable information of fair value. The Group does not intend to dispose of
them in the near future.

5.94% interest of Investco S.A. ("Investco") was held by the indirect subsidiary Paulista Lajeado
Energia S.A. in the form of 28,154,140 common shares and 18,593,070 preferred shares. As
Investca’s shares are not traded on the stock exchange and the main abjective of its operations is
to generate electric energy for commercialization by the shareholders holding the concession, the
Group opted to recognize the investment at fair value in the financial statements, for which cost
is the best estimate of it, since there are no available reliable information at fair value, according
to HKFRS 9,

On 6 February 2014, the Company acquired the total capital of Luneng Brasil Sports Center Ltda.
(“Luneng Brasil™). On 29 August 2014, the Company entered into a custody agreement with Shan
Dong Luneng Tai Shan Feetbal Club Limited ("Luneng™) to transfer all management rights and
powers to Luneng Brazil. In consideration thereof, Luneng exempts the Company from any
variations in Luneng Brazil's equity. This custody agreement is effective for 3 years from June
2014 and provides for automatic renewal in the absence of express nctification of the parties 3
months in advance. At 31 December 2019, management was not aware of the intention to cancel
such agreement.

FINANCIAL ASSETS - CONCESSION RIGHTS

31 December 2019 31 December 2018 1 January 2018

HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000

Concession revenue receivables
Non-current 16,983,494 15,070,775 14,987,164
16,983,494 15,070,775 14,987,164

The concession revenue receivables are derived from these operational subsidiaries in Brazil, which
have entered into the electric power distribution service concession arrangements executed by the
Brazil Government and the Company.

The concession revenue receivables balances are amended every year by the deadline of the
concession. The realisation of the amounts classified as non-current assets is projected by the end
of the concession periods. The fair value of the financial assets- concession fall into the Level 3 of
the fair value hierarchy.
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21,

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

The Group classified the fair value measurements of its financial instruments using Levei 1, Level
2 and Level 3 fair value hierarchy that reflect the significance of the inputs used in making the
measurements.

Forward contracts and Zero-cost collar option

Forward currency contracts and Zero-cost collar option are designated as hedging instruments in
respect of forecast future sales, forecast purchases and investments in Euros and US Dollars. The
forward currency contract and Zero-cost collar option balances vary with the levels of expected
foreign currency safes, purchases, investments and changes in foreign exchange forward rates.

Cross currency swaps
Besides, the Group held cross currency swaps for its EUR, USD, HKD and GBP denominated
borrowings. The maturity of these swaps matches the maturity cf the relevant foreign currency
denominated borrowings.

Interest rate swap contracts

The Group's subsidiaries in Australia and Brazil utilise Interest Rate Swap (“IRS") to manage its
exposure to interest risk, Under the IRS, the Group agrees to exchange the difference between the
fixed and floating rate interest amounts calculated on agreed notional principal amounts.
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22. DEFERRED TAX

Ceferred tax liabilities

2019

Conversion of contractual asset of SGBH

Fair value adjustments arising from acquisition of CPFL Energia S.A.

Allowance for doubtful accounts

Free energy supply

Research and development and energy efficiency programs

Value added derived from determination of deemed cost
Withholding taxes - Philippines
Property, plant and equipment

Hedged items, hedging instruments and interests in equity-
accounted investees

Concession - financial assets
Intangible assets

Provision

Defined benefits

Other items

Balance at 31 December 2019

Deferred tax liabilities

2018 {Restated)

Conversion of contractual asset of SGBH

Fair value adjustments arising from acquisition of CPFL Energia 5.A.

Allowance for doubtful accounts

Free energy supply

Research and develepment and energy efficiency programs
Value added derived from determination of deemed cost
Withhelding taxes - Philippines

Preperty, plant and equipment

Hedged items, hedging instruments and interests in equity-
accounted investees

Concession - financial assets
Intangible assets

Provision

Defined benefits

Cther items

Balance at 31 December 2018 (Restated)

87

Charged to

Opening profit or Exchange
balance loss alignment
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000

Restated
6,483,333 567,720 166,583
12,425,443 (545,481) (547,666)
( 231,517) ( 22,319 10,829
¢ 76,000 ( 3,498 3,182
{ 210,056) ( 43,430 10,473
188,554 { 41,404) ¢ 7,153
114,006 163,172 (136,364
4,820,964 301,938 ( 57,984}
490,842 ( 87,528) (381,318)
1,146,174 177,119 ( 70,589)
2,119,137 (84,466} ( 79,487
(1,048,225) 189,561 418,752
(609,350) (602,418} 35,578
(__14,134) ( 98,559) ..46,859
25605131 (129.593) (588.305)

Charged to

Gpening profit or Exchange
balance loss alignment
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Restated
4,948,046 1,638,344 ¢ 103,057)
15,431,057 { 753,748) (2,251,866)
{ 243,859 ( 24,091 36,433
( 74,726) { 6378 11,104
{ 194,797) ( 46,001 30,742
555,877 ¢ 12,287 ¢ 355,036)
138,613 136,361 ( 160,968)
5,275,523 298,663 ( 753,222)
615,192 36,489 { 160,839}
1,061,426 252,361 ( 167,613)
2,111,249 ( 193,306) 201,194
(1,051,620} ( 20,991 24,386
( 512,997 ( 186,124) 89,731
( _41,832) 49,865 ( 22,16T)
28,017,152 1,169,157 (3,581,178

Closing
balance

HK$'000

7,217,636
11,332,296
( 243.007)
 70.31&
( 243,013)

139,997
140,814
5,064,918

21,996
1,252,704
1,955,184

{ 439,912
(1,176,230
(__ 65834)

24,887,233

Closing
balance

HK$'000
Restated

6,483,333
12,425,443
( 231,517)
{ 70,000)
( 210,056)

188,554
114,006
4,820,964

490,842
1,146,174
2,119,137

(1,048,225)
{ 609,390)
(14,134

25,605,131
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22,

23.

DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

Deferred tax assets 2019 2018
HK$'000 HKS$'000

Restated

Opening balance of gross deferred tax assets 3,289,486 4,077,924

Deferred tax charged to the statement of

profit or loss during the year ( 789,222 ( 161,733)
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to equity

during the year . 673,602 (_626,705)
Closing balance of gross deferred tax assets 3,173,866 3,289,486

SECTOR FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The breakdown of the balances of sector financial asset and liability and the movement for the year
are as follows:

31 December 31 December 1 January
2019 2018 2018
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000
Parcel "A" (Note) 2,684,539 3,838,895 1,625,963
CVA (™)
CDE (**) 230,651 406,081 (1,178,536)
Electric energy cost 917,382 2,467,495 3,793,329
ESS and EER (***) (1,241,868) (2,047,840) (2,692,860)
Proinfa 46,845 6,823 ( 43,826)
Basic network charges 364,555 120,849 7,608
Pass-through from ltaipu 2,688,614 3,247,414 2,561,275
Transmission from ltaipu 92,829 89,397 36,832
Neutrality of sector charges ( 47,707) ( 99,322) 341,347
Over contracting ( 366,762) ( 352,002 (1,199,206)
Other financial components (764,169 (__790,154) (_405,142)
Total 1,920,370 3,048,741 1,220,821
Current assets 2,113,249 2,690,578 497,526
Non-current assets 5311 452,573 837,736
Current liabilities - - ( 94,6549
Non-current liabilities ( 198,190) ¢ 94,410) ( 19,787
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23.

SECTOR FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

Note: In accordance with the requlation in Brazil, Parcel A" refers to the non-controllable costs
incurred in the business operation of utility companies involved in transmission and distribution of
electricity. This parcel should be neutral in relation to the entity's performance, i.e,, the costs
incurred by the distributors, classifiable as Parcel “A", are fully passed through the consumer or
borne by the granting authority.

(*) Deferred tariff costs and gains variations from Parcel A" items

(**) Energy Development Account — CDE

(***) System Service Charge (E88) and Reserve Energy Charge (EER}

All of the sector financial assets and liabilities come from CPFL Energia S.A.

a) CVA

Refers to the variations of the Parcel A account, These amounts are adjusted based on the SELIC
rate and are compensated in the subsequent tariff processes.

b) Neutrality of sector charges

This refers to the neutrality of the sector charges contained in the electric energy tariffs,
calculating the monthly differences between the amounts billed relating to such charges and the
respective amounts considered at the time the distributors’ tariff was set.

¢) Over contracting

Electric energy distribution concessionaires are required to guarantee 100% of their energy market
through contracts approved, registered and ratified by ANEEL. It is also assured to the distribution
concessionaires that costs or revenues derived from energy surplus will be passed through the
tariffs, limited to 5% of the energy load requirement. These amounts are adjusted based on SELIC
rate and are compensated in the subsequent tariff processes.

d) Other financial components

Refers mainly to:

(i excess demand and excess reactive power that, will be amortized upon the approval of the
periodic tariff review cycle;

)] recalculations of the tariff processes and;

an; tariff effect arising from the bilateral agreement between the parties signatories of the
Power Trading Chamber in the Regulated Environment - CCEAR, and

(iv) financiat quarantees for energy contracts.
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24.

CONTRACT ASSETS

31 December 2019 31 December 2018 1 January 2018
HKS'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
Restated Restated

Contract assets arising from:
Sale of goods 972,516 1,181,110 1,135,520
Construction services 43,867,691 40,731,296 29,214,092
Impairment ( 8,888 ( 49,010} ( 54,223)
Total 44,831,319 41,863,396 30,295,389

Contract assets are initially recognised for revenue earned from the sale of goods and construction
services as the receipt of consideration is conditional on successful completion of installation of
the industrial products and construction, respectively. Included in contract assets for construction
services are retentionreceivables, Upon completion of installation or construction and acceptance
by the customer, the amounts recognised as contract assets are reclassified to trade receivables.
The increase in contract assets in 2019 and 2018 was the result of the increase in the ongoing
sale of industriaf products and the provision of construction services at the end of the year.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, HK$3,655,000 (2018: Nil} was recognised as an
allowance for expected credit losses on contract assets.

The expected timing of recovery or settlement for contract assets as at 31 December is as follows:

31 December 2019 31 December 2018 1 January 2018

HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000

Restaled Restaled

Within cne year 5,851,833 4,582,525 3,223,692
After one year 38,979,486 37,280,871 27,071,697
Total contract assets 44.,831,31 41,863,396 30,295,389
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24.

25.

CONTRACT ASSETS (CONTINUED)

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of contract assets are as follows:

At beginning of year
Impairment losses, net
Amounts utilized
Exchange realignment

At end of year

OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Loans due from an associate

Loans due from joint venture
Loans due from non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries

Escrow deposit

Pledges, funds and restricted deposits

Taxes recoverable
Reserve accounts (a)
Others

2019
HKS$'000

49,010)
( 3,655

43,251
926

(_8.888)

31 December 2019 31 December 2018

HK$'000

496,250
1,644,742

1,463,541
1,100,953
716,138
194,003
2,473,291

8,088,918

HK$000

501,173
1,562,093

1,727,117
1,060,198
375,443
94,106
2,316,998

7,637,128

2018
HKS$'000

(54,223)

5,213

(49,010)

1 January 2018

HK$000

554,488
1,655,551

20,323
1,982,208
1,466,590
405,838
128,659
1,668,135

7,881,792

(a) Reserve accounts are balances stated as non-current to meet security interest requirements
provided in the financing agreement with the Naticnal Bank for Economic and Social
Development (BNDES). This account may only be transacted upon formal authorization from

BNDES.
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26. INVENTORIES
31 December 2019 31 December 2018 1 January 2018
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
Materials 326,991 336,520 321,317
27. TRADE RECEIVABLES
31 December 2019 31 December 2018 1 January 2018
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
Trade receivables 11,347,557 10,602,000 11,581,746
Impairment (_ 654,843) ( 624,933) (759,546
10,692,714 9,977,067 10,822,200

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the reporting period, based on the
invoice date and net of loss allowance, is as follows:

31 Becember 2019

Neither past due nor impaired
Past due but not Impaired:
Less than 90 days
Over 90 days

31 December 2018

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade receivables are as follows:

At beginning of year
Impairment losses

Recovery of revenue

Write-off of accrued receivables
Exchange realignment

HKS$'000 HK$'000
8,669,069 8,198,871
2,044,606 1,900,415

633,882 502,714

11,347,557 10,602,000
2019 2018

HKS$'000 HK$'000

(624,933) (759,546)

(861,249) (600,146)

403,985 237,719

398,359 390,262

28,995 106,778

(654,843) (624,933)

Set out below is the information about the credit risk expesure on the Group's trade receivables

using a provision matrix:

As at 31 December 2019

Less than 90 days

Expected credit loss rate
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000)
Expected credit losses (HK$'000)
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Past due
Over 90 days Total
22% 33% 24%
044,606 633,882 2,678,488
445,662 209,181 654,843



STATE GRID INTERNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
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31 December 2019

28. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND OTHER ASSETS

31 December 31 December 1 January
2019 2018 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
Restated
Tax recoverable 1,082,229 947,328 1,248,879
Prepayments 308,519 166,296 577.427
Receivables-CDE 284,971 371,371 573,209
Orders in progress 253,056 288,485 394,552
Pledges, funds and restricted deposits 2,765 156,549 375,896
Dividend and interest on capital 386,731 476,374 256,056
Other receivables 741,205 967,067 561,843
3,059,476 3,373,470 3,987,862
Impairment allowance (_ 56,076) (_ 58,013) ( 71,072
3,003,400 3,315,457 3,916,790

The financial assets included in the above balances relate to receivables for which there was no
recent history of default.

Receivables - CDE: refer to:

Q) low-income subsidies amounting to HKS 32,743,000 (31 December 2018:
HKS$ 25,342,000 ).

(ii) other tariff discounts granted to consumers amounting to HKS 252,209,000 (31 December
2018: HK$ 345,389,000).

(it tariff discounts - court injunctions amounting to HKS$ 19,000 (31 December 2018:
HKS$ 641,000).

Orders in progress: encompass costs and revenues related to ongoing decommissioning or disposal
of intangible assets and the service costs related to expenditure on projects in progress under the
Energy Efficiency ("PEE") and Research and Development programs (“P&D"). Upon the closing of
the respective projects, the balances are amortized against the respective liability recognized in
Other Payables.

Pledges, funds and restricted deposits: refer to guarantees offered for transactions conducted in
the CCEE and investments required by the subsidiaries’ loans agreements.
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29

30.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

31 December 2019 31 December 2018 1 January 2018

HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000

Marketable securities
Through investment funds (a) 869,167 - -
Direct investment (b) 775,314 - -
1,644,481 - .- - -

(a) This refers to amounts CPFL invested in government securities, Financial Bills ("LF") and
Financial Treasury Bills ("LFT"), through investment fund quotas, vielding on average 99.87%
of the CDI and with maturities as from September 2020.

(b) This refers to amounts CPFL invested in government securities and LFT, yielding on average
100% of the CDI, with maturities in September 2020,

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

31 December 2019 31 December 2018 1 January 2018

HKS'00Q HK$'000 HKS'000
Cash and cash equivalents 16,613,927 8,503,198 14,487,713
Denominated in:
Brazilian Real ("BRL") 15,262,711 7,230,748 14,048,602
AUD 220,898 207,822 194,613
UshD 262,846 169,964 161,718
EUR 844,840 873,669 60,891
HKD 16,895 19,844 16,374
CNY 17 48 4,978
Others 5,720 1,103 . ..._537
16,613,927 8,503,198 14,487,713

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. Short term time
deposits are made for varying periods of between one day and three months depending on the
immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short term time
deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of
default. The carrying amounts of the cash and cash equivalents approximate to their values,

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances of the Group denominated in
Brazilian Real ("BRL") amounted to HKS 15,262,711,000 (2018: HKS$7,230,748,000). The BRL is
not freely convertible into other currencies, however, according to the Brazilian regulation, the
Group is permitted to exchange BRL for other currencies through financiat institutions authorised
to conduct foreign exchange business on certain conditions.
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31.

32.

33.

TRADE PAYABLES

31 December 2019 31 December 2018 1 January 2018

HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
Trade payables 6,874,728 6,353,441 9,311,165
6,874,728 6,353,441 9,311,165

The trade payables are unsecured and interest-free.

As of 31 December 2019 and 2018 the carrying values of trade payables approximated to their fair
values due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

31 December 31 December 1 January

2019 2018 2018

HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000

Amount due to related parties (Note 33 & 42) 314,750 320,508 279,219
Professional fees 379,579 215,405 89,579
Payroll payable 567,447 564,667 616,432
Dividend payable 1,578,895 1,152,363 904,145
Research & Development and Energy Efficiency 626,308 593,755 684,174
Other tax payable and regulatory charges 2,059,543 1,780,143 2,989,752
Other payables 2,012,112 1,315,539 1,206,219
7,538,634 5,942,380 6,769,520

Research & Development and Energy Efficiency Programs: the subsidiaries in Brazil recognized
liabilities relating to amounts already billed in tariffs (1% of net operating revenue), but not yet
investedin the research & development and energy efficiency programs. These amounts are subject
to adjustment for inflation at the SELIC rate, through the date of their realization. SELIC refers to
one of the base interest rate for borrowings in Brazil.

AMOUNT DUE TC RELATED PARTIES

31 December 31 December 1 January

Name 2019 2018 2018
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000

State Grid International Development Co., Ltd. 155,642 157,604 116,806
State Grid Corporation, Qing Hai subsidiary 159,108 160,030 159,703
CLP International Travel Agency - 2,874 _ 2,710
314,750 320,508 279,219

State Grid International Development Co., Ltd. is the Company's parent company. The amount due
to related parties are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment.
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STATE GRID INTERNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

31 December 2019

34.

INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

Analysed into:
Bank loans repayable:
Within one year
In the second year

In the third to fifth years, inclusive
Beyond five years

31 December
2019
HKS$'000

29,460,193

2,947,638
14,326,105
13,617,672

60,351,608

31 December
2019
HKS'000

Other borrowings and debt securities repayable:

Within one year

In the second year

In the third to fifth years, inclusive
Beyond five years

2,574,338
7,300,887
20,209,504
28,478,004

58,562,733

(a) The bank loans are denominated in following currencies:

uss
BRL
EUR
AUS

31 December
2019

HK$'000

26,437,812
21,223,701
6,081,392
6,608,703

60,351,608

31 December 1 January
2018 2018
HKS$'000 HKS$'000
27,753,804 30,580,145
3,340,164 4,875,336
11,085,664 9,750,672
20,266,643 6,987,873
62,446,275 52,194,026
31 December 1 January
2018 2018
HK$’'000 HK$'000
2,288,675 6,312,239
1,721,961 1,815,573
27,880,418 29,396,093
26,002,109 22,342,251
57,893,163 59,866,156
31 December 1 January
2018 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
18,142,688 16,501,053
19,412,751 15,848,764
16,350,384 14,625,821
_ 8,540,452 5,218,388
62,446,275 52,194,026

As at 31 December 2019, all bank loans of Euro are designated as the hedging instruments to
hedge the net investments in CDP Reti and REN.
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STATE GRID INTERNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
31 December 2019

34.

INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

™

(@

(d)

The carrying amount of interest-bearing bank berrewings approximates their fair value due
to that approximately all of the bank borrowings are bearing floating interest rate. The fair
value of the interest-bearing bank borrowings fall into the level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

Certain of the bank borrowings borrowed by some subsidiaries are guaranteed by the
company.

The Group's subsidiaries in Australia have following issued debt securities in different
currencies. Amounts due within one year have been classified into current liabilities.

Bonds Maturity Interest rate
GBP 250 Miition Feb 2021 5.13%
USD 500 Millien Apr 2023 3.30%
AUD 150 Million Mar 2020 BBSW+1.60%
AUD 350 Million Mar 2021 5.50%
EUR 500 Million Jun 2022 2.00%
AUD 350 Million Jun 2023 3.75%
USD 500 Million Jul 2026 3.25%
HKD 875 Million May 2027 3.30%
USD 500 Millicn Jul 2027 3.50%
AUD 250 Miilion Sep 2024 3.75%
HKD 785 Million Mar 2029 2.85%
AUD 92 Million Jul 2029 2.79%
HKD 739 Millien Dec 2029 2.54%

The Group's subsidiaries in Europe have following issued debt securities in different
currencies. Amounts due within one year have been classified into current liabilities.

Bonds Maturity Interest rate
EUR 700 million Jan 2022 1.54%
EUR 300 million Jan 2027 2.53%
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34. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

(e} The Group's subsidiaries in Brazil have following issued debt securities in different

currencies. Amounts due within one year have been classified into current liabilities.

Bonds Maturity Interest rate
BRL 115 Million Nov 2035 TR+9%
BRL 57 Million Apr 2029 IPCA+8.75%
BRL 16 Million Dec 2025 IPCA+8.0%
BRL 522 Million Dec 2020 CDl + 0.83%
BRL 217 Million Sep 2022 IPCA + 4.42%
BRL 361 Million Sep 2024 IPCA + 4.66%
BRL 133 Million Sep 2027 IPCA + 5.05%
BRL 243 Million Feb 2022 CDI + 0.83%
BRL 254 Million Feb 2022 109.5% of CDI
BRL 62 Million Feb 2024 IPCA + 5.2901%
BRL 176 Million Feb 2021 CDI + 0.83%
BRL 258 Million Feh 2023 111.25% of CDI
BRL 135 Million Feb 2024 [PCA + 5.3473%
BRL 220 Miliion Jan 2021 CDhl + 0.48%
BRL 474 Million Aug 2020 CDI+ 0.75%
BRL 52 Million Oct 2021 IPCA+ 5.4764%
BRL 495 Million Nov 2028 TJLP + 1%
BRL 132 Million Jun 2023 CDI + 1.6%
BRL 325 Miilion May 2022 CDI+ 1.7%
BRL 276 Million Mar 2021 114% of CDI
BRL 298 Million May 2020 117.25% of CDI
BRL 110 Milifon Dec 2023 129.5% of CD!
BRL 260 Million Jul 2022 IPCA + 5,62%
BRL 318 Million Mar 2023 107.75% of CDI
BRL 212 Million Mar 2023 107.75% of CDI
BRL 153 Million Nov 2020 110% of CDI
BRL 190 Million Jan 2021 CDI + 0.48%
BRL 197 Million Aug 2025 IPCA + 5.80%
BRL 215 Million Jan 2021 CDI + 0.48%
BRL 220 Million Aug 2025 IPCA + 5,80%
BRL 220 Million Jan 2021 CDIl + 0.48%
BRL 700 Million May 2021 105.75% of CDI
BRL 700 Million May 2023 107.50% of CDI
BRL 1380 Million Jan 2021 CDI + 0.48%
BRL 138 Million Feb 2021 105% of CDI
BRL 220 Million Jan 2025 108.25% of CDI
BRL 1380 Million May 2025 107% of CDI
BRL 215 Million May 2025 107% of CDI
BRL 190 Million May 2023 107% of CDI
BRL 740 Million May 2025 107% of CDI
BRL 300 Million Nov 2023 104.75% of CDi
BRL 538 Million Nov 2025 106% of CDI
BRL 112 Million Jun 2026 IPCA+4.45%
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31 December 2019

35.

CONTRACT LIABILITIES

31 December 2019

HKS$'000
Contract liabilities arising from:
Sale of goods 772,717
Total 772,717

31 December 2019

HK$'000
Within one year 689,115
More than one year _ 83,602
Total contract liabilities 772,717

31 December 2018
HKS$'000

-
-l
=
o
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[

-‘l
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o
o
)

31 December 2018
HKS$'000

673,184
_ 98,496

771,680

1 January 2018
HK$'000

1,048,576

1,048,576

1 January 2018
HKS$'000

The contract liabilities primarily relate to the advance from customers and other non-current
liabitities for which revenue is recognised when the performance obiligation is satisfied.

The amount of revenue recognised in the year ended 31 December 2019 frem performance

obligations satisfied (or partially satisfied).
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36.

36.1

PRIVATE PENSION PLAN

The subsidiaries sponscr supplementary retirement and pension plans for their employees. The
main characteristics of these plans are as follows:

Characteristics
CPFL Paulista

The plan currently in force for the employees of the subsidiary CPFL Paulista through FUNCESP
is a Mixed Benefit Plan, with the following characteristics:

Gy Defined Benefit Plan ("BD") - in force until 31 Octcber 1997 - a defined benefit plan,
which grants a Proportional Supplementary Defined Benefit ("BSPS™), in the form of a
lifetime income convertible into a pension, to participants enroiled prior to 31 October
1997, the amount being defined in proportion to the accumulated past service time up
to that date, based on compliance with the regulatory requirements for granting. The
total responsibility for coverage of actuarial deficits of this plan falls to the subsidiary.

Gi> Mixed model, as from 1 November 1997, which covers:

-benefits for risk (disability and death), under a defined benefit plan, in which the
subsidiary assumes responsibility for Plan's actuarial deficit, and

-scheduted retirement, under & variable contribution plan, consisting of a benefit plan,
which is a defined contribution plan up to the granting of the income, and does not
generate any actuarial liability for the subsidiary CPFL Paulista. The benefit plan only
becomes a defined benefit plan, consequently generating actuarial responsibility for the
subsidiary, after the granting of a lifetime income, convertible or not into a pension.

Additionally, the subsidiary's Managers may opt for a Free Benefit Generator Plan - PGBL
(defined contribution), operated by either Banco do Brasil or Bradesco.

CPFL Piratininga

As aresult of the spin-off of Bandeirante Energia S.A. (subsidiary’s predecessor), the subsidiary
CPFL Piratininga assumed the responsibility for the actuarial liabilities of that company's
employees retired and terminated until the date of spin-off, as well as for the obligations
relating to the active employees transferred to CPFL Piratininga.

On 2 April 1998, the Secretariat of Pension Plans - "SPC" approved the restructuring of the
retirement plan previously maintained by Bandeirante, creating a "Proportional Supplementary
Defined Benefit Plan - BSPS”, and a "Mixed Benefit Plan", with the following characteristics:

(i) Defined Benefit Plan (“BD™) - in force until 31 March 1998 - a defined benefit plan,
which grants a Proportional Supplementary Defined Benefit (BSP3), in the form of a
lifetime income convertible into a pension to participants enrolled until 31 March 1998,
in an amount calculated in proportion to the accumulated past service time up to that
date, based on compliance with the regulatory requirements for granting. In the event
of death while working or the onset of a disability, the benefits incorporate the entire
past service time. CPFL Piratininga has full responsibility for covering the actuarial
deficits of this Plan.
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36.

36.1

PRIVATE PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED)
Characteristics (Continued)
CPFL Piratininga (Continued)

(i Defined Benefit Plan - in force after 31 March 1998 - defined-benefit type plan, which
grants a lifetime income cenvertible intc a pension based on the past service time
accumulated after 31 March 1998, based on 70% of the average actual monthly salary for
the last 36 months of active service. In the event of death while working or the onset of a
disability, the benefits incorperate the entire past service time. The responsibility for
covering the actuarial deficits of this Plan is equally divided between the subsidiary and the
participants.

(iii) Variable Contribution Plan - implemented together with the Defined Benefit plan effective
after 31 March 1998. This is a defined-contribution type pension plan up to the granting of
the income, and generates no actuarial liability for CPFL Piratininga. The pension plan oniy
becomes a Defined Benefit type plan after the granting of the lifetime income, convertible
(or not) into a pension, and accordingly starts to generate actuarial liabilities for the
subsidiary.

Additionally, the subsidiary’'s Managers may opt for a Free Benefit Generator Plan - PGBL (defined
contribution), operated by either Banco do Brasil or Bradesco.

RGE Sul (RGE)

The subsidiary RGE has retirement and pension plans for its employees and former employees
managed by Fundagdo CEEE de Previdéncia Privada, comprising:

) “Plan 1" (“Plano Unico RGE™): A “delined benefit” plan with benefit level equal to 100% of
the inflation adjusted average of the last salaries, deducting the presumed benefit from the
Social Security, with a Segregated Net Asset, that is closed to new participants since 1997.
This plan was recorded at the dissotved Rio Grande Energia S.A. uniil the merger of the
distribution companies approved on 31 December 2018; and;

(i} “Plan 2" ("Plano Unico RGE Sul"): A "defined benefit"” plan that is closed to new participants
since February 2011. The subsidiary's contribution matches the contributicn from the
benefitted employees, in the proportion of one for one, including as reqards the Fundagdo’s
administrative funding plan.

For employees hired after the ¢closing of the plans of Fundag&o CEEE, “defined contribution” private
pension plans were implemented, being Bradesco Vida e Previdéncia for employees hired between
1997 and 2018 by the dissolved Ric Grande Energia $S.A., and ltauprev for employees hired by RGE
as from 2011, as well as for new employees te be hired after the event of merger of the distribution
companies.

CPFL Santa Cruz
With the 2017 merger event, the company's official plan is the CMSPREV, managed by IHPREV

Fundo de Pensdo. The same plan was maintained for employees that had the benefits plan managed
by BB Previdéncia - Fundo de Pensdo from Banco do Brasil.
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36 PRIVATE PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED)
36.1 Characteristics (Continued)

CPFL Geragao

The employees of the subsidiary CPFL Geragdo participate in the same pension pian as CPFL

Paulista.

In addition, managers may opt for a Free Benefit Generator Plan - PGBL (defined contribution),

operated by either Banco do Brasil or Bradesco.

36.2 Balance sheet amounts of the defined benefit plans

31 December 2019

HKS$'000 HK3'000

Present value of actuarial

obligations 17,845,861 15,355,474
Fair value of plan's assets (13,423,390} (12,930,583)
Present value of obligations

(fair value of assets), net 4,422,471 2,424,891
Effect of asset ceiling 148,609 60,746
Net actuarial liability recognized

in the statement of financial

position 4,571,080 . 2,485,637

31 December 2018

1 January 2018

HK$'000

16,196,584
(14,062,449)

2,134,135
50,497

2,184,632

The changes in the present value of the actuarial obligations and the fair value of the plan's assets

are as follows:

Opening present value of
actuarial obligations

Gross current service cost

Interest on actuarial obligations

Participants' contributions
transferred during the year

Actuarial (gain)/loss: effect of
changes in demographic
assumptions

Actuarial loss: effect of changes
in financial assumptions

Benefits paid during the year

Exchange realignment

Closing present value of
actuarial obligations
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2019
HKS$'000

15,355,474
17,378
1,290,606

7,040

( 6,074)

3,047,723
( 1,189,475)
(_ _676,811)

20
HK$'0

18
00

16,196,584

16.6

63

1,268,673

6,7

50

697

1,315,565
( 1,127,522)
((2,321,936)

55,4
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STATE GRID INTERNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
31 Decemnber 2019

36,

36.2

36.3

PRIVATE PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED)

Balance sheet amounts of the defined benefit plans (Continued)

Opening fair value of actuarial
assets
Expected return during the year
Participants' contributions
transferred during the year
Sponsors' contributions
Actuarial gain: return on
actuarial assets
Benefits paid during the year
Exchange realignment
Closing fair value of
actuarial assets

Movements in recognized assets and liabilities

The changes in net liability are as follows:

Net actuariai liability at 1 January

Expenses recognized in the
statement of profit or loss

Sponsors' contributions transferred
during the year

Actuarial (gain)/loss: effect of
changes in demographic
assumptions

Actuarial loss: effect of changes in
financial assumptions

Actuarial gain: return on actuariai
assets

Effect of asset ceiling

Exchange realignment

Net actuarial liability at 31
December

Other contributions

Total lfability

Current
Non-current

104

2019
HK$'000

(12,930,583>
{ 1,095,791)

( 7,0445
( 277,323)

( 872,054)
1,189,475
__ 569,930

(13,423.390)

2019
HKS$'000

2,485,637
217,594

( 277,323)

¢ 6,074)
3,047,723

( 872,054)
85,135
( _109,558)

4,571,080
__24,510
4,595,550

434,501
4,161,089

2018
HK$"000

(14,062,449)
( 1,107,699}

( 6,750)
( 214,154)

( 683,040)
1,127,522
_ 2,015,987

(12,930,583)

2018
HK$'000

2,184,632
181,751

( 214,154)

697
1,315,563

( 683,042
13,378
( 313,1883

2,485,637
- 27,617
2,513,254

175,108
2,338,146
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36. PRIVATE PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED)

36.4

Recognition of private pension plan income and expense

Supported by the opinion of external actuarial estimate, CPFL's management presents the estimate
of the expenses (income) to be recognized in 2020 and the expense (income) recognized in 2019

and 2018 are as follows:

Service cost

Interest on actuarial
obligations

Expected return on plan
assets

Effect of asset ceiling

Total expense

36.5 Principal actuarial assumptions

2019
HK$'000

17,378

1,290,606

(1,095,791)

5,401

217,594

2018
HK$'000

16,663
1,268,673

(1,107,699)

4,114

181,751

The main assumptions taken into consideration in the actuarial calculation at the end of the

reporting period were as follows:

Nominal discount rate for actuarial liabilities:

Nominal return rate on plan assets:
Estimated rate of nominal salary increase;
Estimated rate of nominal benefits increase:

Estimated long-term inflation rate (basis for
determining the nominal rates above)
General biometric mortality table:

Bicmetric table for the onset of disability:
Expected turnover rate:
Likelihood of reaching retirement age:

CPFL Paulista, CPFL Geragdo

and CPFL Piratininga
31 December 2019

7.43% p.a.
7.43% p.a.
5.56% p.a. (*)
4.00%p.a.

4.00%p.a.

AT-2000(-10)

Low Light

ExpR_2012

After 15 years of
membership and 35 years of
service time for men and 30
years for women

RGE(Plans L e 2}
31 December 2019

7.43% p.a.
7.43% p.a.
5.97% p.a. (**)
4.00%p.a.

4.00%p.a.

BR-EMS sb v.2015
Medium Light

Null

100% on first eligibility to
a full retirement benefit

(*) Estimated rate of nominal salary increase for CPFL Piratininga was 6.39% p.a. at 31 December

2019 and 2018.

(**) Estimated rate of nominal salary increase for RGE (plan 1) was 5.15% p.a. at 31 December 2019

and 2018.
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36. PRIVATE PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED)

36.6 Plan Assets
The following tables show the allocation (by asset segment) of the assets of the Group CPFL pension
plans, at 31 December 2019 and 2018 managed by FUNCESP and Fundagdo CEEE. The tables also
show the distribution of the guarantee resources established as target for 2020, obtained in light

of the macroeconomic scenario in December 2019,

Assets managed by the plans are as follows:

Assets managed by Fundagdo Assets managed by Fundagéo
CESP CEEE
CPFL Paulista -
and CPFL CPFL

Geragdo Piratininga RGE RGE Sul

2019 2018 2019 2018

Fixed rate 75.0% 76.0% 75.0% 74.0%

Federal government bonds 61.0% 58.0% 66.0% 64.0%

Corporate bonds (financial Institutions) 1.0% . 2.0% 5.0% 5.0%
Corporate bonds (nen-financial

institutions) 0.0% 0.0% 2.0% 3.0%

Multimarket funds 4.0% 4.0% 2.0% 2.0%

Qther fixed Income investments 9.0% 12.0% 0.0% 0.0%

Varlable income 17.0% 17.0% 21.0% 21.0%

Investment funds - shares 17.0% 17.0% 21.0% 21.0%

Structured investments 4.0% 4.0% 0.0% 1.0%

Equity funds 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

Real estate funds 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 1.0%

Multimarket fund 4.0% 4.0% G.0% 0.0%

Total quoted in an active market 96.0% 97.0% 96.0% 96.0%

Real estate 3.0% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0%

Transactions with participants 1.0% 1.0% 2.0% 2.0%

Other investments 0.0% Q.0% 0.0% 0.0%

Escrow deposits and others 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

Total not quoted in an active market 4.0% 3.0% 4.0% 4.0%

36.7 Sensitivity Analysis

The significant actuarial assumptions for determining the defined benefit obligation are discount
rate and mortality. The following sensitivity analyses were based on reasonably possible changes
in the assumptions at the end of the reporting pericd, with the other assumptions remaining
constant,

Furthermore, in the presentation of the sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit
obligation was calculated using the prejected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period,
the same method used to calculate the defined benefit cbligation recognized in the statement of
financial position, according fo HKAS 19.
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36.

36.7

36.8

PRIVATE PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED)
Sensitivity Analysis (Continued)

See below the effects on the defined benefit obligation if the discount rate were 0.25 percentage
points lower (higher) and if life expectancy were to decrease (increase) in one year:

RGE
Increase CPFL CPFL CPFL Sul RGE Sul
(decrease) Paulista Piratininga Geragae Plan 1 Plan 2 Total
Nominal
discount (p.a.)* -0,25p.p. 310,065 109,067 7.954 25,695 41,639 494,420

+0,25p.p.  (296,724) (  103,538) { 7,590 (24,509) { 39,529 ( 471,880)

General biometric
mortality table** +1 year (328,295) ( 79,197) ( 7,739 (21,367) { 30,835 ( 467,433

-1 year 327,007 78,210 T.716 21,096 30,422 464,451

* The Company s assumption based on the actuarial report for the nominal discount rate was 7.43%
p.a.. The projected rates are increased or decreased by 0.25 p.p. to 7.18% p.a. and 7.68% p.a..

** The Company's assumption based on the actuarial report for the mortality table was AT-2000 (-
10) for Fundagdo CESP and BREMS sb v.2015 for Fundagdo Fam/lia Previdéncia. The projections
were performed with 1 year of aggravation or softening on the respective mortality tables.

Investment risk

The major part of the resources of CPFL's benefit plans is invested in the fixed income segment
and, within this segment, the greater part of the funds is invested in federal government bonds,
indexed to the IGP-M, IPCA and SELIC, which are the indexes for adjustment of the actuarial
liabilities of CPFL's plans (defined benefit plans), representing the matching between assets and
liabilities.

Management of CPFL's benefit plans is monitored by the Investment and Pension Plan Management
Committee, which includes representatives of active and retired employees, as well as members
appointed by CPFL. Among the duties of the Committee are the analysis and approval of investment
recommendations made by investment managers of Funda¢do CESP, which occurs at least
quarterly.

Fundacdes CESP and Familia Pervidéncia use the following tools to contreol market risks in the fixed
income and variable income segments: VaR, Traking Risk, Tracking Error and Stress Test.

Fundagao Familia Previdéncia also uses Sharpe, Generalized Sharpe and Drawn Down. In addition,
to assess the market risk exposure of the plans' portfolios, the Base EBA Year Exposure is
calculated and Stress Simulations are performed. The EBA consists of a metric that expresses the
risk exposure of the portfolio as a percentage of equity, considering the sum of the exposures
generated by each asset, based on the definition of increase/decrease of the respective risk
factors.

FundagBes CESP and Familia Previdéncia Investment Policies determine additional restrictions
that, along with those already established by law, define the percentages of diversification for
investments and establish the strategy of the plans, including the limit of credit risk in assets issued
or co-obligation of the same legal entity to be adopted internally.
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37. PROVISION

Current provision
Empioyee benefits
Environmental and restoration
Other provision

Non-current provision
Environmental and restoration
Employee benefits
Decommissioning
Tax proceedings
Civil proceedings
Rights proceedings
lLahour proceedings
Environment proceedings
Other provision

(€)]

(@)

(b)
(©
©
«©)
©)
©
{©

31 December
2019
HK$'000

553,444
310,693
154,374

31 December
2018
HK$'000

643,399
354,558
_49.456

1,047,413

619,982
86,694
238,040
2,904,028
1,503,847
4,866
1,065,680
57,827

. 197,144

6,678,108

1 January
2018
HKS$'Q00

704,597
263,006
59,976

(a) The Group’s subsidiaries in Brazil and Australia have sites to be rehabilitated where the
provision is provided based on the projected cost. The liability is determined based on the
present value of each applicabie environmental and restoration obligation as appropriate.

(b) The Group's subsidiaries in Australia have legal or constructive obligations as a result of past
events. The provisionis made on the basis of estimated current cost of detailed plans prepared.
For changes in the expected decommissioning costs, an adjustment is recorded against the

carrying value of the provision and any plant and equipment.

(c) The Group's subsidiaries in Brazil and Australia are involved in tax, civil, labour, environmental
and others proceedings, arising in the normal course of its business and are discussing these
issues, both in the administrative and judicial sphere. Provision for possibie losses arising from
such proceedings are estimated and updated by the Group's management, supported by the

opinion of its independent legal advisors.

The Group's subsidiaries in Brazil are operating in accordance with the Brazilian laws, meeting
the environment, hygiene, safety and occupational health requirements. In the operation phase
of the Group's business, environmental programs are developed in order to mitigate and offset

the impacts.
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38. SHARE CAPITAL

31 Pecember 31 December 1 January
2019 2018 2018
HKS$ 000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
Issued and fully paid:
21,429,327,845 (31 December 2018:
21,429,327.845) ordinary shares of
HK$1.00 each 21,429,328 21,429,328 21,429,328
Issued and fully paid:
109,087,660,027 (31 December
2018: 109,087,660,027) preference
shares of HK$1.00 each 109,087,660 109,087,660 108,168,441
Total 130,516,988 130,516,988 129,597,769

A summary of the transactions during the year with reference to the above movements in the

Group’s issued ordinary share capital is as follows:

At 1 January
New issues

At 31 December

2019
HKS$'000

21,429,328

21,429,328

2018
HKS$'000

21,429,328

21,429,328

A summary of the transactions during the year with reference to the above movements in the

Group's issued preference share capital is as follows:

At 1 January
New issues

At 31 December

39. RESERVES

2019 2018
HKS$'000 HKS$'000
109,087,660 108,168,441
- 919,219
109,087,660 109,087,660

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein for the current and prior years

are presented in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.
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40. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(a)

(b)

{©

@

(e)

At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities not provided for in the financial
statements were as follows:

The Group provided gquarantees to certain joint ventures amounted to approximately
HKS$4,624,413,000 (31 December 2018: HKS$5,751,625,000).

The Group’s subsidiaries in Brazil and Australia are involved in tax, civil, labour and others
proceedings, arising in the normal course of its business. Provision for possible losses arising
from such proceedings are estimated and updated by the Group's management, supported by
the opinion of its independent fegal advisors. Details of probable loss expected can be found in
Note 37.(Provision)

In the ordinary course of SGBH's business, they are parties to legal proceedings of civil, tax,
labour and environmental natures, and set up provisions for legal proceedings at amounts
deemed sufficient by management and legal! advisors to cover probable losses. These
provisions are presented according to the nature of the corresponding proceedings:

2019 2018

Consolidated

Consolidated

Tax 165,482,889 162,453,212
Civil 34,967,447 8,699,289
Environmental 8,989,733 13,912,058
Labour 21,941,569 74,342,910

231,381.638 259,407,409

SGSPAA's joint venture ActewAGL Distribution Partnership(ADP) had contingent liabilities of
HK$25.63 miliion as at 31 December 2019 (as at 31 December 2018: HKS$25.88 million)
relating to bank guarantees.

CPFL is invelved in civil, tax, labour and regulatory proceedings.

The Group is part to other lawsuits in which Management, supported by its external legal
counsellors, believes that the chances of a successful outcome are possible due to a solid
defensive position in these cases, therefore no provision was recognized. It is not yet possible
to predict the outcome of the courts' decisions or any other decisions in similar proceedings
considered probable or remote.

2019 2018
Consclidated Consolidated

l.abour 1,127,262 1,590,720
Civil 3,507,582 3,296,219
Tax 8,407,370 7,727,159
Tax-others 5,129,229 4,805,310
Regulatory _ 147,643 __ 282,187

18,319,086 17,701,695
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40,

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

(f) In 20186, the subsidiary CPFL Renovaveis received a tax infringement notice in the amount of

BRL 327,547 relating to the coliection of Withholding Income Tax - IRRF on the remuneration
of capital gain incurred with parties resident and/or domiciled abroad, arising from the sale of
Jantus SL in December 2011, for which the Company's management, supported by the opinion
of its cutside legal counsellors, assessing the chances of loss as not probable;

In 2016 the subsidiary CPFL Geragao received a tax infringement notice in the inflation adjusted
amount of BRL 482,734 related to the collection of IRPJ and CSLL for the calendar year 2011,
calculated on the alleged capital gain identified on the acquisition of ERSA Energias Renovaveis
S.A. and on the recording of differences in the fair value remeasurement of SMITA
Empreendimentos e Participagdes S.A., company acquired in a downstream merger, for which
the Company's management, supported by the opinion of its outside legal counsellors,
assessing the chances of loss as not probable.

As regards labour contingencies, there is a discussion about the possibility of changing the
inflation adjustment index adopted by the Labour Court. Currently there is a decision from the
Supreme Federal Court (STF) that suspends the change ruled by the Superior Labour Court
(TST), which intended to replace the index currently adopted by the Labour Court ("TR') by the
IPCA-E. The Supreme Court considered that the TST's decision entailed an unlawful
interpretation and was not compliant with the determination of the effects of prior court
decisions, violating its competence to decide on a constitutional matter. In view of such
decision, and until a final decision is issued by the STF, the current index adopted by the Labour
Court ("TR'") remains valid, which has been acknowledged by the TST in recent decisions.
Therefore, the Group’s management considers the risk of losses as possible and as the matter
still requires definition by the Courts, it is not possible to reasonably estimate the amounts
involved. In addition, in accordance with Law No. 13,467 of 11 November 2017, the TR is the
inflation adjustment index of the Labour Court since the law came into effect.
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41.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's exposure to market risk (including interest rate risk and foreign currency risk), credit
risk, equity price risk and liguidity risk arises in the normal course of its business. These risks are
managed by the Group's financial management policies and practices described below:

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to interest rate risk relates principaily to the Group’s short term and long
term bank loans which are based on the floating interest rates. The Group mitigates the risk by
monitoring ciosely the movements in interest rates and reviewing its banking facilities regularly.
The Group has used interest rate swap to hedge its exposure to interest rate risk.

As at 31 December 2019, if the interest rates on borrowings had been 100 basis points higher,
with all other variables held constant, the profit after tax for the year would have been
HKS$ 434,522,000 (2018:HK$453,982,000) lower as a result of higher interest expenses on bank
borrowings.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has its 92% of cash and cash equivalents at Brazilian Real ("BRL") and 5% at Euro
("EUR"), and its 44% of interest-bearing bank borrowings at United States dellars ("USD"), 35% at
BRL, 11%at AUD and 10% at EUR at 31 December 2019. The exchange rate fluctuation would affect
the Group's operation. The Group tries to minimize the foreign currency risk by monitoring and
analysing the fluctuation of exchange rate on a daily basis.

Besides, the Group has net investments in foreign operation. The functional currencies of the
Group's jointly-controlled ventures and associates mainly include Philippines Peso (“PHP"),
AUS and Euro, while the functional currencies of the Group's subsidiaries in Brazil and Australia,
are BRL and AUD respectiveiy. The exchange rate fluctuation of those foreign currencies against
HKD would significantly affect the Greup's other comprehensive income. The Group tries to
minimise the toreign currency risk by monitoring and analysing the fluctuation on a quarterly basis
based on the management accounts reported. in addition, as at 31 December 2019, the Group
designated loans of Eurol.5 billion as the hedging instruments to hedge the net investments in
REN, CDP Reti in order to hedge the foreign currency risk.

Credit risk

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, investments and other
current asseis except for prepayments, represent the Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in
relation to financial assets. All the Group’s cash and cash equivalents are held in major financial
institutions iocated in Hong Kong, Brazii and Austratia, which management believes are of high
credit quality. The Group has policies in place to evaluate credit risk when accepting new business
and to limit its credit exposure to individual customers. The directors consider that the Group deoes
not have a significant concentration of credit risk.

The Group also exposes to credit risk arises from trade receivables. The Group trades only with
recognised and creditworthy third parties. It is the Group's policy that ali customers who wish to
trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. The Group applies the simplified
approach to most of its trade receivables to provide for expected credit losses prescribed by
HKFRS 9, which permits the use of the lifetime expected loss provision for trade receivables. In
addition, trade recelvables balance is monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group's exposure to
bad debts is not significant.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging as at 31 December 2019

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum exposure to credit risk based on the
Group's credit policy, which is mainly based on past due information unless other information is
available without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging classification as at 31 December 2019,
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

12-month ECLs Lifetime ECLs
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Simplified Total
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
Trade receivable* - - - 11,347,557 11,347,557
Contract assets* - - - 44,840,207 44,840,207
Financial assets included
in prepayments and
other current assets
- Normal** 1,359,596 - - - 1,359,596
- Doubtful** - - 56,076 - 56,076
Cash and cash
equivalents 16,613,927 - 16,613,927
Financial assets in other
non-current assets 7,372,780 - [ .1.372,780
Total 25,346,303 - 56,076 56,187,764 81,590,143

*For trade receivables and contract assets to which the Group applies the simplified approach for
impairment, information based on the provision matrix is disclosed in Notes 24 and 27 to the
consolidated financial statements.

**The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments and other current assets and
financial assets included in other non-current assets is considered to be "normal"” when they are
not past due and there is no information indicating that the financial assets had a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial assets
is considered to be “doubtful™.

Maximum exposure as at 31 December 2018

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, investments and other
current assets except for prepayments represent the Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in
relation to financial assets. The Group has policies in place to evaluate credit risk when accepting
new business and to iimit its credit exposure to individual customers. The directors consider that
the Group does not have a significant concentration of credit risk.

Equity price risk

The Group's exposure to equity price risk relates principally to the Group's investments in equity
securities. Management manages this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of investments with
different risks, The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising from equity investments
classified as equity investments at fair value through other comprehensive income, Listed
investment has been chosen based on its longer term growth potential and is menitored regularly
for performance against expectations.

If the prices of the respective equity investments had been 1% higher/lower, with all other variables
held constant, the Group's equity investment designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income would have increased/decreased by approximately HK$101,713,000 at 31 December 2019
(2018:HK$97,627,000) as a result of the changes in the fair value.

Liquidity risk

The Group aims to maintain sufficient cash and credit lines to meet its liquidity requirements. The
Group finances its working capital requirements through a combination of funds generated from
operations and bank and other borrowings.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financiatinstruments as at the end of the reperting
period are as follows:

Financial assets Financial Financial assets at fair
at fair value assets value through other
through profit or at amortized comprehensive
2019/12/31 loss cost income
Designated as
such upon initial Equity
recognition investment Total
HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK5'000 HK$'000
Equity investments designated
at fair value through other
comprehensive income - - 10,171,299 10,171,299
Other equity instrument
investments* - - 244,031 244,031
Sector financial assets - 2,118,560 - 2,118,560
Financial assets - concession
rights 16,983,494 - - 16,983,494
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 1,644,481 - - 1,644,481
Trade recejvables - 10,692,714 - 10,692,714
Financial assets included in
prepayments, other
receivables and other assets - 1,415,672 - 1,415,672
Derivative financial
instruments 4,276,252 - - 4,276,252
Cash and cash equivalents - 16,613,927 - 16,613,927
Other non-current assets ) - 7,372,780 . 7,372,780
22,904,227 38,213,653 10,415,330 71,533,210

*As at 31 December 2019, certain unfisted equity investments with a carrying amount of
HK$244,031,000 (2018:HK$249,592,000) were stated at fair value. Because the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that the directors are of the opinion that their fair
value cannot be measured reliably and cost is the best estimate of it. The Group dees not intend to
dispose of them in the near future.

Financial liabilities at fair value

2019/12/31 through prefit or loss
designated as such upon inftial Financial llabilities at
recognition amortized cost Total
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Sector financial liabilities - 158,190 158,190
Trade payables - 6,874,728 6,874,728

Financial liabilities included in other

pavyables and accruals - 4,911,644 4,911,644
Derivative financial instruments 1,517,394 - 1,517,394
Interest-bearing

bank and other borrowings** 9,679,492 109,234,849 118,914,341
Lease liabilities - 773,813 773,813

11,196,886 121,993,224 133,190,110

**The amount includes the part of recognising credit risk on financial liabilities designated at fair
value through profit or loss in own credit reserve.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND PCLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial assets Financial

at fair value assets

through profit or at amortized

2018/12/31 loss cost

Financial assets at fair
value through other
comprehensive income

Designated as
such upon initial

recognition
HK$'000 HK$'000
Equity investments
designated at fair value
through other
comprehensive income - -
Other equity instrument
investments - -
Sector financial assets - 3,143,151
Financial assets -
concession rights 15,070,775 -
Trade receivables - 9,977,067
Financial assets included in
prepayments, other
receivables and other
assets - 1,913,348
Derivative financial
instruments 3,821,873 -
Cash and cash equivalents - 8,503,198
Other non-current assets . - _7,261,685
18.892,64 30,798,449
Financial liabilities at fair value
2018/12/31 through profit or loss
designated as such upon initial
recognition
HK$'000
Sector financial liabilities R
Trade payables -
Financiai liabilities Included in
other payables and accruals -
Derivative financial instruments 661,652
Interest-bearing bank and other
horrowings 11,383,582
Lease liabilities -
12.045.234
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Equity
investment Total
HK$'000 HK$'000
9,762,744 9,762,744
249,592 249,592
- 3,143,151
- 15,070,775
- 9,977,067
- 1,913,348
- 3,821,873
- 8,503,198
- 7,261,685
10,012,336 59,703,433
Financial liabilities at
amortized cost Total
HKS$'000 HKS$'000
94,410 94,410
6,353,441 6,353,441
3,597,570 3,597,570
- 661,652
108,955,856 120,339,438
___ 268,350 268,350
119,2 27 131,314,861
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41.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial assets at fair

Financial assets at Financial assets value through other
fair value through at amortized comprehensive
2018/1/1 profit or loss cost income
Designated as
such upon initial Equity
recognition investment
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Egulty investments
designated at fair value
through other
comprehensive income - - 11,204,413
Other equity instrument
[nvestments* - - 284,059
Sector financial assets - 1,335,262 -
Financfal assets -
concession rights 14,987,164 - -
Trade receivables - 10,822,200 -
Financial assets included in
prepayments, other
receivables and other
assets - 1,695,932 -
Derivative financial
instruments 3,661,113 - -
Cash and cash eguivalents - 14,487,713 -
Other non-current assets . - _7,475,954 _ -
18.648.277 35,817,061 11,488,472
Financial llabilities at fair value
2018/1/1 through profit or loss
designated as such upon initial Financial liabilities at
recognition amortized cost
HK$'000 HK$'000
Sector financial liabilities - 114,441
Trade payables - 9,311,165
Financial liabilities included in other
payables and accruals - 3,163,336
Derivative financial instruments 1,274,266 -
Interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings** 11,464,961 100,595,221
Lease liabilities —_ __ 309,344
12,739,227 113,493,507
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Total
HKS'000

11,204,413

284,052
1,335,262

14,987,164
10,822,200

1,695,932

3,661,113
14,487,713
7,473,954

65,953,810

Total
HK$'000

114,441
9,311,165

3,163,336
1,274,266

112,060,182
_ 309.344
126,232,734
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41.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at the end of the reporting period, based

on the contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows:

2019/12/31

Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
Lease liabilities

Trade payables

Financiai liabilities included in other

payables and accrued fiabilities, excluding
accrued interest

Derivative financial liabilities
Sector financial liability

2018/12/31

Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings

Lease liabilities

Trade payables

Financial liabilities included in other
payables and accrued liabilities, excluding
accrued interest

Derivative financial liabilities
Sector financial liability

2018/1/1

Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
Lease liabilities

Trade payables

Derivative financial liabiiities

Financial liabilities included in other

payables and accrued liabilities, excluding
accrued interest

Sector financial liability

Less than 1 year
HK$'000

42,697,224
153,136
6,874,728

4,911,644
469,684

55,106,416

Less than L year
HKS$'000

35,227,177
37,824
6,353,441

3,597,570
204,021

45,420,033

Less than 1 year
HK$'000

40,550,298
43,726

9,311,165
367,630

3,172,592
. 94,654

23,540,065
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1 to 5 years Over 5 years Total
HK$'0G0 HKS$'000 HK$°000
58,523,435 71,663,431 172,884,090
600,642 145,557 899,335
- - 6,874,728
- - 4,911,644
932,102 286,485 1,688,271
198,190 - 198,190
60,254,369 72,095,473 187,456,258
1to b years Over 5 years Total
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
59,767,355 74,263,465 169,258,597
157,005 351,676 546,505
- - 6,353,441
- - 3,597,570
178,641 - 382,662
_. . 84,410 - 94,410
60,198,011  74,615,14 180,233,185
1 te 5 years Over b years Total
HKX$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'C00
50,818,560 48,249,072 139,617,930
180,216 451,996 675,938
- - 9,311,165
802,967 818,936 1,989,533
- - 3,172,592
- 18787 - - 14,441
21,821,530 45,520,004 154,881,599
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41,

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED>

Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern in order to provide returns for sharehoclders and to maintain an optimal capital

structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it inlight of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment
to shareholders, return capital to sharehoelders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt. No
changes in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital were made during the years
ended 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by equity plus net
debt.Net debt is calculated as the total of interest-bearing bank borrowings, trade payables and
other payables and accruals, less cash and cash equivalents. Capital includes equity attributable to

owners of the Company.

Interest-bearing bank borrowings
Debt securities

Lease liabilities

Trade payables

Other payables and accruals
Less: Cash and cash equivalents

Net debt

Equity

Net debt and equity

Gearing ratio

31 December
2019

HKS$'000

65,039,172
53,875,169
773,813
6,874,728
7.538.634
(16,613,927)
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31 December
2018

HKS$'000
Restated

67,258,110
53,081,328
268,350
6,353,441
5,947,380
(8,503,198)

1 January
2018

HK$'000
Restated

52,194,026
59,866,156
309,344
9,311,165
6,769,520
(14,487,713)

268,128,590
43%
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31 December 2019

42.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transaction disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group had the
foilowing transactions with related parties during the year:

Assets

Intercompany loans receivable

Dividends and interests receivable

Energy purchases and sales, and charges

Intangible assets, property, plant and equipment,
materials and services rendered

Other

Liabilities

Intercompany loans payable

Dividends payable

Energy purchases and sales, and charges
Advances

Other payables and accruals

P&L

Energy purchases and sales, and charges

Loan interest expense

Intangibie assets, property, plant and equipment,
materials and services rendered

Other

Guarantee

Notes:

i

(iny

(iiiy Advances - refer to advances for investments in research and development.

Notes

M
(i

©

(iii)

0

(i

{v)

2019
HK$'000

3,970,589
385,819
11,347

408
402,036

12,773,776
1,578,895
238,880
314,750
{ 714,581)
¢ 182,929)

13,462
( 10,960)

4,624,413

2018
HK$'000

5,517,169
388,927
1,906

1,117
407,672

12,887,036
296,991
276,733

6,388
326,505

( 803,746)
( 152,432)

13,508
( 15,662)

5,751,625

Purchase and sale of energy and charges - refer basically to energy purchased or soid by
distribution, commercialization and generation subsidiaries through short or long-term
agreements and tariffs for the use of the distribution system (TUSD). Such transactions, when
conducted in the free market, are carried out under conditions considered by the Company as
similar to market conditions at the time of the trading, according to internal policies previously
established by the Company’'s management. When conducted in the regulated market, the
prices charged are set through mechanisms established by the regutatory authority.
Intangible assets, Property, plant and equipment, Materials and Service - refers mainly to
rendered services in advisory and management of energy plants, consulting and engineering.

(iv) The amount represented the counter-quarantees provided by the Group to certain joint

ventures for their bank loans and perfermance guarantee.
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43.

FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group's financial

instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:

As at 31 December 2019

Equity investments designated at fair
value through other comprehensive
income

Other eguity instrument investments
Derivative financial assets

Financial assets-concession rights
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

As at 31 December 2018

Equity investments designated at fair
value through other comprehensive
income

Other equity instrument investments
Derivative financial assets
Financial assets-concession rights

As at 1 January 2018

Equity investments designated at fair
value through other comprehensive
income

Other equity instrument investments

Perivative financial assets

Financial assets-concession rights

Fair value measurement using

Quoted prices in Significant Significant
active markets  observable inputs unobservable inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) {Level 3) Total
HKS$'000 HKS"000 HK$'000 HKS'000
10,171,299 - - 10,171,299
- - 244,031 244,031
13,027 4,252,753 10,472 4,276,252
- - 16,983,494 16,983,494
1,644,481 - - 1,644,481
11,828,807 4,252,753 17,237,997 33,319,557
Fair value measurement using
Quoted prices in Significant Significant
active markets  gbservable inputs unobservable inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
9,762,744 - - 9,762,744
- - 249,592 249,592
- 3,788,788 33,085 3,821,873
- = = 15,070,775 15,070,775
9,762,744 3.788.788 15,353,452 28,904,984
Fair value measurement using
Quoted prices in Significant Significant
active markets  observable inputs unobservable inputs
(Level 1) {Level 2) (Level 3) Total
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
11,204,413 - - 11,204,413
- - 284,059 284,059
1,798,866 1,739,402 122,845 3,661,113
- - 14,987,164 14,987,164
13 79 1,739,402 15,394,068 30,136,749
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43,

FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

Liabilities measured at fair value:

As at 31 December 2019

Interest-bearing bank
borrowings

Derivative financial
liabilities

As at 31 December 2018

Interest-bearing bank
borrowings

Derivative financial
liabilities

As at 1 January 2018

Interest-bearing bank
barrowings

Derivative financial
liabilities

Fair value measurement using

Quoted prices in active Significant Significant
markets observable inputs unobservable inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
- 9,679,492 - 9,679,492
21,146 1,496,248 - - 1,517,394
21,146 11,175,740 - = 11,196,886
Fair value measurement using
Quoted prices in active Significant Significant
markets observable inputs uncbservable inputs
{Level 1) (Level 2) {Level 3) Total
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
- 11,383,582 - 11,383,582
39.865 621,787 - - 661,652
39,865 12,005,369 - 12,045,234
Fair value measurement using
Quoted prices in active Significant Significant
markets observable inputs unobservable inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3} Total
HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
- 11,464,961 - 11,464,961
537,190 _ 737,076 - 1,274,266
537,190 12,202,037 - 12,739,227
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43.

FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group's financial instruments, other than those with
carrying amounts that reasonably approximate to fair values, are as follows:

Carrying amounts Fair values
31 December 31 December 1 January 31 December 31 December 1 January
2019 2018 2018 2019 2018 2018
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Financial assets
Equity investments designated at
fair value through other
comprehensive income 10,171,299 9,762,744 11,204,413 10,171,299 9,762,744 11,204,413
GCther equity instrument
investments 244,031 249,592 284,059 244,031 249,592 284,059
Financial assets-concession rights 16,983,494 15,070,775 14,987,164 16,983,494 15,070,775 14,987,164
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 1,644,481 - - 1,644,481 - -
Derivative financial assets . A4276,252 _ 3.821.873 _ 3,661,113 _ 4,276,252 _ 3,821,873 _ 3,661,113

_333195,557 _28,904.984 _30,136,749 _33,319.557 _28,904,984 30,136,749

Financial liabilities

Interest-bearing bank borrowings 118,914,341 120,339,438 112,060,182 118,914,341 120,339,438 112,060,182
Derivative financial liabilities _ 1,517,394 661,652 _ 1,274,266 1,517,394 661,652 _ 1,274,266

120431735 121,001,090 113,334,448 120,431,735 121.001.090 113,334,448

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and short-term deposits, trade receivables,
amounts due from a director/a related company/fellow subsidiaries, trade payables, bank
cverdrafts and other current liabilities approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the
short-term maturities of these instruments.

Long-term loans are evaluated by management based on parameters such as interest rates and
individual creditworthiness of the counterparties.

The fair values of the Group's interest-bearing borrowings and obligations under finance leases are
determined by using the DCF method using the discount rate that reflects the Group's borrowing
rates as at the end of the reporting period. Changes in the own non-performance risk as at 31
December 2019 and 2018 were assessed to be insignificant.
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44, COMMITMENTS

The Group had the following commitments at the end of the repoerting period:

Capital commitments

Contracted, but not provided for:
Plant and machinery

2019
HKS$'000

5,405,382

45. CHANGES IN LIABILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Interest-
bearing bank and
other borrowings

HKS$'000

At 1 January 2019 120,339,438
Changes from

financing cash flows ( 5,707.977)
New finance lease -
Foreign exchange

movement ( 1,652,347
Dividend proposed -
Interest expense 5,935,227
Capitalized interest -
Decrease arising from

disposal of subsidiaries -
Reclassified as

operating cash flows -
At 31 December 2019 118,914,341

46. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Lease
liabilities
HKS'000

1,162,418

( 202,190)
16,853

¢ 11,842)

56,261
1,641

( 249,328)

Other

payables and

accruals
HKS$'000

5,942,380

(5,893,188)

6,319,720

Significant events after the reporting period comprise the following:

) Events after the reporting period related to the COVID-19

(

(

(

Total
HKS$'000

127,444,236

11,803,355)
16,853

1,664,189)

6,319,720

5,991,488
1,641

249,328)

1,169,722

127,226,788

Since the outbreak of novel coronavirus (COVID-19) centinues to spread throughout China
and the other countries across the world in January 2020, the epidemic preventive
measures have been going on through the country. Up to the date of the report, COVID-19
has no material impact on the Group's operations. The Group will implement the relevant
measures and strengthen the support for the prevention and control of the epidemic. The
Group will monitor the developments of COVID-19 situation closely, assess and react
actively to its impacts on the financial position and operating results of the Group.
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46,

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD (CONTINUED)

Significant events after the reporting period comprise the following (centinuedy

2)

3

Events after the reporting period related to SGSPAA

On 17 February 2020, SGSPAA successfully completed a Bond issuance of AU$99 million
at a coupon of 2.68% with a maturity date of 27 February 2035. The transaction delivers
good value as well as supports the Group’s funding strategy achieving further diversification
of maturity and funding sources with new investors.

Events after the reporting period related to the Company

On 15 December 2019, the Company signed an share purchase agreement with Nama
Electric Holding Company, stipulating that the Company will pay a cash consideration of
USS 1 billion through the wholly-owned subsidiary State Grid International Development
Singapore Private Limited established in Singapore, acquiring 49% equity of Oman
Electricity Transmission Company from Nama Electric Holding Company. Cn 11 March 2020,
the deal was settled at the stipulated terms. Oman Electricity transmission Company is
Oman's national transmission company. 1t is responsibie for the construction, operation and
maintenance of Oman's transmission grid, It has 7,240 kilometres of transmission lines and
89 substations.

On 12 October 2019, the Company and Sempra Energy signed an equity purchase
agreement, and the Company will acquire 100% equity of Chilquinta Energia S.A. held by
Sempra Energy, through the wholly-owned subsidiaries State Grid International
Development Belgium Limited and State Grid Chile investment SpA established in Belgium
and Chile separately. As of the date of approval of this report, the equity transaction has
not been settled. Chilquinta Energia S.A. is the third largest distribution company In Chile,
with 16,911 kilometres ot distribution lines, serving a population of more than 2 million,
and the quality of distribution services is in a leading position among similar companies in
Chile. Chilguinta Energia 5.A. is also engaged in power transmission business and owns a
wholly-owned 880-kilometer transmission line,

On 2 March 2020, the board of directors of the Company approved the issue and aliotment
of 13,362 millien preference shares of HKS 1 par value to State Grid Overseas Investment
(Europe) Limited, a related party commonly controlled by State Grid Corporation of China.
Among that, 8,752 million shares amounted to EUR 1,020 miliion (equivalent to HKS 8,752
miilion) were received in cash, 4,610 million shares amounted to EUR 537 miilion
(equivalent to HK$ 4,610 million) were converting from the remaining principal of loans due
tc State Grid Overseas Investment (Europe) Limited.

On 3 March 2020, the board of directors of State Grid International Development Singapore
Private Limited approved the issue and aliotment of 596 million preference shares of EUR1
par value to State Grid Overseas Investment (Europe) Limited. 596 million shares amounted
to EUR 596 million were received in cash.
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47,

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company at the end of the reporting

period is as follows:

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Investment in associates
Investment in subsidiaries

Equity investments designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income

Due from subsidiaries

Other non-current assets

Total non-current assets

Current assets

Prepayments, other receivables and other assets
Derivative financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

Current liabllifles

Other payables and accruais

Tax payable

Amount due to related parties

Derivative financial liabilities
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings

Total current liabilities

NET CURRENT LIABILITIES

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities

Interest-bearing bank and other horrowings
Long-term payables to subsidiaries

Deferred tax liabilities

Total non-current liabilities

Net assets

Equity

Share capital
Reserves (Note)

AT

Total equity

Li Haixiang
Director
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31 December
2019
HK$’000

1,621
14,606,741
13,245,312

10,001,407
123,394,622

161,249,703

2,254,802
13,027
298,869

2,566,698
1,704,599
2,578
314,750

21,145
23,472,460

25,515,532
(22,948,834)
138,300,869
4,687,564
782,482
140,814
5,610,860
132,690,009
130,516,988

2,173,021

132.690.009

31 December
2018
HK$'000

2,025
14,372,178
5,522,714

9,762,744
133,519,330

163,178,991

108,808

265,364
374,172
1,228,272
29,103
320,508

39,866
22,638,144

_24,255,893

(23,881,721)

139,297,270
4,989,054

759,023
114,006

_ 5,862,083

133,435,187

130,516,988

_ 2,918,199

133,435.187

LIMITED

NATIONAL DEVELOPMEN'I:
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